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Monday 15th:    CITY COUNCIL 

Special Meeting 4:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., 
and Special Meeting 6:00 p.m. 

 
Wednesday 17th:    PLANNING COMMISSION  

Worksession 5:30 p.m. and Regular Meeting 6:30 p.m.  
 

Thursday 18th:     PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 
    Regular Meeting 5:30 p.m.  
 
Wednesday 24th:     PORT AND HARBOR ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 Regular Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
  
Thursday 25th:   CANNABIS ADVISORY COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 5:00 p.m. 
 

Monday 29th:   CITY COUNCIL 
 Worksession 4:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., 

and Special Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
 

 
Regular Meeting Schedule 

City Council 2nd and 4th Mondays 6 p.m. 
Library Advisory Board 1st Tuesday with the exception of January,  

April, August and November 5:00 p.m. 
Economic Development Advisory Commission 2nd Tuesday 6 p.m. 

Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 3rd Thursday with the exception of July, 
December and January 5:30 p.m. 

Planning Commission 1st and 3rd Wednesday 6:30 p.m. 
Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 4th Wednesday 5 p.m. (May-August 6:00 p.m.) 

Public Arts Committee Quarterly 2nd Thursday 5:00 p.m. Upstairs in the Conference Room 
Permanent Fund Committee Quarterly 2nd Thursday 5:15 p.m. 

  
 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILMEMBERS AND TERMS 
BETH WYTHE, MAYOR – 16 

FRANCIE ROBERTS, COUNCILMEMBER – 15 
BRYAN ZAK, COUNCILMEMBER - 16 

DAVID LEWIS, COUNCILMEMBER – 17 
BEAUREGARD BURGESS, COUNCILMEMBER – 15 

GUS VAN DYKE, COUNCILMEMBER – 16 
CATRIONA REYNOLDS, COUNCILMEMBER – 17 

 
 

City Manager, Katie Koester 
City Attorney, Thomas F. Klinkner 

 
http://cityofhomer-ak.gov/cityclerk for home page access, Clerk’s email address 

is: clerk@ci.homer.ak.us Clerk’s office phone number: direct line 235-3130,  
other number 435-3106 
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HOMER CITY COUNCIL      SPECIAL MEETING 

491 E. PIONEER AVENUE       4:00 P.M. MONDAY  

HOMER, ALASKA        JUNE 15, 2015 

www.cityofhomer-ak.gov       COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
          MAYOR BETH WYTHE 

                    COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 

         COUNCIL MEMBER CATRIONA REYNOLDS  

CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 

                     CITY MANAGER KATIE KOESTER 

                       CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 

 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER, 4:00 P.M. 

 

Councilmembers Van Dyke and Zak have requested excusal. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL (Only those matters on the noticed agenda may be considered, 

 pursuant to City Council’s Operating Manual, pg. 5) 

 

3. Memorandum 15-080, from City Clerk, Re:  Request for Executive Session Pursuant to 

AS 44.62.310(A-C)(1) Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly Have 

an Adverse Effect Upon the Finances of the Government Unit and Matters Pertaining to 

Personnel (City Finances/Budget Shortfalls for 2015/2016).  Page 7 

 

4. COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT NO LATER THAN 4:50 P.M.  

 Next Special Meeting is Monday, June 29, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 

5:00 p.m., and Worksession 4:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the City Hall 

Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 
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Memorandum 15-080 
TO:  MAYOR WYTHE AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 

DATE:  JUNE 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO AS 44.62.310 (A-C)(1)(4) 
MATTERS, THE IMMEDIATE KNOWLEDGE OF WHICH WOULD CLEARLY HAVE AN 
ADVERSE EFFECT UPON THE FINANCES OF THE GOVERNMENT UNIT AND 
MATTERS PERTAINING TO PERSONNEL (CITY FINANCES/BUDGET SHORTFALLS 
FOR 2015/2016).  

Pursuant to Council’s Operating Manual – “Any Councilmember, the Mayor or City Manager 
may place consideration of an executive session on the agenda…” 

Mayor Wythe has requested an Executive Session regarding “CITY FINANCES/BUDGET 
SHORTFALLS FOR 2015/2016” for the Special Meeting of June 15, 2015. This has been publicly 
and internally noticed since that time. 

City Attorney Klinkner will not be present. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the request for Executive Session and conduct immediately in the Conference Room. 
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HOMER CITY COUNCIL      COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
491 E. PIONEER AVENUE       5:00 P.M. MONDAY  
HOMER, ALASKA        JUNE 15, 2015 
www.cityofhomer-ak.gov       COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
           MAYOR BETH WYTHE 
                    COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 
         COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 
         COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 
         COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 
         COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 
         COUNCIL MEMBER CATRIONA REYNOLDS  

CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 
                     CITY MANAGER KATIE KOESTER 
                       CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER, 5:00 P.M. 
 

Councilmembers Van Dyke and Zak have requested excusal. 
 
2. AGENDA APPROVAL (Only those matters on the noticed agenda may be considered, 
 pursuant to City Council’s Operating Manual, pg. 6) 
 
3. MICHELLE DREW, BDO, AUDITOR’S REPORT    Page 11 
 
4. Resolution 15-048, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Noting the 

Sufficiency of the Petition for the Lillian Walli Fairview Avenue Road Reconstruction 
and Paving and Sewer Improvements Special Assessment District and Setting the 
Public Hearing Date for September 14, 2015. City Clerk/Public Works Director.  

           Page 295 
 Memorandum 15-086 from Public Works Director as backup.   Page 297 
  
5. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
6. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA       
 
7. COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT NO LATER THAN 5:50 P.M.  
 Next Special Meeting is Monday, June 29, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 

5:00 p.m., and Worksession 4:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the City Hall 
Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Homer, Alaska  June 15, 2015 
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This report was issued by BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership and 
the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.  
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    City of Homer 
 

Homer, Alaska 
 
 
 
June 10, 2015 
 
To the Honorable Mayor Mary E. Wythe 
Members of the City Council, 
The Citizens of the City of Homer: 
 
The Finance Department is pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of 
the City of Homer, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.  The purpose of the report is to 
provide the council, management, staff, the public, and other interested parties with detailed 
information reflecting the City’s financial condition. 
 
THE REPORT 
 
This report satisfies Title 29 of the Alaska Statutes requiring annual audits of all municipalities.  
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of 
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City.  We believe the data is accurate in 
all material respects and is presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the financial position and 
results of the City.  We also believe all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an 
understanding of the City's financial affairs have been included. To provide a reasonable basis 
for making these representations, management of the City of Homer has established a 
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the government's 
assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the 
preparation of the City of Homer's financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their 
benefits, the City of Homer’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed 
to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free 
from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 
 
The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the 
Federal and State Single Audit Act. Information related to the single audits, including the 
auditors’ reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations are included in this report. 
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THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 
 
The City of Homer is a first class General Law City incorporated in 1964 under Title 29 of the 
Alaska State Statute.  City Code establishes a December 31 year-end. 
 

 
 
Under the City’s Code of Ordinances, the Council is comprised of a mayor and six council 
members who enact local legislation, determine policies, and adopt the City's budget. The 
mayor is elected for a two-year term and council members are elected for three-year terms with 
two council members being elected each year. The City Manager is appointed by the City 
Council and is responsible to them for the proper administration of the affairs of the City. 
 
The City provides a full range of municipal services for the citizens of Homer and surrounding 
areas including planning and zoning, port and harbor, public works, airport terminal, water and 
wastewater services, library, parks and recreation, police protection, jail facilities, fire and 
emergency medical services and general administrative services.  In addition to general 
governmental activities, the City provides financial support to certain community service 
organizations that promote education, health, recreation and economic stability for the citizens 
of the community. 
 
The annual budget of the City of Homer serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning 
and control. The budget is prepared by the City Manager and adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with policies and procedures established by the City’s ordinances.1  Formal 
budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund.  Capital projects are budgeted on a project length basis.  The objective of these 
budgetary controls is to insure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budget approved by the Homer City Council.  The legal level of control (that is, the 
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriation) is at the fund level.  The 
City Council may pass subsequent supplemental appropriations.  Activities of the General Fund 
and Enterprise Funds are included in the annual appropriating budget.  Appropriations lapse at 
the end of the year. The City maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of 
accomplishing budgetary control.  The appropriated budget is prepared and presented by fund, 
department (e.g. police) or function (e.g. debt service), and major cost category (e.g. personal 
services). 
 
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund 
for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this 
comparison is presented on page 54 as part of the required supplementary information for the 
governmental funds.  
                         
1 Financial policies can be located beginning on page 17 of the City of Homer Annual 2014 Budget. 
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Capital Projects 
 
A significant portion of economic activity and growth in Homer is directly related to capital 
investment in infrastructure.  Much of this growth is currently fueled by public sector spending. 
The private sector economy shows signs of recovery and growth, particularly in the marine 
trades, tourism, and residential construction.  
 
Major capital projects that are planned, or in progress in 2014 and 2015 include the following: 
 
City of Homer Special Assessment District (SAD) Projects 
 
A very significant portion of the City of Homer’s financing for capital project activity involves 
carrying out the City’s commitment to provide basic water, sewer, and road services to 
community residents through the Homer Accelerated Water and Sewer Program (HAWSP) and 
the Homer Accelerated Roads and Trails Program (HART). Funding for projects under these 
programs is generated through a combination of dedicated sales taxes and assessments that 
are levied through Special Assessment Districts (SAD).  
 
In 2012 the Homer City Council approved a natural gas distribution system (SAD). In 2014, the 
City completed the project, which was financed through the $12,359,388 loan from Kenai 
Peninsula Borough. The revenue from the bond sale was used to finance construction of gas 
mains in approximately 73 miles of road within the City limits. The loan will be paid through a 
special assessment district with assessments paid by benefited property owners. Construction 
of Phase I, the downtown core was completed in 2013. The Homer Spit portion of Phase II was 
completed in May of 2014, and the remainder of Phase II was completed by August 2014. 
 
OTHER CITY CAPITAL PROJECTS 
 

 Deep Water Dock: The City and the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public 
Facilities recently entered into a Transfer of Responsibility Agreement (TORA) under 
which the City will take full responsibility for the project. Under this agreement, a $2 
million dollar federal earmark approved in 2005 will be combined with a $1 million 
Legislative Grant to conduct a feasibility study on expanding and strengthening the Deep 
Water Dock. Feasibility work commenced in late 2014 and will continue through 2015.  
 

 Skyline Drive Fire Station: At the City’s request, the Legislature re-appropriated a $2 
million grant intended for improvements at the Main Street and Sterling Highway 
intersection to construct the long awaited satellite fire station on Skyline Drive. The new 
building was complete fall of 2014. 
 

 Harbormaster’s Office: The legislative re-appropriation described above also provided 
most of the funding ($1.5 million) needed for a new harbormaster’s office. The necessary 
$500,000 match came from the Port Reserve Account. The City General Fund was 
tapped for the remaining funds in the form of a $300,000 loan. Ground was broken on 
the new Harbormaster’s Office summer of 2014 with a grand opening June 2015. The 
old office will be torn down in 2015 and the centrally located space will be used as a 
parking lot, for the time being.  
 

 Spit Trail: The City has received approximately $2.1 Million in Legislative and Scenic 
Byways grants to complete the Spit Trail to End of the Road Park. In addition to the 
paved trail, improvements include timber overlooks, benches, and signage. The 
improvements were well used during the 2014 visitor season and finishing touches were 
complete by fall of 2014. 
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 Load and Launch Ramp: The City and the Alaska Department of Fish and Game entered 

into a Memorandum of Understanding regarding the reconstruction and rehabilitation of 
the Load and Launch Ramp in the harbor. The state is expected to bring about $3 million 
to the table in construction funds and is paying for all of the engineering and design 
work. The City will contribute $800,000 in local match for construction. Engineering and 
design was completed in 2013. Construction will commence in September of 2015. 
 

 Harbor Revenue Bond Projects: The City Council identified several priority harbor 
improvement projects that total approximately $8.9 million. Engineering and design 
funds were secured through a Denali Commission grant and a local match of harbor 
reserve funds. $4.2 Million of the construction cost was approved in the 2014 State 
Capital Budget and the City raised another $4.2 million through the sale of revenue 
bonds through the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank. Most of the improvements, including 
float replacements, electrical upgrades and replacing Ramp 3, were accomplished in 
2014 with the project wrapping up summer of 2015.  
 
 

 Cruise Ship Passenger Amenities: In 2011 the City received a Legislative Grant in the 
amount of $6 million for improvements that directly benefit cruise ship passengers. 
Improvements include a pathway around the harbor, a passenger staging area, 
restrooms at various locations on the spit and downtown, and improvements to the Deep 
Water Dock that will make docking and movement of passengers easier and more 
comfortable. Engineering and Design commenced in 2012. Construction began in 2013 
and finishing touches, including the installation of a 13 foot high fishing hook sculpture, 
were complete in 2015. 
 

 Karen Hornaday Park Improvements: The City received a Land and Water Conservation 
Fund grant in the amount of $75,000. Combined with a local match of $75,000 trails 
were constructed around the park, improvements were made to the campground and the 
old picnic shelter was relocated.  
 

 Residents of Old Town successfully applied for grant funding to improve the safety and 
sense of community in their neighborhood. This funding, combined with $84,000 in 
HART funds, implemented traffic calming measures such as crosswalks, a trail along 
Charles way, paving Bishops Beach, and signage. 
 

 The FY 2015 State Capital Budget contained funding for a new sheet pile dock within the 
confines of the small boat harbor. Engineering and design work began in early 2015. 
 

 The FY 2015 State Capital Budget contained funding for road improvements at Waddell 
Way. This is Phase I of the larger East-West corridor project contained on the City 
Transportation Plan and CIP List. Land Acquisition, engineering, and design are 
expected in 2015.   
 

 Natural Gas Conversions: The City provided funds to convert six City buildings and 
facilities to natural gas in 2013. The remaining city buildings where conversion to natural 
gas is cost effective were converted in 2014 including a number of restrooms. 

 
Kenai Peninsula Borough Projects 
 

 The most significant recent Borough project in the Homer area is the closure of the 
landfill and construction of a transfer site for storing Homer waste awaiting transport to 
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Soldotna. This $10 Million dollar project was complete in 2014. Construction began in 
2011. 
 

 The 2014 State Capital Budget contained partial funding to install artificial turf at the 
Homer High School football field and to improve various Borough roads. The turf was put 
to good use in 2014. 
 

 The boilers at Homer Middle, Paul Banks and West Homer Elementary schools were 
converted from oil to natural gas in 2014 resulting in significant fuel cost savings for the 
Homer area schools. 
 

 Kachemak Emergency Service Area is building a 4 bay fire station on Diamond Ridge in 
phases. The final and second phase was substantially complete in 2014.  

State of Alaska Projects 
The summer of 2014 was full of road construction delays as the Department of Transportation 
and Public Facilities made improvements to area roads both big and small.  

 
 East End Road from milepost 3.5 to 5.5 underwent a major rehabilitation in 2014 

including widening the road, drainage improvements and a separated bike path. 
Construction will be complete by fall 2015.  
 

 Phase II of the Homer Sterling Highway repaving project was complete in 2014. The 
project resurfaced from the Sterling Highway intersection with Pioneer Avenue to the 
end of the Homer Spit. A portion of the improvements were installing rip rap along Spit 
Road where serious erosion has occurred. 
 

 The State has made repair and upgrade of Lake Street a priority STIP project and 
preliminary planning and scoping has begun. A 2015 STIP Amendment added upgrades 
to Pioneer Ave. Though both of these projects are slated for construction in the near 
future, current State budget conditions threaten to impact their immediate construction. 
 

Major Private Sector Projects 
 

 The City experienced some private capital investment in 2014 including the construction 
of an O’Rileys auto parts store, remodel of a hotel and some modest commercial 
construction. There is evidence that the real estate market is rebounding with access to 
natural gas on almost all City lots. Overall the slow and steady trend in development that 
Homer is accustomed to held true for 2014. 
 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Economy 
 
Homer’s economy is relatively diverse for a community of its size. Major seasonal components 
of the economy include commercial fishing, sport fishing, recreation, and the visitor industry. 
The primary employers include South Peninsula Hospital, Homer Electric Association, the 
Federal, State, Borough, and City governments, the marine trades, the service industry, a 
thriving non-profit sector, arts and music, independent entrepreneurs, and small, locally owned 
businesses. Homer has been the number one commercial halibut port in the state in terms of 
pounds landed for years. The community has many economic assets including the largest single 
basin boat harbor in the state, an open access year around ice free port, an excellent airport, 
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natural gas, and access to the national highway system. Major attractions include the Pratt 
Museum, the Islands and Ocean Center, numerous art galleries, and unlimited recreational 
opportunities. 
 
A boom in oil and gas exploration in Cook Inlet has increased traffic at the Port and Small Boat 
Harbor and jobs in the marine trades. Large prospects for the future that could positively impact 
the local economy include Alaska LNG, a natural gas export line with a terminus and liquid 
gasification plant in Nikiski, continued interest in Cook Inlet, and development in the Arctic.  
 
The low price of oil that has driven the State of Alaska to implement budget cuts and dip into 
savings accounts to balance the budget has and will continue to affect Homer. State budget 
cuts to the Community Jails Program and Revenue Sharing have had an immediate impact on 
the City’s 2015 budget. The restricted state spending will have a long term effect on Homer’s 
budget as the economy beings to contract with less state spending on wages, contracts, and 
construction. A very minimal FY16 State capital budget will affect construction projects across 
the state.   
 
The City of Homer has been able to avoid significant cuts in programs and services so far due 
to conservative budgeting and fiscal management practices. However, with the added pressure 
of cuts from the State, this may no longer be possible. Additional revenues will be needed in 
order to provide the high quality services residents expect and to keep up with maintenance, 
repair, and replacement obligations. It is important for the City to encourage the creation of 
more year-round job opportunities so that young people can remain and working families can 
afford to live here.        
 
Long-Term Financial Planning 
 
Users of this document as well as others interested in the programs and services offered by the 
City of Homer are encouraged to read the City's 2014 Annual Budget. The document details the 
City's long-term goals and financial policies, describes program accomplishments and initiatives, 
and outlines the City's capital improvement program. The document can be obtained from the 
City of Homer's Finance Department by calling (907) 235-8121. The Annual Budget can also be 
accessed through the City's web site at www.ci.homer.ak.us and selecting the Finance 
Department. 
 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
Single Audit 
 
As a recipient of federal and state assistance, the City is responsible for providing an 
independent audit to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these 
programs.  The reporting entity that is included in our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
is determined by the criteria set forth in the Codification of Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standard, Section 2100.  The criteria deal with the City’s responsibility over 
a governmental organization and the scope of public service.  Based on these criteria, the 
various funds (being all the funds of the City) shown in the Table of Contents are included in this 
report and there are no component units for which the City has responsibility.  
 
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS 
 
The City’s financial records for governmental fund types are maintained on a modified accrual 
basis.  Revenues and other financial resource increments are recognized when they become 
susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures are recognized when the fund liability is incurred except 
for inventories of materials and supplies, prepaid insurance, and similar items that may be 
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considered expenditures when consumed.  The City’s Proprietary Funds are accounted for on 
the accrual basis.  The accrual basis means that financial records are affected when the 
revenues are earned and expenses are incurred.   
 
Cash Management 
 
All idle funds are invested according to the investment guidelines established by the City 
Council.  Under this policy the City may use any of the following instruments: 
 

1. U.S. Treasury securities - 3 years 
2. Other obligations by the U. S. Government, its agencies, and instrumentalities - 3 years. 
3. Repurchase agreements of acceptable securities listed in subsections 1 and 2 of this    

section, which meet a margin requirement of 102%; provided, however, the maturity 
limitations specified in those subsections do not apply if the securities in the repurchase 
agreement are marked to market daily. 

4. Units of the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool in accordance with an executed 
common Investment Agreement and in conformance with AS 37.23.010--37.23.900. 

5. Certificates of deposit and other deposits at banks and savings and loan associations 
collateralized as provided in Section 3.10.070 - 3 years. 

6. Uncollateralized deposits at banks and savings and loan associations, to the extent that 
the deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or the 
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation - 3 years. 

7. Taxable bonds or notes which are issued by any state or political subdivision thereof, 
and which are graded AA or higher by Moody's Investor's Service, Inc., or Standard and 
Poor's Corporation - 3 years. 

8. Commercial paper graded A1 or higher by Moody's Investor's Service, Inc., or P1 or 
higher by Standard and Poor's Corporation - 270 days. 

9. Bankers' acceptances offered by banks rated at least "AA" by Moody's or Standard and 
Poor's. 

10. Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist entirely of instruments specified in 
subsection 1, 2 and 3 above - with net asset value of $1.00. 

 
Risk Management 
 
The City undertakes a comprehensive program of risk management including evaluation of 
potential risks and exposures on an ongoing basis, establishment of employee safety programs 
and maintenance of appropriate levels of insurance coverage.  New OSHA requirements are 
being met by employee training programs.  Employee training continues both with outside 
institutions and in-house programs.  
 
Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
Certification of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Homer 
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. 
 
In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents 
conform to program standards.  Such a report must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe our current report 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Homer, Alaska 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Homer, Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Homer’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Homer, Alaska, as of 
December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As described in Note 8 to the financial statements, in 2014 the City discovered an error relating to 
a capital grant.  A prior period adjustment has been recorded to increase opening fund balance and 
net position to correct for this item.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management’s discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison schedules be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
Our audit for the year ended December 31, 2014 was conducted for the purpose of forming 
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise City of Homer’s basic financial 
statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the Schedule of 
State Financial Assistance, and the combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance are required by OMB Circular A-
133 and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, 
respectively. 
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The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, the Schedule of State Financial 
Assistance, and the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the 
table of contents, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year 
ended December 31, 2014. 
 
We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the basic financial statements of City of Homer as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 (not presented herein), and have issued our report thereon dated May 19, 
2014, which contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information.  The individual fund financial statements and schedules for the year 
ended December 31, 2013 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the 2013 financial statements.  The individual fund financial statements and schedules 
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2013 basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those financial 
statements or to those financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our 
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended December 31, 2013. 
 
The accompanying introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the table of contents, have not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, 
and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 10, 
2015 on our consideration of City of Homer’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering City of Homer’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
Anchorage, Alaska 
June 10, 2015 
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The City of Homer management offers readers financial statements, narrative overview, and analysis 
of the financial activities of the City of Homer for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2014. Readers 
are encouraged to read this narrative in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this 
report and the City’s financial statements, which follow this section. All amounts reported in this 
MD&A, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. 
 

Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets of the City of Homer exceeded its liabilities on December 31, 2014, by $130,989 (Net 
Position).  Of this amount, unrestricted net position of $18,990 may be used to meet the City’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  The City’s total net position increased by $2,947. 
 

As of December 31, 2014, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances 
of $19,732, a decrease of $1,910 from the prior year. A combination of factors contributed to the 
decrease. The Capital Projects (including Gas-Line and HART-Road) resulted in a $929 decrease 
to the fund balance; the Utility (Water & Sewer) Special Revenue fund decreased by $1,205; the 
General Fund increased by $521; all other Non-Major Funds have a decrease of $297.  

 

 At the end of the current year, the fund balance for the General Fund was $6,569.  Of this amount, 
$5,735 was unassigned and available for spending. 

 

 At year-end, the City of Homer's outstanding governmental debt totaled $26,412. Business-type 
debt outstanding was $4,050.   

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 

This annual report is comprised of four segments as dictated by Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP): Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary information. The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City of 
Homer. 
 

 Government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about 
the City's overall condition in a summary format. 
 

 Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of Homer's government, reporting the City's 
operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
 

 The governmental funds statements explain how general government services like public safety 
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
 

 Proprietary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the 
activities the government operates like businesses, such as the port and harbor fund. 

 
The financial statements also include notes, which elaborate on some of the information in the 
financial statements that provide more detailed data. These financial statements are followed by a 
section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in 
the financial statements.  In addition to these required elements, we have included other 
information such as the City's single audit information, and a statistical section, which, through the 
use of tables, presents comparative economic and financial data to give users of this report a 
perspective of the City's financial performance over a number of years. 
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Illustration A-1 summarizes the major features of the City's financial statements. The remainder of 
this overview section of the management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and 
contents of each of the statements. 
 
  

Illustration A-1 
Major Features of City of Homer’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

      
   Fund Statements 

  
Government-wide 

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 
Scope Entire City government The activities of the City 

that are not proprietary,  
such as police, fire,  public 
works, and water/sewer 
utility 

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses, such 
as port & harbor 

Required 
financial 
statements 

*Statement of net 
position 
*Statement of activities 

*Balance sheet 
*Statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes 
in fund balance 

*Statement of net 
position 
*Statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes 
in net position 
*Statement of cash 
flows 

Accounting 
basis and 
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting  Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources focus 

Accrual accounting  

Type of 
asset/liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and 
capital, and short-term 
and long-term 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year 
or soon thereafter; no 
capital assets included 

All assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and capital, 
and short-term and 
long-term 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when cash 
is received or paid 

Revenues for which cash is 
received during or soon 
after the end of the year; 
expenditures when goods 
or services have been 
received and payment is 
due during the year or 
soon thereafter 

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when cash 
is received or paid 
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Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the City of Homer's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements 
can be located on pages 18-19 of this document. 
 
 The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, 

with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may indicate the improvement or deterioration of the City's financial 
position. 
 

 The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed 
during the concluded fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. 

 
The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into two categories: 
 
 Governmental activities - These are functions such as public safety and public works services 

that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue. 
 

 Business-type activities - These functions are intended to recover all or a significant portion of 
their costs through user fees and charges. The City's port & harbor system falls within this 
category. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Homer, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on short-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's short-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's short-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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The City of Homer maintains eighteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all major funds. Individual fund data for 
each of the non-major funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this 
report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Utility Special Revenue 
Fund. Budgetary comparison statements are provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance 
with the budgets. 
 
Proprietary Funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in 
the proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-
wide statements, only in more detail. The City of Homer maintains two different types of 
proprietary funds. 
 
 Enterprise funds - Are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities 

in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses one enterprise fund to account for 
its port & harbor system. 
 

 Internal service funds - Are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among the City's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account 
for its self-insured health benefit and accrued leave cash-outs. 

 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
presented in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 28-52 of this report. 
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
At the close of the 2014 fiscal year, the City's net position (assets exceeding liabilities) totaled 
$130,989 (see Table A-1). Of this amount $104,385, or 80%, represents the City's investment in 
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt 
used to acquire those assets. Because the City of Homer uses these capital assets to provide 
services to the community, these assets are not available for future spending. The remaining 
amounts of net position are labeled as restricted or unrestricted.  
 
The restricted balance of $7,614 in the governmental activities is for capital projects.  The total 
unrestricted amount totals $18,990 and is available to meet the City's ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. 
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The following schedule provides a summary of the City’s net position: 
 

Table A-1  
City of Homer’s Net Position 

 
 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total  

 2014
2013

Restated 2014 2013 2014
2013 

Restated
 
 

  
Assets  

Current assets $ 26,975 $ 29,304 $ 5,504 $ 7,373 $ 32,479 $ 36,677 
Capital assets 84,034 82,728 49,246 42,890 133,280 125,618 

  
Total Assets 111,009 112,032 54,750 50,263 165,759 162,295 
  
Liabilities  

Noncurrent 
liabilities 27,141 26,014 4,539 4,665 31,680 30,679 

Other liabilities 1,171 2,087 1,919 1,486 3,090 3,573 
  
Total Liabilities 28,312 28,101 6,458 6,151 34,770 34,252 
  
Net Position  

Net investment in 
capital assets 58,895 66,236 45,490 42,725 104,385 108,961 

Restricted 7,614 7,737 - 294 7,614 8,031 
Unrestricted 16,188 9,958 2,802 1,093 18,990 11,051 

  
Total Net Position $ 82,697 $ 83,931 $ 48,292 $ 44,112 $ 130,989 $ 128,043 
 

Table A-2 
City of Homer’s Changes in Net Position 

 
 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total  

 2014
2013 

Restated 2014 2013 2014
2013 

Restated 
  
Program Revenues  
Charges for services $ 5,118 $ 7,712 $ 4,198 $ 4,452 $ 9,316 $ 12,164 
Operating grants 
and contributions 2,231 9,835 299 135 2,530 9,970 

Capital grants and 
contributions 1,844 2,216 4,733 3,523 6,577 5,739 

  
General Revenues  
Property taxes 3,092 3,225 - - 3,092 3,225 
Sales taxes 7,489 7,307 - - 7,489 7,307 
Other 574 573 217 300 790 873 

  
Total Revenues 20,348 30,868 9,447 8,410 29,795 39,278 
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 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total  

 2014
2013 

Restated 2014 2013 2014
2013 

Restated 
  
Expenses  
General 
government $ 2,337 $ 3,509 $ - $ - $ 2,337 $ 3,509 

Public safety 4,161 4,802 - - 4,161 4,802 
Public works 2,403 2,920 - - 2,403 2,920 
Library 1,027 1,038 - - 1,027 1,038 
Airport 282 267 - - 282 267 
Parks and 
recreation 760 577 - - 760 577 

Community services 253 7,801 - - 253 7,801 
Water and sewer 4,848 4,607 4,848 4,607 
Unallocated 
interest 367 441 - - 367 441 

Port and harbor - - 5,267 5,286 5,267 5,286
  
Total Expenses 16,438 25,962 5,267 5,286 21,705 31,248 
  
Increase (decrease) 
in net position 
before transfers 
and special item 3,910 4,906 4,180 3,124 8,090 8,030 

Transfers - 128 - (128) - - 
Special item (5,144) (7,193) - - (5,144) (7,193) 
   
Increase (Decrease) 
In Net Position (1,234) (2,159) 4,180 2,996 2,946 837 

  
Net Position, 
beginning 83,931 86,090 44,112 41,116 128,043 127,206 

  
Net Position, ending $ 82,697 $ 83,931 $ 48,292 $ 44,112 $ 130,989 $ 128,043 
 
As reflected in Table A-2, the City’s net position increased by $2,946.  Expenses exceeded 
revenues in the governmental activities by $1,234 and in the business-type activities revenues 
exceeded expenses by $4,180.  Key elements of the increases and decreases follow: 
 
 Revenues in the governmental activities decreased by approximately $10,520 in 2014 from 

2013. This is mainly due to (1) $2,948 of special assessments coming from Kachemak Drive 
Phase II Water & Sewer Project, (2) $7,491 dollars of legislative grant for the South Peninsula 
Natural Gas pipeline. 

 Expenses in the governmental activities also decreased by $9,524 for 2014 for the reason 
stated above. 

 Property taxes decreased by $133. 
 Capital grants and contributions decreased by $371  
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 Sales Taxes reflect an increase from 2013. This breakdown shows the Sales Taxes by fund to 
receive them.  Changes in sales tax dollars from 2014 to 2013 are as follows: 
 
Sales Taxes 2014 2013  Increase 
   
Fund   

General  $ 4,994 $ 4,873 $ 121 
HART – Road 1,123 1,096  27 
HART-Trail 125    122  3 
Utility(Water & Sewer – HAWSP) 1,248 1,217  31 

   
Total $ 7,490 $ 7,308 $ 182 
  

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds - The focus of the City of Homer's governmental funds is to provide 
information on short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such 
information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund 
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending 
following the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of December 31, 2014, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances 
of $19,732, a decrease of $1,910 compared to balances a year earlier. Of the ending balance, 
$5,372, or 27% is unassigned and is available to the City for future spending. Most of the remaining 
fund balance is restricted for Roads $7,538, Permanent Fund, $2,032, or assigned for future 
capital projects and other purposes $3,898; and non-spendable in the form of inventory, inter-
fund loan and prepaid items $892.  The decrease of total fund balance during the year is 
attributed to: 
 
 Utility Special Revenue Fund’s fund balance reduced by $1,205. This mainly due to debt de-

obligation of $1,580. 
 Construction of gas-line on behalf of third party caused $1,898 decrease in total 

governmental funds’ balance. 
 In the Non-major funds category, the City maintains six capital project funds (see page 59, 

60) that account for the use of intergovernmental grants, dedicated sales tax, and 
department transfers to support the construction of capital improvements. Financial 
resources in these funds are intended to eventually be totally expended once the capital 
improvements have been completed.  The Non-major funds category in which expenditures 
exceeded revenues for 2014, this category as a whole underwrote a $297 decrease in total 
fund balance.  

 In the General Fund, expenditures and transfers-out to other funds totaled $12,438 
compared to revenues and transfers-in of $12,960. The increase of $521 in the General 
Fund balance was mainly due to three reasons:(1) $207 higher than budgeted revenue 
increases, excluding PERS (budgeted Special Assessments of $60, higher than expected 
property tax of $50; sales tax was $40 more than budgeted; and remaining increases 
scattered among other revenue line items), (2) total general fund expenditures, excluding 
PERS was $225 less than budgeted, and (3) $90 budgeted transfers-out did not take place.  

 The $225 less than budgeted expenditures is primarily attributed to $81 in Information 
System projects that did not take place, with smaller differences among all departments.          
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Government Funds (General and Utility Special Revenue) Budgetary Highlights 
 
 There were no differences between the original and final budgets for the General and Utility 

Special Revenue funds. 
 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets - As detailed in Table A-3 below, the City of Homer's investment in capital assets for 
its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2014, totals $133,278 (net of 
accumulated depreciation). This amount represents a $7,660 increase over the previous year. 
 

Table A-3 
City of Homer’s Capital Assets (net of depreciation) 

 
 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total  
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 
  
Land $ 10,676 $ 10,676 $ 15,254 $ 15,254 $ 25,930 $ 25,930 
Buildings 49,647 49,622 13,035 13,035 62,682 62,657 
Improvements other 
than buildings 49,269 45,043 39,553 37,696 88,822 82,739 

Machinery and 
equipment 14,795 14,591 3,167 3,176 17,962 17,767 

Infrastructure 33,961 30,771 - - 33,961 30,771 
Construction in 
progress 1,611 4,077 10,578 4,639 12,189 8,716 

Accumulated 
depreciation (75,927) (72,052) (32,341) (30,910) (108,268) (102,962) 

  
Total Capital Assets $ 84,032 $ 82,728 $ 49,246 $ 42,890 $ 133,278 $ 125,618 
 
Major capital asset events during the 2014 year included: 
 
Capital projects completed: 
  

General Fund: 
 Spit Trail Extension  
 End of the Road Park Improvements  
 Down Town Restrooms  
 Spit Trail Boardwalk Replacement Project  
 Skyline Satellite Fire Station  
 Karen Hornaday Park Shelter Replacement  
 Karen Hornaday Park Campground/Trail Improvements  
 Bishop’s Beach Parking Lot Paving  
 Crittenden Road Improvements  
 
Utility Fund (Special Revenue Fund): 
 Sewer Treatment Plant Headworks Intake Screen Replacement  
 Wastewater Treatment Plant Headworks Improvements  
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Port & Harbor (Enterprise Fund): 
 Ramp 3 Replacement 
 DWD Trail/Cruise Ship Bus Staging Area 
 Harbor Entrance Shore Protection Improvements  

 
On-Going Projects: 

 
General Fund: 
 Waddell Way Road Improvements 
 New Ramp 5 Restroom 
 Homer Middle School Access Trail 
 Public Works Storage Building 
 
Utility Fund (Special Revenue Fund): 
 Water System/Storage Improvements (Phase I) 
 Water Treatment Plant Clarifier Skimmer Rehabilitation 
 Water Treatment Plant Paving 
 
Port & Harbor (Enterprise Fund): 
 New Harbormaster’s Office Building 
 Small Boat Harbor Float Replacement 
 Small Boat Harbor Load/Launch Ramp Replacement 
 System 5 Electrical Improvement 
 Deep Water Dock Expansion Feasibility Study 
 Demolition of Old Harbormaster’s Office Building 

 
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 5 on pages 38-40 of this 
report. 
 

Table A-4 
City of Homer’s Debt 

 
 Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total  
 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 
  
Notes payable - library $ 1,280 $ 1,325 $ - $ - $ 1,280 $ 1,325 
Notes payable – utility 12,773 15,167 - - 12,773 15,167 
Special assessment 
bond with 
government 

 commitment 12,359 8,809 - - 12,359 8,809 
General obligation 
bond payable - - 3,605 3,735 3,605 3,735 

Unamortized bond 
premium - - 445 470 445 470 

  
Total 26,412 25,301 4,050 4,205 30,462 29,506 
Compensated 
absences 729 713 199 186 928 899 

  
Total Long-Term Debt $ 27,141 $ 26,014 $ 4,249 $ 4,391 $ 31,390 $ 30,405 
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Long-term debt - At the end of the 2014 year, the City of Homer had total debt outstanding of 
$30,462 as detailed in Table A-4. This excludes $928 related to the compensated absences.    
 
The notes payables listed under Notes Payable Utility are used to add water and sewer lines and 
services to areas. Additionally, the new water treatment plant was built utilizing a loan.   Loans 
are received through Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation for 20 year periods at 1.5% 
interest.  Currently seventy-five percent of the loans are repaid by the customer through an “LID” 
(Land Improvement District).  Twenty-five percent of the loans are paid back by the City of Homer 
with designated sales tax revenues.   
 
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 6 on pages 41-44 of this 
report. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
 
The number of vacant and unfunded positions continues to be a problem. The uncertainty about 
the economy and the loss of revenue associated with the sales tax exemption for unprepared 
foods casts doubt over future revenues. The State’s uncertain fiscal situation will affect the City 
of Homer both in direct cuts and a contracting Alaskan economy that will be a result of reduced 
state spending.       
 
The Water and Sewer Utility Fund remains vulnerable because of the basic structural flaws.  The 
City owns a production and distribution system infrastructure that is very expensive to operate 
and maintain and has relatively few customers to pay for it. The City has a reliable source of funds 
to build things and expand the infrastructure (dedicated sales tax) but inadequate funds to 
maintain it all (user fees). There is intense political pressure to keep fees down even though doing 
so may not be in the best long term interest of the Fund. The Water/Sewer fund shows an excess 
of revenue over expenditures in the amount of $1,887 before capital outlays of $672 and debt 
services of $1,000 and the de-obligation of $1,580 loan causing a net decrease in Fund Balance of 
$1,365 before transfers. The Fund’s debt load is significant and will limit opportunities to finance 
new projects or expansion of the distribution and collection system for the next few years. This is 
a problem because one of the solutions to the revenue problem is to increase the number of 
customers.  
 
The Port and Harbor Enterprise Fund is showing an excess in revenues over expenditures of $804 
before depreciation due to an increase in rates which were implemented due to anticipated 
bonded projects. Additionally, there has been an increase in activity at the docks, ramps and 
tidelands.  
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Homer's finances for 
all interested parties. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the following: 
 
Finance Department 
City of Homer 
491 E. Pioneer Ave. Homer, Alaska 99603 
Telephone: (907) 235-8121 email: finance@ci.homer.ak.us 
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Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type

December 31, 2014 Activities Activities Total

Assets

Cash and investments 12,242,808$     1,588,696$     13,831,504$      

Receivables, net of allowance

  for doubtful accounts:

    Accounts 185,523            187,104          372,627             

    Sales and property taxes 1,216,489         -                    1,216,489          

    State and federal grants and loans 3,550,020         3,660,958       7,210,978          

    Assessments 5,221,628         -                    5,221,628          

    Other 271,583            -                    271,583             

Internal balances 288,921            (288,921)        -                       

Inventory                                   306,694            14,431           321,125             

Prepaid items 389,155            48,251           437,406             

Restricted cash and investments 3,302,991         293,697          3,596,688          

Capital assets not being depreciated - 

  land and construction in progress 12,287,464       25,832,002     38,119,466        

Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 71,746,210       23,414,054     95,160,264        

Total Assets 111,009,486$    54,750,272$   165,759,758$     

Liabilities

Accounts payable                          738,217$          1,024,248$     1,762,465$        

Accrued payroll and related liabilities                          236,953            39,368           276,321             

Accrued interest payable 87,174              -                    87,174               

Prepaid rentals and deposits 59,856              837,534          897,390             

Unearned revenue 48,947              18,000           66,947               

Noncurrent liabilities:

  Due within one year:

    Accrued leave 20,000              14,398           34,398               

    Notes payable 915,622            -                    915,622             

    General obligation bonds payable -                      130,000          130,000             

  Due in more than one year:

    Accrued leave 708,707            184,781          893,488             

    Notes payable 13,137,391       -                    13,137,391        

    General obligation bonds payable including bond premium -                      3,920,054       3,920,054          

    Special assessment bond payable with government commitment

     to Kenai Peninsula Borough 12,359,388       -                    12,359,388        

    Unearned revenue -                      289,657          289,657             

Total Liabilities 28,312,255       6,458,040       34,770,295        

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets    58,894,875       45,489,699     104,384,574      

Restricted for:

  Roads and trails 7,538,071         -                    7,538,071          

  Special service district 76,421              -                    76,421               

Unrestricted 16,187,864       2,802,533       18,990,397        

Total Net Position 82,697,231       48,292,232     130,989,463      

Total Liabilities and Net Position 111,009,486$    54,750,272$   165,759,758$     

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Statement of Net Position

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit A-2

Fees, Operating Capital

Fines & Grants & Grants & Govern- Business-

Charges for Contri- Contri- mental type

Expenses Services butions butions Activities Activities Total

Activities

Governmental:

  General government 2,337,006$      675,783$         394,781$         302,864$         (963,578)$       -$                   (963,578)$       

  Public safety 4,160,799       351,816          1,362,721       -                     (2,446,262)      -                     (2,446,262)      

  Public works 2,402,560       -                     382,204          -                     (2,020,356)      -                     (2,020,356)      

  Library 1,026,662       -                     75,670            1,226,416       275,424          -                     275,424          

  Airport 282,404          126,774          -                     -                     (155,630)         -                     (155,630)         

  Parks and recreation 760,178          156,574          13,302            -                     (590,302)         -                     (590,302)         

  Community services 252,833          40,280            2,533              -                     (210,020)         -                     (210,020)         

  Water 2,660,899       2,023,009       -                     157,570          (480,320)         -                     (480,320)         

  Sewer 2,187,873       1,743,301       -                     157,570          (287,002)         -                     (287,002)         

  Unallocated interest 366,493          -                     -                     -                     (366,493)         -                     (366,493)         

Total Governmental

   Activities 16,437,707      5,117,537       2,231,211       1,844,420       (7,244,539)      -                     (7,244,539)      

Business-type - 

  Port and harbor 5,266,806       4,197,852       299,245          4,732,718       -                     3,963,009       3,963,009       

Total 21,704,513$    9,315,389$      2,530,456$      6,577,138$      (7,244,539)      3,963,009       (3,281,530)      

General Revenues

  Property taxes 3,091,791$      -                     3,091,791       

  Sales taxes 7,488,925       -                     7,488,925       

  Grants and entitlements not   

    restricted to a specific purpose 392,232          58,621            450,853          

  Investment income 144,146          28,690            172,836          

  Other 37,511            130,406          167,917          

Total General Revenues 11,154,605      217,717          11,372,322      

Special item - construction of gas pipeline on behalf

  of third parties (5,143,546)      -                     (5,143,546)      

Change in Net Position (1,233,480)      4,180,726       2,947,246       

Net Position, beginning, as restated 83,930,711      44,111,506      128,042,217    

Net Position, ending 82,697,231$    48,292,232$    130,989,463$  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

City of Homer, Alaska

Program Revenues

Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Changes in Net Position

Net (Expense) Revenue and
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Exhibit B-1

Major Funds

Gas HART

Utility Line Roads Total

Special Capital Capital Nonmajor Governmental

December 31, 2014 General Revenue Project Project Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and investments 386,625$       1,380,183$    -$                   6,823,357$      2,739,904$      11,330,069$    

Receivables, net of allowance:

   Accounts -                    185,523         -                     -                     -                     185,523           

   Property taxes 77,008           -                    -                     -                     -                     77,008            

   Sales taxes 759,645         189,919         -                     170,922           18,995            1,139,481        

   Assessments 407,314         4,814,314      -                     -                     -                     5,221,628        

   State and federal grants and loans -                    -                    3,550,020        -                     -                     3,550,020        

   Other 37,262           -                    -                     -                     234,321           271,583           

   Interfund loan 300,000         -                    -                     -                     19,420            319,420           

Due from other funds 5,240,998      -                    -                     -                     -                     5,240,998        

Inventory 52,312           254,382         -                     -                     -                     306,694           

Prepaid items 234,289         31,712           -                     -                     -                     266,001           

Restricted cash and investments -                    -                    1,273,602        -                     2,029,389        3,302,991        

Total Assets 7,495,453$    6,856,033$    4,823,622$      6,994,279$      5,042,029$      31,211,416$    

Liabilities

Accounts payable 213,661$       148,806$       117$               -$                   220,097$         582,681$         

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 196,132         40,821           -                     -                     -                     236,953           

Customer deposits 16,204           43,652           -                     -                     -                     59,856            

Unearned revenue 5,414             -                    -                     -                     43,533            48,947            

Due to other funds -                    -                    5,104,918        -                     136,080           5,240,998        

Total Liabilities 431,411         233,279         5,105,035        -                     399,710           6,169,435        

Deferred Inflows

Deferred property taxes 78,695           -                    -                     -                     -                     78,695            

Deferred assessments 416,314         4,814,887      -                     -                     -                     5,231,201        

Total Deferred Inflows 495,009         4,814,887      -                     -                     -                     5,309,896        

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 926,420         5,048,166      5,105,035        -                     399,710           11,479,331      

Fund Balances

Nonspendable:

Inventory 52,312           254,382         -                     -                     -                     306,694           

Prepaid items 234,289         31,712           -                     -                     -                     266,001           

Interfund loan 300,000         -                    -                     -                     19,420            319,420           

Restricted - roads and trails

   Roads and trails -                    -                    -                     6,994,279        543,792           7,538,071        

   Special service district 76,421           -                    -                     -                     -                     76,421            

Committed - Permanent fund -                    -                    -                     -                     2,031,828        2,031,828        

Assigned:

Library -                    -                    -                     -                     32,593            32,593            

Public Safety -                    -                    -                     -                     97,530            97,530            

Community schools -                    -                    -                     -                     492                 492                 

Sustainability -                    -                    -                     -                     14,780            14,780            

Water and sewer -                    1,521,773      -                     -                     -                     1,521,773        

PERS benefits 171,314         -                    -                     -                     14,665            185,979           

Capital and land -                    -                    -                     -                     1,968,241        1,968,241        

Unassigned (deficit) 5,734,697      -                    (281,413)         -                     (81,022)           5,372,262        

Total Fund Balances 6,569,033      1,807,867      (281,413)         6,994,279        4,642,319        19,732,085      

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and

   Fund Balances 7,495,453$    6,856,033$    4,823,622$      6,994,279$      5,042,029$      31,211,416$    

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit B-2

Total fund balances for governmental funds 19,732,085$     

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the

   Statement of Net Position is different because:

      Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

         resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

         These assets, net of accumulated depreciation consist of:

            Land and land improvements 10,676,104$    

            Construction in progress 1,611,360       

            Buildings 49,647,339      

            Improvements other than buildings 49,269,066      

            Machinery and equipment 14,795,594      

            Infrastructure 33,961,628      

            Accumulated depreciation (75,927,417)     

      Total Capital Assets 84,033,674       

      Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

         expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

            Delinquent property taxes receivable 78,695            

            Special assessments not yet due 5,231,201       

      Total Other Long-Term Assets 5,309,896        

      Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the cost of

         certain activities, such as insurance, to individual funds.  A portion

         of the assets and liabilities of the internal service funds is included

         in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 849,858           

      Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, bonds payable, and accrued

         leave, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are 

         not reported as fund liabilities.  These liabilities consist of:

            Accrued interest (87,174)           

            Note payable to Kenai Peninsula Borough (12,359,388)     

            Notes payable (14,053,013)     

            Accrued leave (728,707)         

      Total Long-Term Liabilities (27,228,282)     

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities 82,697,231$     

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit B-3

Gas HART

Utility Line Roads Total

Special Capital Capital Nonmajor Governmental

Year Ended December 31, 2014 General Revenue Project Project Funds Funds

Revenues

   Property taxes 3,119,599$     -$                   -$                 -$                -$                   3,119,599$      

   Sales taxes 4,993,941       1,247,502       -                  1,122,738    124,744          7,488,925        

   Licenses and permits 27,931           -                     -                  -                  -                     27,931            

   Intergovernmental 2,580,068       618,004          -                  -                  1,230,067       4,428,139        

   Charges for services 2,125,051       3,623,327       -                  -                  -                     5,748,378        

   Special assessments 59,740           438,088          -                  -                  -                     497,828           

   Investment income 30,830           3,845              3,505            18,071         87,895            144,146           

   Fines and forfeitures 20,142           -                     -                  -                  -                     20,142            

   Donations -                    -                     -                  -                  9,524              9,524              

   Other 2,368             37,511            -                  30,200            70,079            

Total Revenues 12,959,670     5,968,277       3,505            1,140,809    1,482,430       21,554,691      

Expenditures

   Current:

      General government 3,507,640       -                     -                  93,476         105,671          3,706,787        

      Public safety 4,708,617       -                     -                  -                  9,356              4,717,973        

      Public works 2,183,582       -                     -                  -                  -                     2,183,582        

      Library 847,655         -                     -                  -                  -                     847,655           

      Airport 221,302         -                     -                  -                  -                     221,302           

      Parks and recreation 409,211         -                     -                  -                  -                     409,211           

      Community services 237,507         -                     -                  -                  15,326            252,833           

      Water -                    2,283,417       -                  -                  -                     2,283,417        

      Sewer -                    1,798,228       -                  -                  -                     1,798,228        

   Debt service: -                  

      Principal 45,149           812,933          -                  -                  -                     858,082           

      Interest 54,675           186,987          307,933        -                  -                     549,595           

      Debt deobligation -                    1,580,014       -                  -                  -                     1,580,014        

   Capital outlay -                    671,683          -                  78,845         1,711,859       2,462,387        

Total Expenditures 12,215,338     7,333,262       307,933        172,321       1,842,212       21,871,066      

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

  Expenditures 744,332         (1,364,985)      (304,428)       968,488       (359,782)         (316,375)          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

   Issuance of special assessment bond

    Kenai Peninsula Borough -                    -                     3,550,020     -                  -                     3,550,020        

   Transfers in -                    180,499          -                  -                  62,884            243,383           

   Transfers out (223,083)        (20,300)           -                  -                  -                     (243,383)          

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (223,083)        160,199          3,550,020     -                  62,884            3,550,020        

Special item - construction of gas pipeline

   on behalf of third parties -                    -                     5,143,546     -                  -                     5,143,546        

Net Change in Fund Balances 521,249         (1,204,786)      (1,897,954)    968,488       (296,898)         (1,909,901)       

Fund Balances, beginning, as restated 6,047,784       3,012,653       1,616,541     6,025,791    4,939,217       21,641,986      

Fund Balances (Deficit), ending 6,569,033$     1,807,867$      (281,413)$     6,994,279$   4,642,319$      19,732,085$    

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Major Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit)
Governmental Funds

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit B-4

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (1,909,901)$     

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 

   Statement of Activities is different because:

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  

      However on the Statement of Activities, depreciation expense 

      is recognized to allocate the cost of these items over their 

      estimated useful lives.  This is the amount by which capital outlays

       ($5,229,738) exceeded depreciation ($3,875,745) and loss on disposal ($47,819). 1,306,170        

    Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current 

      financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.  

      This is the amount of the decrease in other long-term assets. (325,281)          

    Issuance of long-term debt ($3,550,020) provides current financial 

      resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 

      principal of the long-term debt ($2,438,739) consumes current 

      financial resources in governmental funds.  Neither of these 

      transactions has any effect on net position.  (1,111,081)       

    Accrued interest on long-term debt is not reported in the funds until

      the liability matures.  This is the decrease in accrued interest payable. 182,259           

    Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not 

      require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, 

      are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  This is the

      amount of increase in accrued leave. (15,988)           

    Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost

      of health insurance and accrued leave cash-outs to individual funds.  

      A portion of the net income of these activities is reported with 

      governmental activities. 640,342           

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (1,233,480)$     

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit C-1

Major Internal

Enterprise Fund Service

December 31, 2014 Port of Homer Funds

Assets

Current Assets

  Cash and investments 1,588,696$              912,739$        

  Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 187,104                  -                    

  State and federal grants receivable 3,660,958               -                    

  Inventory 14,431                    -                    

  Prepaid items 48,251                    123,154          

Total Current Assets 5,499,440               1,035,893       

Noncurrent Assets

  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 49,246,056              -                    

  Restricted cash and investments 293,697                  -                    

Total Noncurrent Assets 49,539,753              -                    

Total Assets 55,039,193$            1,035,893$     

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

   Accounts payable 1,024,248$              155,536$        

   Accrued payroll and related liabilities 39,368                    -                    

   Accrued leave 14,398                    -                    

   General obligation bonds payable 130,000                  -                    

   Prepaid rentals and deposits 837,534                  -                    

   Unearned lease revenue 18,000                    -                    

   Unearned grant revenue 55,657                    -                    

   Interfund loan 3,291                      -                    

Total Current Liabilities 2,122,496               155,536          

Noncurrent Liabilities, Net of Current Portion

  Unearned lease revenue 234,000                  -                    

  Interfund loan 316,129                  -                    

  General obligation bonds payable including bond premium 3,920,054               -                    

  Accrued leave 184,781                  -                    

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,654,964               -                    

Total Liabilities 6,777,460               155,536          

Net Position

  Net investment in capital assets 45,489,699              -                    

  Unrestricted 2,772,034               880,357          

Total Net Position 48,261,733              880,357          

Total Liabilities and Net Position 55,039,193$            1,035,893$     

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal 

  service fund activities related to enterprise fund 30,499                    

Net Position of Business-Type Activities 48,292,232$            

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit C-2

Major Internal
Enterprise Fund Service

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Port of Homer Funds

Operating Revenues
Port and harbor charges for services 4,197,852$          -$                       
Interfund charges -                         1,992,762            

   Employee health contributions -                         217,613               
Refunds and reinsurance -                         394,578               

Total Operating Revenues 4,197,852            2,604,953            

Operating Expenses
Operations 2,425,244            151,406               
Administration 1,484,844            93,418                
Depreciation 1,489,777            -                         
Claims -                         1,216,168            
Employee incentive fees -                         68,287                
Insurance premiums -                         301,444               

Total Operating Expenses 5,399,865            1,830,723            

Operating income (loss) (1,202,013)           774,230               

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 28,690                -                         
State PERS relief 299,245               -                         
Other income 129,956               -                         
Cruise ship tax 450                     -                         

   Fish tax 58,621                -                         
   Miscellaneous repairs (829)                    -                         

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 516,133               -                         

Income (loss) before capital contributions (685,880)              774,230               

Capital contributions 4,732,718            -                         

Change in net position 4,046,838            774,230               

Net Position, beginning 44,214,895          106,127               

Net Position, ending 48,261,733          880,357$             

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal 
  service fund activities related to enterprise fund 133,888               

Change in Net Position of Business-Type Activities 4,180,726$          

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit C-3

Major Internal

Enterprise Fund Service

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Port of Homer Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

   Receipts from customers and users 4,418,382$           -$                   

   Receipts from interfund services provided and 

      employee contributions -                          2,210,375       

   Reciept of refunds and reinsurance payments -                          394,578          

   Payments to suppliers (1,726,502)            -                    

   Payments to employees (1,487,223)            (219,693)         

   Payments for insurance, claims, and 

     administration -                          (1,829,755)      

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,204,657             555,505          

Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities

   Decrease in due to other funds -                          (15,140)          

   Nonoperating grants, cruise ship tax, and fish tax received 59,071                  -                    

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities 59,071                  (15,140)          

Cash Flows for Capital and Related Financing Activities

   Principal paid on long-term debt (130,000)               -                    

   Interest paid on long-term debt (158,650)               -                    

   Capital contributions received 2,180,971             -                    

   Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (7,711,704)            -                    

   Decrease in interfund loan 296,708                -                    

Net cash flows for capital and related

  financing activities (5,522,675)            -                    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

   Investment income received 28,690                  -                    

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments (4,230,257)            540,365          

Cash and Investments, beginning 6,112,650             372,374          

Cash and Investments, ending 1,882,393$           912,739$        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit C-3, continued

Major

Enterprise Fund Internal

 Service

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Port of Homer Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Flows from (for) Operating Activities

Operating Income (loss) (1,202,013)$        774,230$        

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 1,489,777           -                     

Noncash expense - PERS relief 299,245              -                     

Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts (12,518)              -                     

Amortization of deferred lease revenue (18,000)              -                     

Miscellaneous nonoperating revenues 129,127              -                     

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable 37,337               -                     

Inventory 1,216                 -                     

Prepaid items 356                    (123,154)         

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable 379,317              (95,571)           

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 3,065                 -                     

Unearned grant revenue 33,947               -                     

Accrued leave 13,164               -                     

Prepaid rentals and deposits 50,637               -                     

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,204,657$         555,505$        

Interest capitalized 133,924$            -$                   

Capital contributions receivable at year end 3,660,958$         1,109,211$     

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows, continued
Proprietary Funds

City of Homer, Alaska
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City of Homer, Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements  
December 31, 2014 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization and Services Provided 
The City of Homer, Alaska was incorporated March 31, 1964 as a first-class city and operates under a 
Council-Manager form of government.  The City provides the full range of municipal services as 
provided for by Alaska Statute. This includes police and fire protection, ambulance and emergency 
medical service, water and wastewater service, library, parks and recreation, public improvements, 
planning and zoning, port and harbor, airport facilities, and general administrative services. 
 
Scope and Presentation 
 
The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to governmental units. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The City has reviewed the standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) and determined that the City has no component units. 
 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City.  In general, the effect of interfund 
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the double-counting of internal 
activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on fees and 
charges to external parties.    
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements.  
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants 
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period.  For this purpose, the City generally considers all revenues except reimbursement grants to 
be available if they are collected within 60 days after year end.  Reimbursement grants are 
considered available if they are collected within one year of the end of the current fiscal period.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are 
recorded only to the extent they have matured. 
 
Property and sales taxes, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, and investment income 
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have 
been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of special assessments 
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue 
in the current period.  Most other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when received by the government. 
 
The City reports the following major funds: 

 
Major governmental funds: 
 The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be reported in another fund. 
 
 The Utility Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities of the water and sewer facility 
operations including collection and treatment of sewage, and distribution and transmission of 
water. 

 
The Gas Line Capital Project Fund accounts for all activities related to the construction of the gas 
line.   
 
 The HART Roads Capital Project Fund accounts for operating grants and capital improvement 
projects for streets and sidewalks.   
 
Major proprietary fund: 
 The Port of Homer Enterprise Fund accounts for all activities related to the operation of the City’s 
port and harbor. 
 

The City also reports Internal Service Funds which account for the activities relating to the City’s self-
insured health benefit plan and accrued leave cash-outs.  These funds report revenues charged to the 
other funds based on estimated amounts to cover actual costs of benefits. 
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are allocated administration fees and charges 
between the enterprise fund and the various other funds and departments.  Elimination of these 
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions 
concerned. 
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Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues.  In addition, general revenues include all taxes (including 
the City’s restricted sales taxes), investment income, and State entitlement revenues. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues 
of the Port of Homer Enterprise Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating 
expenses for the enterprise fund include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and 
depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
Revenues reported in the Utility Special Revenue Fund are comprised primarily of user charges for 
services.  However, the fund also receives significant funding from sales tax.  Lesser amounts are 
reflected from grants and local assessments.  All revenues reported in the fund are committed to the 
Utility service, including operations, maintenance, and debt service. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
The City Council is required to pass an appropriation ordinance for the General Fund and Utility 
Special Revenue Fund which becomes the expenditure budget for each fund for the fiscal year.  The 
City Council may pass subsequent supplemental appropriations which are added to the expenditure 
budget. Expenditures may not legally exceed the fund appropriations.  The City Manager may transfer 
amounts between departments within a fund or between cost centers within a department’s budget 
classification.  Appropriations on annual budgets lapse at year-end. The City’s legally prescribed 
budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles and, 
accordingly, where budgetary data are presented, the budget and actual information conform to the 
same basis of accounting. 
 
As shown in Exhibits D-1 and D-2, for 2014 the General Fund and the Utility Special Revenue Fund 
reported expenditures in excess of the amounts appropriated.  For the General Fund, the excess 
expenditures are tied almost exclusively to the PERS on-behalf amount which has no effect on fund 
balance (see Pension Footnote for additional information).  For the Utility Fund, the excess 
expenditures is tied primarily to the deobligation of loan funding (essentially, a write off of loans 
receivable) recognized as expenditure in the current year, along with no budget reported for capital 
activity.  The PERS on-behalf amount is also affecting this schedule. 
 
Encumbrance accounting is employed during the year under which purchase orders, contracts and 
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of 
the applicable appropriation, as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund.  
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as appropriate constraints of fund balance if 
they meet the definitions and criteria described later in these footnotes. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
A central treasury is used to account for all the City’s cash and investments to maximize interest 
income.  Investment earnings are allocated to various funds based on average central treasury 
balances. 
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For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City has defined cash and cash equivalents as the 
demand deposits and all investments maintained in the central treasury, regardless of maturity 
period, since the various funds use the central treasury essentially as a demand deposit account. 
 
Investments are recorded at fair value. 
 
Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the year are referred to as either “due to / from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or “advances to / from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).  
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to / from other funds.”  Any 
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 
Property Taxes 
 
Property taxes are a lien on the assessed value of taxable property as of January 1.  Pursuant to 
Alaska Statute, Title 29.45.240, the City establishes the mill rate levy by June 15.  The City is located 
within the Kenai Peninsula Borough, which acts as the City’s agent in the billing and collection of 
property taxes.  Tax bills for one-half of the taxes are mailed prior to July 1 and are payable on 
August 15; tax bills for the second half of the taxes are mailed by October 1 and are payable on 
November 15.  City property tax revenues in the fund financial statements are recognized in the 
fiscal year in which they are collectible and available (collected within sixty days after year-end) to 
finance expenditures of the fiscal period. 
 
At December 31, the delinquent real and personal taxes not currently available are reflected as 
deferred inflows of the General Fund. 
 
Unbilled Service Revenues 
 
Utility revenues are based on cycle billings rendered monthly to customers.  As a result of this cycle 
billing method, the utilities do not accrue revenues at the end of any fiscal period for services sold 
but not billed at such date.  The Port of Homer bills annual moorage charges in advance, which are 
presented as unearned revenue at year-end. 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventory of the Enterprise Fund is carried at average cost and is charged to expense in accordance 
with the consumption method of accounting for inventory. 
 
Supplies or materials acquired by governmental fund types are recorded at cost (specific 
identification) and are charged as expenditures as used in accordance with the consumption method 
of accounting for inventory.  Accordingly, reported inventory for governmental fund types are equally 
offset by nonspendable fund balance. 
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Prepaid Items 
 
Prepaid items primarily represent costs of insurance and similar services allocated to succeeding 
periods and rents paid in advance of the period to which they apply.  The City’s policy is to charge 
such costs to the period benefited.  Accordingly, reported prepaid items for governmental fund types 
are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads and 
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an 
initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such 
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  In the 
case of the initial capitalization of infrastructure assets, the City chose to include all such items, 
regardless of their acquisition date.  
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included 
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Interest capitalized in 2014 was $133,924. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend the useful life of the asset are not capitalized. 
 
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Years 
  
Buildings and improvements 30-40 
System infrastructure 15-40 
Machinery and equipment 5 
Infrastructure 20-30 
 
Accrued Leave 
 
The City allows employees to accumulate earned but unused personal leave benefits up to a 
maximum accumulation of 720 hours.  All personal leave is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in the 
governmental fund financial statements only if they have matured (e.g. the employee has terminated 
employment). 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
In the government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium, discount, or deferred loss.   
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, 
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of the debt issued is 
reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or 
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Fund Balances 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five 
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. 
The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are either (a) not in spendable form—prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact.  
 
The spendable portion of fund balances comprises the remaining four classifications: restricted, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned. 
 
Restricted fund balance – This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either 
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 
Committed fund balance – These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal ordinances of the City Council—the government’s highest level of 
decision making authority. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless 
the City Council removes the specified use through ordinance. This classification also includes 
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically 
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.  
 
Assigned fund balance – This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s “intent” 
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has 
the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances include 
all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds, other 
than the General Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are neither restricted nor 
committed.  
 
Unassigned fund balance – This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It 
is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.  
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources—committed, assigned, and 
unassigned—in order as needed. 
 
Comparative Data 
 
Comparative data for the prior year have been presented in some of the individual fund statements in 
order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of the City.  
Certain amounts in the prior year data have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s 
presentation. 
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2. Cash and Investments 
 
The City of Homer utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds.  Each fund's portion 
of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet as "cash and investments" or in the case of 
“negative cash,” is included in "due to other funds."  
 
Reconciliation of Deposit and Investment Balances 
 
The following is a reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances to the financial 
statements as of December 31, 2014. 
 
  
  
Bank deposits  $ 1,320,732 
Investments 16,107,460 

 $ 17,428,192 
  
Cash and investments $ 13,831,504 
Restricted cash and investments  3,596,688 

 $ 17,428,192 
 
Restricted cash and investments primarily represent funds set aside for capital projects, including 
unspent bond proceeds, or mandatory bond reserve accounts. 
 
General Investments 
 
Investment Policy 
The City’s investment policy authorizes investment in the following: 

 
1. U.S. Treasury securities; 
2. Other obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities; 
3. Repurchase agreements of acceptable securities listed in (1) or (2) above which meet a 

margin requirement of 102%; 
4. Units of the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool; 
5. Certificates of deposit; 
6. Uncollateralized deposits to the extent that the deposits are insured by the FDIC or FSLIC; 
7. Taxable bonds or notes; graded AA or higher; 
8. Commercial paper; graded A1 or higher; 
9. Bankers’ acceptances; rated at least AA; and 
10. Money market mutual funds. 

 
Investments in taxable bonds and notes, commercial paper, or bankers’ acceptances must meet a 
minimum rating as determined by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard and Poor’s. 
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Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  Aside from the investment policy stated above, the 
City has no specific policy with respect to interest rate risk.    
 
Investment maturities at December 31, 2014 are as follows: 
 
 Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - 5 5 - 10 
  
U.S. government agencies:  
FHLB $ 101,616 $ - $ 101,616 $ - 
FHLM 1,983,397 - 1,983,397 - 
FNMA 76,290 25,419 50,871 - 

Total U.S. government agencies 2,161,303 25,419 2,135,884 - 
Corporate bonds 232,633 - 179,214 53,419 
Foreign bonds 76,267 50,820 25,447 - 
Pooled investments (AMLIP) 6,463,860 6,463,860 - - 

Total Subject to Interest Rate 
Risk 8,934,063 $ 6,540,099 $ 2,340,545 $ 53,419 

Certificates of deposit 5,075,428
Money market 639,142
Mutual funds 1,458,827
 
Total Investments $ 16,107,460
 
Credit Risk 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.  The City’s investment policy specifies the types of investments which 
can be purchased, in order to limit credit risk, as described above.  All of the U.S. government 
agency investments are rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s.  
 
Pooled investments are invested with the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool, Inc. (AMLIP).  The 
AMLIP is an external investment pool which is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s for credit risk 
purposes.  Alaska Statute 37.23 establishes regulatory oversight of the Pool.  The law sets forth 
numerous requirements regarding authorized investments and reporting.  At December 31, 2014, the 
share value of investments in the AML pool is approximately equal to fair value. 
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3. Accounts Receivable, Valuation Allowances, Deferred Inflows and Unearned 
Revenues 

 
The City maintains accounts receivable balances of which a portion is reserved as an allowance for 
doubtful accounts.  At December 31, 2014, receivables for the City’s individual major funds and 
nonmajor and internal service funds in the aggregate, including applicable allowances for 
uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

 General

Utility 
Special

Revenue

Gas 
 Line 

 Capital 
 Project

HART 
Roads 

Capital 
Project

Port of 
Homer 

Enterprise
Nonmajor and 

Other Funds Totals 
  
Receivables:  
Accounts $ - $ 260,955 $ - $ - $ 215,238 $ - $ 476,193 
Sales taxes 759,645 189,919 - 170,922 - 18,995 1,139,481 
Property taxes 82,243 - - - - - 82,243 
State and federal 
grants and loans - - 3,550,020 - 3,660,958 - 7,210,978 

Special assessments 407,314 4,814,314 - - - - 5,221,628 
Other 366,466 - - - - 253,741 620,207 

  
Total receivables 1,615,668 5,265,188 3,550,020 170,922 3,876,196 272,736 14,750,730 
Less allowance for 
uncollectibles  (34,439) (75,432) - - (28,134) - (138,005) 

  
Net Receivables $1,581,229 $5,189,756 $3,550,020 $ 170,922 $ 3,848,062 $ 272,736 $ 14,612,725 

 
At December 31, 2014, the various components of deferred inflows and unearned revenue reported 
in the governmental funds were as follows: 
 
Deferred Inflows   
  
Delinquent property taxes receivable – General Fund $ 78,695 
Special assessments not yet due:  

General Fund 416,314 
Utility Special Revenue Fund 4,814,887 

  
Total Deferred Inflows  $ 5,309,896 
 
Unearned Revenue  
  
Grant drawdowns prior to meeting all eligibility requirements:  

General Fund $ 5,414 
Other funds 28,970 

Other unearned revenue 14,563 
  
Total Unearned Revenue $ 48,947 
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4. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 
 
A schedule of interfund balances and transfers for the year ended December 31, 2014 follows.  
Interfund transfers are routinely recorded throughout the year and are typically to fund capital 
depreciation reserves and other operating subsidies. 
 
Due from Other Funds  
  
Due to General Fund from:  

Gas Line Capital Project Fund $ 5,104,918 
Nonmajor governmental funds 136,080 

  
Total Due from Other Funds $ 5,240,998 
  
Transfers  
  
From General Fund to:  

Utility Special Revenue Fund $ 180,499 
Nonmajor governmental funds 42,584 

From Utility Special Revenue Fund to  
Nonmajor governmental funds 20,300 

  
Total Transfers to Other Funds $ 243,383 
 
Interfund Loan 
 
In 2011 the City underwent an extensive energy audit with the goal of identifying areas for energy 
savings and efficiencies.  Numerous minor upgrades or repairs were conducted in this effort.  Most of 
these costs were funded by fund balances set aside in the prior year along with grant funds.  The City 
approved and recorded an interfund loan from the Energy Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund to the 
Port of Homer Enterprise Fund in the amount of $29,294 to fund a portion of the Port related 
upgrades.  The Port will repay the loan in $3,291 annual installments over nine years.  The loan had a 
balance of $19,420 as of December 31, 2014.   
 
In 2014 the General Fund loaned $300,000 to the Port Fund in order to complete the financing 
package related to the Port and Harbor Building upgrade project.  The loan bears interest at 2% per 
year payable over five years.  At December 31, 2014 the outstanding balance was $300,000. 
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5. Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 follows: 
 

Governmental activities 

Balance
January 1,

2014

Additions 
and Reclass-

ifications

Deletions and 
Reclass-

ifications

Balance
December 31, 

2014 
  
Capital assets not being 
depreciated:  
Land and land 
improvements $ 10,676,104 $ - $ - $ 10,676,104 

Construction in progress 4,076,617 2,123,510 (4,588,767) 1,611,360 
   
Total assets not being 
depreciated 14,752,721 2,123,510 (4,588,767) 12,287,464 

   
Capital assets being 
depreciated:   
Buildings 49,621,871 25,468 - 49,647,339 
Improvements other than 
buildings 45,042,794 4,226,272 - 49,269,066 

Machinery and equipment  14,591,184 204,410 - 14,795,594 
Infrastructure 30,770,602 3,238,845 (47,819) 33,961,628 

   
Total assets being 
depreciated 140,026,451 7,694,995 (47,819) 147,673,627 
   
Less accumulated 
depreciation for:   
Buildings 28,102,380 756,358 - 28,858,738 
Improvements other than 
buildings 19,901,355 1,554,303 - 21,455,658 

Machinery and equipment  8,934,522 723,707 - 9,658,229 
Infrastructure 15,113,412 841,380 - 15,954,792 

   
Total accumulated 
depreciation 72,051,669 3,875,748 - 75,927,417 

   
Total assets being 
depreciated, net 67,974,782 3,819,247 (47,819) 71,746,210 

  
Governmental Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 82,727,503 $ 5,942,757 $ (4,636,586) $ 84,033,674 

 
  

65



City of Homer, Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
 
 

39 

Business-type activities 

Balance
January 1,

2014

Additions and 
Reclass-

ifications

Deletions and 
Reclass-

ifications

Balance
December 31, 

2014 
  
Capital assets not being 
depreciated:  
Land and land 
improvements $ 15,254,041 $ - $ - $ 15,254,041 

Construction in progress 4,639,411 6,493,707 (555,157) 10,577,961 
   
Total assets not being 
depreciated 19,893,452 6,493,707 (555,157) 25,832,002 

   
Capital assets being 
depreciated:   
Buildings 13,034,836 - - 13,034,836 
Improvements other than 
buildings 37,695,709 1,857,149 - 39,552,858 

Machinery and equipment  3,176,133 49,929 (58,846) 3,167,216 
   
Total assets being 
depreciated 53,906,678 1,907,078 (58,846) 55,754,910 
   
Less accumulated 
depreciation for:   
Buildings 8,460,697 293,349 - 8,754,046 
Improvements other than 
buildings 19,594,478 1,120,037 - 20,714,515 

Machinery and equipment  2,854,750 76,391 (58,846) 2,872,295 
   
Total accumulated 
depreciation 30,909,925 1,489,777 (58,846) 32,340,856 

   
Total capital assets being 
depreciated, net 22,996,753 417,301 - 23,414,054 

  
Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets, Net $ 42,890,205 $ 6,911,008 $ (555,157) $ 49,246,056 
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Year Ended December 31, 2014 Depreciation 

Governmental activities  
General government $ 191,662 
Public safety 307,627 
Public works 1,028,881 
Library 233,895 
Airport 72,096 
Parks and recreation  398,176 
Water utility 1,071,213 
Sewer utility 572,198 
  
Total Depreciation Expense – Governmental Activities $ 3,875,748 

Total Depreciation Expense – Business-type activities  
Port and harbor $ 1,489,777 
 
The Port of Homer Enterprise Fund received a building from the State of Alaska in 1993 in exchange 
for the use of land by the State Ferry System until the year 2031.  The building houses the Port 
Maintenance Shop.  The value of the building and related unearned revenue are as follows: 
 
  
  
Original cost assigned to building $ 630,000 
Revenue recognized on cumulative basis (378,000) 

 $ 252,000 

Current unearned revenue $ 18,000 
Noncurrent unearned revenue 234,000 
  
Total Unearned Lease Revenue $ 252,000 
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6. Long-Term Debt 
 
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended December 
31, 2014: 
 

Governmental activities 

Balance
January 1,

2014 Additions Retired

Balance 
December 31, 

2014
Due Within 

One Year 
  
Notes payable:  

$1,700,000 USDA library note 
payable, due in annual 
installments of $99,824, 
including interest at 4.125% 
through September 2033 $ 1,325,451 $ - $ 45,149 $ 1,280,302 $ 47,012 

  
$3,462,403 2002 Sewer Utility 
Alaska Clean Water loan, due 
in annual installments of 
$121,973 plus interest at 
1.5% through August 18, 2025 1,463,668 - 121,973 1,341,695 121,973 

  
$3,389,321 2002 Water Utility 
Alaska Drinking Water loan, 
due in annual installments of 
$143,078 plus interest at 
1.5% through August 18, 2025 1,716,930 - 143,077 1,573,853 143,078 

  
$2,100,000 (maximum) 2012 
Sewer Utility Alaska Clean 
Water loan, due in annual 
installments of $79,587 plus 
interest at 1.5% 1,512,145 - 79,586 1,432,559 79,587 

  
$3,250,000 (reduced to 
$1,086,870 in 2014) Sewer 
Utility Alaska Clean Water 
loan, $1,158,446 deobligated 
in 2014; due in annual 
installments of $54,344 plus 
interest at 1.5% 2,245,316 - 1,158,446 1,086,870 54,344 

  
$2,150,000 (maximum) 2012 
Water Utility Alaska Drinking 
Water loan, due in annual 
installments of $117,832 
including interest at 1.5% 
through August 18, 2032 1,935,520 - 88,799 1,846,721 90,131 
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Governmental activities 

Balance 
January 1,

2014 Additions Retired

Balance 
December 31, 

2014
Due Within 

One Year 
  
Notes payable, continued:  

$470,000 (maximum) 2006 
Water Utility Alaska Drinking 
Water loan, this loan was 
deobligated in 

  2014 $ 422,412 $ - $ 422,412 $ - $ - 
  
$8,000,000 (maximum) 2006 
Water Utility Alaska Drinking 
Water loan, due in annual 
installments of $364,001, 
plus interest at 1.5% through 
December 28, 2029 5,824,024 - 364,002 5,460,022 364,001 

  
$148,047 2003 Sewer Utility 
Alaska Clean Water loan, due 
in annual installments of 
$15,496 plus interest at 1.5% 
through August 28, 2016 46,487 - 15,496 30,991 15,496 

  
$12,700,000 (maximum) 
special assessment bond 
payable to the Kenai 
Peninsula Borough in two 
payments of interest only 
April 1, 2014 and April 1, 
2015 and ten equal principal 
and interest  payments 
beginning April 1, 2016, 
interest at 4% through April 
1, 2025 8,809,368 3,550,020 - 12,359,388 - 

  
Accrued leave  ** 712,719 15,988 - 728,707 20,000 
  
Total Governmental Activities 
Long-Term Liabilities $ 26,014,040 $ 3,566,008 $ 2,438,940 $ 27,141,108 $ 935,620 

 
** Due to a computer processing error, the amount of leave earned and used during 2014 is not available so the net 
difference has been reported. 
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Business-type Activities 

Balance
January 1,

2014 Additions Retired

Balance 
December 31, 

2014
Due Within 

One Year 
  
$3,375,000 Series 2013 
Harbor General Obligation 
Bonds, due in annual 
installments of $130,000 plus 
interest at 2% through June 
of 2033. $ 3,735,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 3,605,000 $ 130,000 

  
Unamortized bond premium 469,780 - 24,726 445,054 - 

  
Accrued leave ** 186,015 13,164 - 199,179 14,398 
  
Total Business-type 
Activities Long-Term 
Liabilities $ 4,390,795 $ 13,164 $ 154,726 $ 4,249,233 $ 144,398 

** Due to a computer processing error, the amount of leave earned and used during 2014 is not available so the 
net difference has been reported. 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt exclusive of the notes for the Clean 
Water loans and Drinking Water loans that are not yet in repayment status follow: 
 
Governmental 
Activities  Notes Payable 

 Special Assessment Bond Payable  
(KPB Loan) 

Year Ending 
December 31,  Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

 

        
2015 $ 915,622 $ 342,132 $ 1,257,754 $ - $ - $ - 
2016 918,910 229,435 1,148,345 1,025,890 503,541 1,529,431 
2017 906,808 214,366 1,121,174 1,067,687 461,744 1,529,431 
2018 910,303 199,427 1,109,730 1,111,186 418,245 1,529,431 
2019 913,906 184,378 1,098,284 1,156,457 372,974 1,529,431 
2020-2024 4,627,618 692,128 5,319,746 6,528,609 1,118,546 7,647,155 
2025-2029 3,676,053 321,220 3,997,273 1,469,559 59,872 1,529,431 
2030-2033 1,183,793 62,286 1,246,079 - - - 
     
 $ 14,053,013 $ 2,245,372 $ 16,298,385 $ 12,359,388 $ 2,934,922 $ 15,294,310 

70



City of Homer, Alaska 
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
 
 

44 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds follow: 
 
Business-type Activities G. O. Bonds Payable  
Year Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total 
  
2015 $ 130,000 $ 156,050 $ 286,050 
2016 135,000 153,400 288,400 
2017 140,000 149,950 289,950 
2018 140,000 145,750 285,750 
2019 145,000 141,475 286,475 
2020-2024 825,000 615,900 1,440,900 
2025-2029 1,050,000 396,250 1,446,250 
2030-2033 1,040,000 107,250 1,147,250 
  
 $ 3,605,000 $ 1,866,025 $ 5,471,025 

 
In 2013, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kenai Peninsula Borough to borrow up to 
$12,700,000 for the design and construction of natural gas distribution improvements in the City. At 
December 31, 2014, the City had drawn $12,359,388 on the loan. 
 
Concurrent with the issuance of the loan with the Borough, the City issued a $12,700,000 natural gas 
distribution special assessment bond. The bond proceeds are to be used for the design and 
construction of natural gas distribution improvements in the City. After completion of the project, 
the City will establish an assessment district. This bond will be repaid from amounts to be levied 
against the property owners benefited by this construction in the assessment district. Those amounts, 
including interest, are 100 percent pledged to pay the scheduled principal and interest payments on 
the special assessment bonds. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or delinquent 
special assessments at the time a debt service payment is due, the government must provide 
resources to cover the deficiency until other resources, for example, foreclosure proceeds, are 
received. 
 
Debt Covenants 
 
The Kenai Peninsula Borough gasline loan required that a reserve account be established in the 
amount of $1,270,000 from the date of the first drawdown.  The city has complied with this covenant 
through the establishment of a dedicated investment account (reported as restricted cash and 
investments) in the Gas line Capital Projects Fund. 
 
The 2013 Harbor bonds required that a reserve account be established in the amount of the largest 
annual debt service payment ($290,100).  The City has complied with this covenant through the 
establishment of a dedicated investment account (reported as restricted cash and investments) in the 
Port enterprise fund.  In addition, these bond established a rate covenant that requires the Port to 
establish and charge fees sufficient to produce 120% of the annual debt service amount.  The rate 
covenant test was met in 2014. 
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7. Fund Balances 
 
Fund balances, reported for the major funds and the nonmajor funds in the aggregate on the 
governmental funds balance sheet are subject to the following constraints:   
 

 General

Utility 
Special

Revenue

Gas Line 
Capital 
Project

HART Roads 
Capital 
Project

Nonmajor 
Funds Totals 

  
Nonspendable:  

Inventory $ 52,312 $ 254,382 $ - $ - $ - $ 306,694 
Prepaid items 234,289 31,712 - - - 266,001 
Interfund loans 300,000 - - - 19,420 319,420 

  
Total nonspendable 586,601 286,094 - - 19,420 892,115 
  
Restricted:  
  Roads and trails - - - 6,994,279 543,792 7,538,071 
  Special service 
district 76,421 - - - - 76,421 

  
Total Restricted 76,421 - - 6,994,279 543,792 7,614,492 
  
Committed – 
Permanent fund - - - - 2,031,828 2,031,828 

  
Assigned:  

Library - - - - 32,593 32,593 
Public safety - - - - 97,530 97,530 
Community 
schools - - - - 492 492 

Sustainability - - - - 14,780 14,780 
Water and sewer - 1,521,773 - - - 1,521,773 
PERS benefits 171,314 - - - 14,665 185,979 
Capital and land - - - - 1,968,241 1,968,241 

  
Total assigned 171,314 1,521,773 - - 2,128,301 3,821,388 
  
Unassigned (deficit) 5,734,697 - (281,413) - (81,022) 5,372,262 
  
Total Fund 
Balances $ 6,569,033 $ 1,807,807 $ (281,413) $ 6,994,279 $4,642,319 $19,732,085 
 
At December 31, 2014, the following nonmajor funds had a fund deficit:   
 
  
Non-capital Projects Special Revenue Fund $ (80,753) 
City Facilities Capital Project Fund (43,227) 
Land Reserve Capital Project Fund (269) 
 
As discussed in note one, expenditures in the Utility Special Revenue Fund exceed appropriations 
by $2,729,594. The General Fund expenditures exceeded appropriations by $458,388. 
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8. Restatement 
 
In 2014, the City discovered that it had underreported capital contributions associated with a State of 
Alaska TORA in the amount of $1,872,622.  The correction of the error resulted in the following 
adjustments to the prior period balances as follows: 
 
   As Reported  Adjustment  As Restated  

   
Fund Balance/Net Position   
  Governmental Activities  $ 82,058,089 $ 1,872,622 $  83,930,711  
  Governmental Funds 19,769,364  1,872,622  21,641,986  
  City Facilities Capital Projects Fund (1,737,914) 1,872,622 134,708
  
Change in Net Position/Fund Balance  
  Governmental Activities (637,948) 1,872,622 1,234,674
  Governmental Funds (4,031,471) 1,872,622 (2,158,849) 
  City Facilities Capital Projects Fund (1,934,867) 1,872,622 (62,245) 

 
9. Accounting for Health Self-Insurance 
 
The City provides health insurance on a self-insured basis up to $90,000 each occurrence or 
$1,707,414 in aggregate for all medical claims during the year.  Coverage in excess of these amounts 
is insured by a private carrier up to lifetime claims of $1,000,000 per each individual.  
 
The City contracts with a third-party administrator for health claims servicing.  The City charges each 
department a premium based on the employees and their selected coverage.  This premium is based 
on actual claims paid by the City.  An equal amount is recorded as revenue by the Risk Management 
Internal Service Fund which is then responsible for paying all claims.  The City accrues a liability for 
claims incurred but not reported at year-end.   
 
A schedule of the changes in the claims liability for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 
follows: 
 

 
Balance at 

Beginning of Year
Claims 

Expense Claims Paid
Balance at 

End of Year 
  
2014 Health Insurance $ 251,107 $ 1,216,168 $ 1,311,739 $ 155,536 
  
2013 Health Insurance $ 128,435 $ 1,978,754 $ 1,856,082 $ 251,107 
 
Effective January 1, 2015, the City terminated its self-insurance plan in favor of commercial health 
insurance policies.   
 
10. Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss including (a) damage to and loss of buildings and contents, 
(b) employee torts, (c) professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, (d) workers’ compensation; 
i.e., employee injuries, and (e) medical insurance costs of employees.   
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The City is a member of the Alaska Municipal League Joint Insurance Association (JIA), a 
governmental insurance pool established by the Alaska Municipal League.  The JIA provides the City 
coverage for property, including building and contents, automobiles, mobile equipment and data 
processing equipment; casualty, including general liability, and public officials, law enforcement 
professional liability, auto liability and employee benefit liability; and workers’ compensation, 
including employer’s liability.  In addition, commercial insurance policies are purchased that transfer 
the risk of loss, except for relatively low deductibles for marina keepers legal liability, and 
underground tank liability.  The City has no coverage for potential losses from environmental 
damages. 
 
The JIA is a public entity risk pool organized to share risks among its members.  The Association’s 
bylaws provide for the assessment of supplemental contributions from members in the event that 
losses and expenses for any coverage year exceed the annual contributions and income earned on 
such contributions for the year.  Such supplemental contributions shall be based upon each member’s 
deposit contribution in comparison to the aggregate deposit contributions of all members.  The 
Association made no supplemental assessments during the year ended December 31, 2014. 
 
The JIA provides loss control services and conducts periodic inspections to ensure safe operations.  
The Finance Director coordinates risk management activities with the other City Directors and City 
Manager.  The General Fund balance is sufficient to meet potential losses related to the JIA basic 
core coverage and coverage deductibles.  The amount of settlements for the past three years did not 
materially exceed the City’s insurance coverage. 
 
11. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
The City participates in the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS).  PERS is a cost- sharing 
multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local government employees, other than 
teachers.  The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska Department of 
Administration to provide pension, postemployment healthcare, death, and disability benefits.  
Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the 
State Legislature. 
 
The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and other required supplemental information.  The report is available at the following address: 
 
 Department of Administration 
 Division of Retirement and Benefits 
 P.O. Box 110203 
 Juneau, Alaska 99811-0203 
 
Conversion to Cost Sharing 
 
In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation which converted the existing Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS) from an agent-multiple employer plan to a cost-sharing plan 
with an effective date of July 1, 2008.  Under the cost-sharing arrangement, the State of Alaska 
Division of Retirement and Benefits no longer tracks individual employer assets and liabilities.  
Rather, all plan costs and past service liabilities are shared among all participating employers.   
 
That same year, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation which statutorily capped the 
employer contribution, established a state funded “on-behalf” contribution, and required that 
employer contributions be calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages attributable 
to the defined contribution plan described later in these footnotes.    
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Employee Contribution Rates 
 
Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary (3.26% for 
pension and 3.49% for healthcare).  Police and firefighters are required to contribute 7.5% of their 
annual covered salary (3.62% for pension and 3.88% for healthcare).     
 
Employer and Other Contribution Rates 
 

There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions and 
related liabilities.  These amounts are calculated on an annual basis. 

 

Employer Effective Rate:  This is the required funding rate for participating employers.  The 
contractual rate is statutorily capped at 22% of eligible wages, subject to a wage floor, and other 
termination events.  This 22% rate includes all PERS participating wages, including those wages 
attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. 

 

ARM Board Adopted Rate:  This is the rate formally adopted by the Alaska Retirement 
Management Board.  This rate is actuarially determined to calculate annual funding requirements 
of the Plan, without regard to the statutory rate cap.   
 
State Contribution Rate:  This is the rate actually paid by the State as an on-behalf payment.   
 
GASB 43 Rate:  This is the rate used to determine the long-term pension and healthcare liability 
for plan accounting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
established by GASB.  Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for this rate calculation are 
mandated by GASB.  For State fiscal year FY15 (six months ended December 2014), the rate uses 
an 8.00% pension discount rate and a 4.90% healthcare discount rate.  Additionally, the GASB 43 
rate disregards all future Medicare Part D payments.   
 
From 2008 through June 30, 2014, legislation provided that the State of Alaska contribute the 
difference between the ARM Board adopted rate and the employer effective (statutory) rate.  
These additional contributions are recognized by each employer as an on-behalf payment and are 
reflected as revenue and expense/expenditures within the financial statements.   
 

Effective beginning July 1, 2014, the State passed additional legislation appropriating a one-time 
funding contribution to the Plan in the amount of $1 billion.  This $1 billion is allocated among all 
participating employers and will be recorded as an on-behalf payment. This amount significantly 
exceeds the required on-behalf payment established as the difference between the ARM Board 
rate and the employer effective rate.  In addition, prior to July 1, 2015, there are no constraints 
or restrictions on the actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation.  
Effective July 1, 2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution 
rates for past service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term 
which ends in 2039, resulting in lower ARM Board rates.  As a result of these changes, the State 
fiscal year 2015 on-behalf payment will be significantly higher than under previous calculations, 
and in State fiscal year 2016, the on-behalf amounts will be lower than under previous 
calculations.   
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The GASB 43 rate differs significantly from the ARM Board adopted rate as a direct result of 
differences in the actuarial valuation methodology and assumptions.   
 
Contribution rates for the six months ended June 30, 2014 were determined as part of the June 
30, 2011 actuarial valuation.  Rates for the six months ended December 31, 2014 (State FY15) 
were determined in the June 30, 2012 valuation.  
 

January to June 2014 

Employer 
Effective

Rate 

ARM Board 
Adopted 

Rate

State
Contribution

Rate
GASB 43 

Rate 
  
Pension 10.64% 18.38% 7.74% 27.94% 
Postemployment healthcare 11.36% 17.30% 5.94% 52.55% 
 
Total Contribution Rate 22.00% 35.68% 13.68% 80.49% 
         
  
  
July to December 2014  
  
Pension 12.54% 25.09% 42.41% 33.05% 
Postemployment healthcare 9.46% 18.94% -% 55.07% 
 
Total Contribution Rate 22.00% 44.03% 42.41% 88.12% 
 
Annual Pension and Postemployment Healthcare Cost 
 
The City is required to contribute 22% of covered payroll, subject to a wage floor.  In addition, the 
State of Alaska has also made additional contributions to the Plan as noted above.  In accordance 
with the provisions of GASB Statement Number 24, these additional contributions are considered 
on-behalf payments and are recorded as revenue and expense/expenditures in these financial 
statements.  However, because the City is not statutorily obligated for these payments, the 
State’s contributions, in the amounts of $1,867,591, $915,801, and $812,525 for 2014, 2013, and 
2012, respectively, have been excluded from pension and OPEB cost as shown below.     
 

Year Ended December 31, 
Annual

Pension Cost
Annual

OPEB Cost
Total Benefit

Cost (TBC)
City

 Contributions
% of TBC 

Contributed 
  
2014 $ 663,150 $ 500,271 $ 1,163,421 $ 1,163,421 100% 
2013 606,589 571,025 1,177,614 1,177,614 100% 
2012 526,358 671,272 1,197,630 1,197,630 100% 
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12. Defined Contribution Pension Plan 
 
Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV, a defined contribution plan.  The Plan 
is administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration.  Benefit and contribution 
provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.  The 
Alaska Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements.  Included in the 
Plan are individual pension accounts, retiree medical insurance plan and a separate Health 
Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums and 
other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan.   
 
Employee Contribution Rates 
Employees are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary.  This amount goes directly 
to the individual’s account. 
 
Employer Contribution Rates 
The City is required to contribute the following amounts based on covered salary:   
 

January to June 2014 Other Tier IV
Police/Fire

Tier IV 
  
Individual account 5.00% 5.00% 
Retiree medical plan 0.48% 0.48% 
Occupational death and disability benefits 0.20% 1.14% 
  
Total Contribution Rate  5.68% 6.62% 
 
  
July to December 2014  
  
Individual account 5.00% 5.00% 
Retiree medical plan 1.66% 1.66% 
Occupational death and disability benefits 0.22% 1.06% 
  
Total Contribution Rate  6.88% 7.72% 
 
In addition, the employer must contribute to the Health Reimbursement Arrangement.  AS 39.30.370 
establishes this contribution amount as “three percent of the average annual employee compensation 
of all employees of all employers in the plan”.  As of July 1, 2014, for actual remittance, this 
amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full time or part-time employee per pay period and 
approximates $1,961 per year for each full-time employee, and $1.26 per hour for part-time 
employees. 
 
The total employer contribution must equal 22% of covered payroll.  After subtracting the defined 
contribution (DC) rates and the HRA contribution, any residual amount of the 22% will be deposited 
into the defined benefit (DB) plan.  Known as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability (DBUL) payment, 
this amount is intended to mitigate reduced contributions in the DB plan due to the declining payroll 
base that resulted from the creation of the DC plan.   
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Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% per year in employer 
contributions.  The City and employee contributions to PERS including the HRA contribution for the 
year ended December 31, 2014 were $257,622 and $208,016, respectively.   
 
13. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457.  The deferred compensation plan permits all employees to defer a portion 
of their salary.  The deferred compensation is not available for distribution to employees until 
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.  Internal Revenue Code provisions 
require that all assets and income of the plan be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants 
and their beneficiaries. 
 
14. Contingencies  
 
The City is involved in various claims and pending litigation as part of the normal course of its 
activities.  In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters is not expected to have a 
material adverse effect on the City’s financial statements.  
 
Grants 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantors are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor 
agencies.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, would become a liability of 
the General Fund or other applicable fund. 
 
15. Designated Sales Tax 
 
City of Homer sales tax is designated for the following purposes:   
 
  
  
Water, sewer, and related debt service 0.75% 
Road and trail projects 0.75% 
General Fund – undesignated 3.00% 
Kenai Peninsula Borough  3.00% 
  
Total Sales Tax Percentage 7.50% 
 
Effective January 1, 2009, Ordinance 08-32(s)(A-2) exempts sales tax on non-prepared foods from 
September 1 through May 31 annually. 
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16. Homer Natural Gasline Project  
 
In March 2013, the City Council approved a Contribution in Aid of Construction Agreement (CIAC), 
Ordinance 13-03, between the City of Homer and Enstar Natural Gas Company for construction and 
improvements within the Homer natural gas distribution system.  In connection with the project, a 
special assessment district was authorized.  The City’s share of the Homer Natural Gasline project is 
being financed through a $12.7 million loan obtained from Kenai Peninsula Borough. The project was 
substantially complete in 2014 and the City is in the process of establishing the local assessments to 
the benefiting property owners.  All assessment revenues will be dedicated to repayment of the loan. 
 
17. New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has passed several new accounting standards with 
upcoming implementation dates.  Management has not fully evaluated the potential effects of 
these statements, but believes that that GASB Statement 68 will result in the biggest reporting 
change.  Actual impacts have not yet been determined:   
 
GASB 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – Effective for year-end December 31, 
2015 – This statement contains certain revisions to prior GASB statements on the topics of Net 
Pension Liability and Pension Expense. 
 
GASB 71 – Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – 
Effective for year-end December 31, 2015 – This statement is a companion to GASB Statement 68 
and clarifies treatment of contributions made by a contributing entity to a defined benefit pension 
plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability. 
 
GASB 72 – Fair Value Disclosures – Effective for year-end December 31, 2016 – This statement 
defines fair value and describes how fair value should be measured, what assets and liabilities 
should be measured at fair value, and what information about fair value should be disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 
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Exhibit D-1

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Variance with

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues

   Taxes 8,019,406$      8,019,406$    8,115,908$      96,502$          

   Licenses and permits 33,300            33,300           27,931            (5,369)            

   Intergovernmental 1,786,069       1,786,069      2,580,068       793,999          

   Charges for services 2,104,326       2,104,326      2,125,051       20,725           

   Special assessments -                     -                    59,740            59,740           

   Investment income 27,000            27,000           30,830            3,830             

   Fines and forfeitures 10,000            10,000           20,142            10,142           

Total Revenues 11,980,101      11,980,101    12,959,670      979,569          

Expenditures

   General government 3,246,418       3,246,418      3,507,640       (261,222)        

   Public safety 4,503,415       4,503,415      4,708,617       (205,202)        

   Public works 2,087,224       2,087,224      2,183,582       (96,358)          

   Library 848,808          848,808         847,655          1,153             

   Airport 212,405          212,405         221,302          (8,897)            

   Parks and recreation 429,929          429,929         409,211          20,718           

   Community services 238,930          238,930         237,507          1,423             

   Debt service:

      Principal 41,478            41,478           45,149            (3,671)            

      Interest 58,346            58,346           54,675            3,671             

Total Expenditures 11,666,953      11,666,953    12,215,338      (548,385)        

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 313,148          313,148         744,332          431,184          

Other Financing Uses - transfers out (313,080)         (313,080)        (223,083)         89,997           

Net Change in Fund Balance 68$                 68$                521,249          521,181$        

Fund Balance, beginning 6,047,784       

Fund Balance, ending 6,569,033$      

Budget

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit D-2

Utility Special Revenue Fund

 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Variance with

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues

   Sales taxes 1,200,000$    1,200,000$    1,247,502$     47,502$         

   Intergovernmental 112,810         112,810         618,004          505,194         

   Charges for services 3,694,763      3,694,763      3,623,327       (71,436)          

   Special assessments -                   -                   438,088          438,088         

   Investment income -                   -                   3,845             3,845             

   Other 180,499         180,499         37,511           (142,988)        

Total Revenues 5,188,072      5,188,072      5,968,277       780,205         

Expenditures

   Water 1,988,660      1,988,660      2,283,417       (294,757)        

   Sewer 1,686,133      1,686,133      1,798,228       (112,095)        

   Debt service:

     Principal 859,226         859,226         812,933          46,293           

     Interest 194,647         194,647         186,987          7,660             

     Debt deobligated -                   -                   1,580,014       (1,580,014)     

   Total debt service 1,053,873      1,053,873      2,579,934       (1,526,061)     

   Capital outlay -                   -                   671,683          (671,683)        

Total Expenditures 4,728,666      4,728,666      7,333,262       (2,604,596)     

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

  Expenditures 459,406         459,406         (1,364,985)      (1,824,391)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Transfers in -                   -                   180,499          180,499         

  Transfers out (20,300)         (20,300)         (20,300)          -                    

Net Change in Fund Balance 439,106$       439,106$       (1,204,786)      (1,643,892)$    

Fund Balance, beginning 3,012,653       

Fund Balance, ending 1,807,867$     

Budget

City of Homer, Alaska 
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  Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
 

58 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  
 

A Special Revenue Fund is established to finance particular activities and is created from proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed for specific purposes. 
 
Library Donations – This fund accounts for donations made to the library that have been earmarked 
for supplies. 
 
Fire Department Donations – This fund accounts for donations made to the fire department that 
have been earmarked for supplies. 
 
Animal Shelter Donations – This fund accounts for donations made to the animal shelter that have 
been earmarked for supplies. 
 
Retainage Reimbursements – This fund accounts for deposits customers have provided for specific 
projects until their completion. 
 
Community Schools – This fund accounts for donations to be used for community schools. 
 
Sustainability – This fund accounts for donations for sustainable global warming. 
 
Noncapital Projects – This fund accounts for projects and grant-related activities that are not 
capitalized. 
 
Permanent Fund – This fund accounts for the payment received as a result of the Exxon Valdez oil 
spill settlement. 
 
PERS Funding – This fund accounts for funds set aside for future PERS obligation. 

 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

 
Capital Project Funds are established to account for the financial resources expended to acquire or 
construct major capital assets of a relatively permanent nature.  Such financial resources include 
grants, contributions, bond proceeds, and operating transfers from other funds. 
 
Capital Project Funds provide a formal mechanism to ensure that revenues dedicated to a certain 
project are used only for that project and enable the City administration to report to grantors of 
Capital Project Fund revenue that their requirements regarding the use of the revenues are fully 
satisfied. 
 
HART Trails – This fund accounts for improvements to City trails.  It is funded by 10% of HAWSP sales 
tax designated specifically for City trails. 
 
Depreciation Reserves – This fund accounts for monies set aside each year from the General Fund to 
be used for the maintenance of City buildings and the purchase of General Fund equipment. 
 
Land Reserve – This fund accounts for the accumulation of capital to purchase land. 
 
Energy Revolving Loan – This fund accounts for forward funding of energy efficiency improvement 
projects with corpus to be reinstated through future repayments. 
 
City Facilities – This fund accounts for various facility improvements. 
 
Fleet Reserve Allocation – This fund accounts for the accumulation of capital to purchase vehicles. 
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Exhibit E-1

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Total

Fire Total Total Nonmajor

Depart- Animal Retainage Com- Non- Special Depre- Energy Fleet Capital Govern-

Library ment Shelter Reimburse- munity Sustain- capital Permanent PERS Revenue HART ciation Land Revolving City Reserve Project mental

December 31, 2014 Donations Donations Donations ments Schools ability Projects Fund Funding Funds Trails Reserves Reserve Loan Facilities Allocation Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and investments 32,593$     97,195$    335$         13,363$     492$      14,780$  -$              2,439$          14,665$   175,862$      524,797$   1,402,456$   -$           87,626$     -$              549,163$    2,564,042$     2,739,904$    

Receivables, net:

   Sales taxes -                -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   -              -                   18,995      -                   -             -                -                -                 18,995           18,995          

   Interfund loan -                -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   -              -                   -               -                   -             19,420       -                -                 19,420           19,420          

   Other -                -              -              1,266        -            -             2,738         -                   -              4,004            -               -                   -             -                230,317     -                 230,317          234,321        

Restricted cash and 

   investments -                -              -              -               -            -             -                2,029,389     -              2,029,389     -               -                   -             -                -                 -                    2,029,389     

Total Assets 32,593$     97,195$    335$         14,629$     492$      14,780$  2,738$       2,031,828$   14,665$   2,209,255$   543,792$   1,402,456$   -$           107,046$   230,317$   549,163$    2,832,774$     5,042,029$    

Liabilities

Accounts payable -$              -$             -$             -$             -$          -$           -$              -$                 -$            -$                 -$             27,843$        -$           -$              192,254$   -$               220,097$        220,097$       

Unearned revenue -                -              -              14,563      -            -             -                -                   -              14,563          -               -                   -             -                28,970       -                 28,970           43,533          

Due to other funds -                -              -              -               -            -             83,491       -                   -              83,491          -               -                   269         -                52,320       -                 52,589           136,080        

Total Liabilities -                -              -              14,563      -            -             83,491       -                   -              98,054          -               27,843          269         -                273,544     -                 301,656          399,710        

Fund Balances

Nonspendable - interfund loan -                -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   -              -                   -               -                   -             19,420       -                -                 19,420           19,420          

Restricted - roads and trails -                -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   -              -                   543,792     -                   -             -                -                -                 543,792          543,792        

Committed - Permanent fund -                -              -              -               -            -             -                2,031,828     -              2,031,828     -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    2,031,828     

Assigned: -                

   Library 32,593       -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   -              32,593          -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    32,593          

   Public safety -                97,195      335          -               -            -             -                -                   -              97,530          -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    97,530          

   Community schools -                -              -              -               492       -             -                -                   -              492               -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    492               

   Sustainability -                -              -              -               -            14,780    -                -                   -              14,780          -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    14,780          

   PERS benefits -                -              -              -               -            -             -                -                   14,665     14,665          -               -                   -             -                -                -                 -                    14,665          

   Capital and land -                -              -              66             -            -             -                -                   -              66                -               1,374,613     -             87,626       (43,227)      549,163      1,968,175       1,968,241     

Unassigned (deficit) -                -              -              -               -            -             (80,753)      -                   -              (80,753)         -               -                   (269)        -                -                -                 (269)               (81,022)         

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 32,593       97,195      335          66             492       14,780    (80,753)      2,031,828     14,665     2,111,201     543,792     1,374,613     (269)        107,046     (43,227)      549,163      2,531,118       4,642,319     

Total Liabilities and 

  Fund Balances 32,593$     97,195$    335$         14,629$     492$      14,780$  2,738$       2,031,828$   14,665$   2,209,255$   543,792$   1,402,456$   -$           107,046$   230,317$   549,163$    2,832,774$     5,042,029$    

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

Capital Project Funds

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit E-2

Total

Fire Total Total Nonmajor

Depart- Animal Retainage Com- Non- Special Depre- Energy Fleet Capital Govern-

Library ment Shelter Reimburse- munity Sustain- capital Permanent PERS Revenue HART ciation Land Revolving City Reserve Project mental

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Donations Donations Donations ments Schools ability Projects Fund Funding Funds Trails Reserves Reserve Loan Facilities Allocation Funds Funds

Revenues

   Sales taxes -$            -$              -$                -$             -$         -$           -$              -$                 -$            -$                124,744$    -$                 -$             -$             -$                 -$                124,744$       124,744$        

   Intergovernmental -              -               -                  -               -           -             11,286       -                  -              11,286         -                -                  -              -               1,218,781     -                 1,218,781      1,230,067      

   Investment income 8             4               -                  -               -           -             -                80,723          26           80,761         1,391         3,798           -              -               476               1,469          7,134             87,895           

   Donations 61            9,128        335              -               -           -             -                -                  -              9,524           -                -                  -              -               -                   -                 -                    9,524             

   Other -              -               -                  -               -           -             7,146         -                  -              7,146           -                6,180           -              -               -                   16,874        23,054           30,200           

Total Revenues 69            9,132        335              -               -           -             18,432       80,723          26           108,717       126,135     9,978           -              -               1,219,257     18,343        1,373,713      1,482,430      

Expenditures

   Current:

     General government -              -               -                  -               -           -             -                -                  -              -                  10,386       29,483          -              -               53,923          11,879        105,671         105,671         

     Public safety -              -               -                  -               -           -             9,356         -                  -              9,356           -                -                  -              -               -                   -                 -                    9,356             

     Public works -              -               -                  -               -           -             -                -                  -              -                  -                -                  -              -               -                   -                 -                    -                    

     Community services -              -               -                  -               400       -             -                14,926          -              15,326         -                -                  -              -               -                   -                 -                    15,326           

     Parks and recreation -              -               -                  -               -           -             -                -                  -              -                  -                -                  -              -               -                   -                 -                    -                    

     Capital outlay -              -               -                  -               -           -             2,691         -                  -              2,691           13,579       295,657        -              -               1,365,150     34,782        1,709,168      1,711,859      

Total Expenditures -              -               -                  -               400       -             12,047       14,926          -              27,373         23,965       325,140        -              -               1,419,073     46,661        1,814,839      1,842,212      

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

  Expenditures 69            9,132        335              -               (400)      -             6,385         65,797          26           81,344         102,170     (315,162)       -              -               (199,816)       (28,318)       (441,126)        (359,782)        

Other Financing Sources

   Transfers in -              -               -                  -               -           -             -                -                  -              -                  -                10,000          -              31,003      21,881          -                 62,884           62,884           

Net Change in Fund

  Balances 69            9,132        335              -               (400)      -             6,385         65,797          26           81,344         102,170     (305,162)       -              31,003      (177,935)       (28,318)       (378,242)        (296,898)        

Fund Balances (Deficits),

   beginning, as restated 32,524     88,063       -                  66             892       14,780    (87,138)      1,966,031     14,639     2,029,857    441,622     1,679,775     (269)         76,043      134,708        577,481       2,909,360      4,939,217      

Fund Balances (Deficits),

   ending 32,593$   97,195$     335$            66$           492$     14,780$  (80,753)$    2,031,828$   14,665$   2,111,201$   543,792$    1,374,613$   (269)$       107,046$   (43,227)$       549,163$     2,531,118$    4,642,319$     

City of Homer, Alaska 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

Capital Project Funds
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General Fund 
 
 
The General Fund accounts for the financial operations of the City of Homer which are not accounted 
for in any other fund.  Principal sources of revenues are sales taxes, property taxes, charges for 
services, and intergovernmental revenues.  Primary expenditures in the General Fund are for general 
government, public safety, and public works. 
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Exhibit F-1

December 31, 2014 2013

Assets

Cash and investments 386,625$        3,569,630$     

Receivables

   Property taxes - delinquent, net of allowance 

      for doubtful accounts of $5,235 ($6,866 in 2013) 77,008            112,310          

   Sales taxes 759,645          768,292          

   Assessments 407,314          348,605          

   Other, net of allowance for doubtful

     accounts of $29,204 ($80,996 in 2013) 37,262            102,588          

Total Receivables 1,281,229       1,331,795       

Due from other funds 5,240,998       1,963,406       

Interfund loan receivable 300,000          -                    

Inventory 52,312            76,245            

Prepaid items 234,289          206,415          

Total Assets 7,495,453$     7,147,491$     

Liabilities

Accounts payable 213,661$        182,458$        

Accrued payroll and related liabilities 196,132          248,497          

Unearned revenue 5,414             194,674          

Customer deposits 16,204            16,602            

Total Liabilities 431,411          642,231          

Deferred Inflows

Deferred property taxes 78,695            108,871          

Deferred assessments 416,314          348,605          

Total Deferred Inflows 495,009          457,476          

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 926,420          1,099,707       

Fund Balance

Restricted - Special service district 76,421            41,245            
Nonspendable 586,601          282,660          

Assigned - PERS benefits 171,314          171,314          

Unassigned 5,734,697       5,552,565       

Total Fund Balance 6,569,033       6,047,784       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balance 7,495,453$     7,147,491$     

General Fund
Balance Sheet

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit F-2

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

Revenues

   Taxes:

      Property taxes 3,047,880$     3,119,599$    71,719$         3,209,009$     

      Sales taxes 4,953,526      4,993,941      40,415          4,872,983      

      Penalties and interest 18,000           2,368            (15,632)         11,850           

   Total taxes 8,019,406      8,115,908      96,502          8,093,842      

   Licenses and permits 33,300           27,931           (5,369)           35,706           

 

   Intergovernmental:

      Revenue - sharing 341,000         341,037         37                 341,161         

      State PERS relief 480,159         1,253,205      773,046         630,058         

      Utility cooperative 49,000           26,845           (22,155)         49,343           

      Alcohol beverage tax 22,000           24,350           2,350            22,450           

      Public safety 840,410         859,073         18,663          782,674         

      Library grant 6,500             7,558            1,058            278                

      Public works 34,000           68,000           34,000          -                    

      Other grants 13,000           -                   (13,000)         600                

   Total intergovernmental 1,786,069      2,580,068      793,999         1,826,564      

   Charges for services:

      Administrative services 1,482,726      1,482,726      -                   1,320,955      

      Ambulance services 175,000         203,253         28,253          194,877         

      Fire contracts 70,000           68,681           (1,319)           70,800           

      Camping fees 140,000         156,574         16,574          140,960         

      Rents and leases 7,000             30                 (6,970)           9,000             

      Airport services 141,000         126,774         (14,226)         137,177         

      Community school fees 33,000           40,280           7,280            33,565           

      Miscellaneous services 55,600           46,733           (8,867)           84,175           

   Total charges for services 2,104,326      2,125,051      20,725          1,991,509      

   Special assessments -                    59,740           59,740          52,875           

City of Homer, Alaska 

General Fund

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
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Exhibit F-2, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

Revenues, continued

   Investment income (loss) 27,000$         30,830$          3,830$          (108,152)$      

   Fines and forfeitures 10,000           20,142            10,142          10,469           

Total Revenues 11,980,101    12,959,670      979,569        11,902,813    

Expenditures

  General government:

      City council/mayor:

        Salaries and benefits 4,910             5,194              (284)             4,757            

        Supplies 2,500             1,779              721              2,001            

        Other services and charges 365,340         365,522          (182)             366,983         

      Total city council/mayor 372,750         372,495          255              373,741         

      City clerk:

        Salaries and benefits 349,533         377,114          (27,581)        335,383         

        Supplies 3,900             2,277              1,623           2,946            

        Other services and charges 56,884           41,154            15,730          40,292           

      Total city clerk 410,317         420,545          (10,228)        378,621         

      City manager:

        Salaries and benefits 228,905         262,099          (33,194)        231,333         

        Supplies 4,000             4,110              (110)             4,209            

        Other services and charges 30,135           21,682            8,453           16,147           

      Total city manager 263,040         287,891          (24,851)        251,689         

      Administrative services:

        Salaries and benefits 1,197,718      1,297,006        (99,288)        1,195,124      

        Supplies 10,750           7,802              2,948           8,515            

        Other services and charges 386,973         287,506          99,467          246,543         

      Total administrative services 1,595,441      1,592,314        3,127           1,450,182      

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued

General Fund

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit F-2, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued

General Fund

City of Homer, Alaska 

Expenditures, continued

  General government, continued:

      Planning and zoning/property management:

        Salaries and benefits 435,847$       465,374$         (29,527)$       412,429$       

        Supplies 2,900             1,502              1,398           1,588            

        Other services and charges 28,102           20,759            7,343           20,611           

      Total planning and zoning/

        property management 466,849         487,635          (20,786)        434,628         

      City hall complex:

        Supplies 22,300           12,330            9,970           21,163           

        Other services and charges 115,721         222,552          (106,831)       111,250         

      Total city hall complex 138,021         234,882          (96,861)        132,413         

      Non-departmental - salaries and benefit -                    111,878          (111,878)       141,655         

   Total general government 3,246,418      3,507,640        (261,222)       3,162,929      

  Public safety:

      Police department:

        Salaries and benefits 2,213,529      2,410,638        (197,109)       2,162,510      

        Supplies 43,350           43,713            (363)             32,159           

        Other services and charges 309,819         310,699          (880)             313,455         

      Total police department 2,566,698      2,765,050        (198,352)       2,508,124      

      Jail:

        Salaries and benefits 564,750         575,346          (10,596)        573,037         

        Supplies 27,500           32,443            (4,943)          37,979           

        Other services and charges 125,695         120,620          5,075           111,245         

      Total jail 717,945         728,409          (10,464)        722,261         

      Animal control:

        Supplies 13,700           8,379              5,321           24,631           

        Other services and charges 148,916         144,638          4,278           137,329         

      Total animal control 162,616         153,017          9,599           161,960         
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Exhibit F-2, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued

General Fund

City of Homer, Alaska 

Expenditures, continued

  Public safety, continued:

      Emergency services:

        Salaries and benefits 746,989$       807,465$         (60,476)$       687,070$       

        Supplies 50,500           35,296            15,204          40,446           

        Other services and charges 258,667         219,380          39,287          184,786         

      Total emergency services 1,056,156      1,062,141        (5,985)          912,302         

   Total public safety 4,503,415      4,708,617        (205,202)       4,304,647      

  Public works:

      Administration:

        Salaries and benefits 358,869         436,651          (77,782)        287,591         

        Supplies 6,350             8,445              (2,095)          8,207            

        Other services and charges 80,149           92,499            (12,350)        80,380           

      Total administration 445,368         537,595          (92,227)        376,178         

      Maintenance:

        Salaries and benefits 199,234         205,974          (6,740)          209,701         

        Supplies 18,250           13,483            4,767           17,300           

        Other services and charges 105,186         97,870            7,316           89,078           

      Total maintenance 322,670         317,327          5,343           316,079         

      Streets:

        Salaries and benefits 221,126         212,067          9,059           219,708         

        Supplies 183,000         168,334          14,666          183,389         

        Other services and charges 64,300           49,994            14,306          41,075           

      Total streets 468,426         430,395          38,031          444,172         

      Motor pool:

        Salaries and benefits 165,569         169,674          (4,105)          156,181         

        Supplies 116,910         99,004            17,906          101,492         

        Other services and charges 205,500         284,541          (79,041)        204,031         

      Total motor pool 487,979         553,219          (65,240)        461,704         
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Exhibit F-2, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued

General Fund

City of Homer, Alaska 

Expenditures, continued

  Public works, continued:

      Engineer/inspector:

        Salaries and benefits 311,031$       298,388$         12,643$        296,229$       

        Supplies 17,000           14,575            2,425           14,397           

        Other services and charges 34,750           32,083            2,667           30,174           

      Total engineer/inspector 362,781         345,046          17,735          340,800         

   Total public works 2,087,224      2,183,582        (96,358)        1,938,933      

  Library:

    Salaries and benefits 629,359         644,773          (15,414)        575,921         

    Supplies 30,356           26,281            4,075           40,722           

    Other services and charges 189,093         176,601          12,492          154,995         

   Total library 848,808         847,655          1,153           771,638         

  Airport:

    Salaries and benefits 61,457           89,164            (27,707)        74,857           

    Supplies 25,000           20,295            4,705           25,694           

    Other services and charges 125,948         111,843          14,105          94,558           

   Total airport 212,405         221,302          (8,897)          195,109         

  Parks and recreation:

    Salaries and benefits 259,149         244,158          14,991          239,333         

    Supplies 45,800           40,933            4,867           36,923           

    Other services and charges 124,980         124,120          860              89,574           

   Total parks and recreation 429,929         409,211          20,718          365,830         

  Community services:

    Community service contributions:

      Museum 66,500           69,000            (2,500)          69,054           

      Homer Foundation Non-Profit 19,000           19,000            -                  19,000           

      Tidal energy project -                    8,916              (8,916)          -                   

      Other 14,850           15,050            (200)             14,631           

      Total community service

        contributions 100,350         111,966          (11,616)        102,685         
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Exhibit F-2, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Budget Actual Variance Actual

2014

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, continued

General Fund

City of Homer, Alaska 

Expenditures, continued

  Community services, continued:

    Community schools:

      Salaries and benefits 105,474$       102,529$         2,945$          100,387$       

      Supplies 3,000             2,534              466              1,752            

      Other services and charges 30,106           20,478            9,628           21,977           

      Total community schools 138,580         125,541          13,039          124,116         

   Total community services 238,930         237,507          1,423           226,801         

  Debt service on loans:

    Principal 41,478           45,149            (3,671)          43,361           

    Interest 58,346           54,675            3,671           56,463           

   Total debt service 99,824           99,824            -                  99,824           

Total Expenditures 11,666,953    12,215,338      (548,385)       11,065,711    

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 313,148         744,332          431,184        837,102         

Other Financing Uses - transfers out (313,080)        (223,083)         89,997          (877,930)        

 

Net Change in Fund Balance 68$                521,249          521,181$      (40,828)         

Fund Balance, beginning 6,047,784        6,088,612      

Fund Balance, ending 6,569,033$      6,047,784$    
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Utility Special Revenue Fund 
 
 
The Utility Special Revenue Fund accounts for the activities of the water and sewer facility 
operations, including collection and treatment of sewage, and distribution and transmission of water. 
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Exhibit G-1

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Budget Actual Variance

Revenues

  Sales taxes 1,200,000$      1,247,502$      47,502$        

  Intergovernmental:

    Capital grants -                     302,864           302,864        

    State of Alaska PERS relief 112,810           315,140           202,330        

  Total intergovernmental 112,810           618,004           505,194        

  Charges for services:

    Water charges and connection fees 1,768,622       1,951,517        182,895        

    Sewer charges and connection fees 1,926,141       1,671,810        (254,331)       

  Total charges for services 3,694,763       3,623,327        (71,436)         

  Water and sewer special assessments 438,088           438,088        

  Investment income -                     3,845              3,845            

  Other 180,499           37,511             (142,988)       

Total Revenues 5,188,072       5,968,277        780,205        

Expenditures

  Water:

     Pumping system 101,262           63,396             37,866          

     Treatment plant and operations testing 568,708           560,888           7,820            

     Distribution system and reservoir 330,117           394,190           (64,073)         

     Water meters 139,995           132,675           7,320            

     Water hydrants 180,499           153,700           26,799          

     Adminstration 668,079           978,568           (310,489)       

  Total water 1,988,660       2,283,417        (294,757)       

  Sewer:

     Pumping system 839,949           889,621           (49,672)         

     Collection system 175,919           157,053           18,866          

     Administration 670,265           751,554           (81,289)         

  Total sewer 1,686,133       1,798,228        (112,095)       

  Debt service:

     Principal 859,226           812,933           46,293          

     Interest 194,647           186,987           7,660            

     Debt deobligated -                     1,580,014        (1,580,014)    

  Total debt service 1,053,873       2,579,934        (1,526,061)    

  Capital outlay -                     671,683           (671,683)       

Total Expenditures 4,728,666       7,333,262        (2,604,596)    

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 459,406           (1,364,985)      (1,824,391)    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Transfers in -                     180,499           180,499        

  Transfers out (20,300)           (20,300)           -                   

Change in Fund Balance 439,106$         (1,204,786)      (1,643,892)$  

Fund Balance, beginning 3,012,653        

Fund Balance, ending 1,807,867$      

Utility Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit G-2

Utility Total
Utility HAWSP Capital Utility Utility

December 31, 2014 Operations Debt Service Projects Reserves Fund

Assets

Cash and investments 2,692,066$    (4,371,033)$    (1,034,427)$  4,093,577$    1,380,183$   

Receivables
  Accounts 185,523         -                    -                   -                   185,523        
  Sales taxes -                    189,919          -                   -                   189,919        
  Assessments -                    4,814,314       -                   -                   4,814,314     

Total Receivables 185,523         5,004,233       -                   -                   5,189,756     

Inventory 254,382         -                    -                   -                   254,382        
Prepaid items 31,712           -                    -                   -                   31,712          

Total Assets 3,163,683$    633,200$        (1,034,427)$  4,093,577$    6,856,033$   

Liabilities

Accounts payable 135,560$       -$                   -$                 13,246$         148,806$      
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 40,821           -                    -                   -                   40,821          
Customer deposits 43,652           -                    -                   -                   43,652          

Total Liabilities 220,033         -                    -                   13,246          233,279        

Deferred Inflows

Deferred assessments -                    4,814,887       -                   -                   4,814,887     

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 220,033         4,814,887       -                   13,246          5,048,166     

Fund Balances (Deficits)

Nonspendable - inventory and prepaid items 286,094         -                    -                   -                   286,094        
Assigned - water and sewer 2,657,556      (4,181,687)      (1,034,427)    4,080,331      1,521,773     

Total Fund Balances (Deficits) 2,943,650      (4,181,687)      (1,034,427)    4,080,331      1,807,867     

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and 
  Fund Balances (Deficits) 3,163,683$    633,200$        (1,034,427)$  4,093,577$    6,856,033$   

Utility Special Revenue Fund
Combining Balance Sheet

City of Homer, Alaska

7198



Exhibit G-3

Utility Total
                                                 Utility HAWSP Capital Utility Utility

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Operations Debt Service Projects Reserves Fund

Revenues

  Sales taxes -$                 1,247,502$       -$                   -$                 1,247,502$     

  Intergovernmental:

    Capital grants -                   -                      302,864          -                   302,864          

    State of Alaska PERS relief 315,140         -                      -                     -                   315,140          

  Total intergovernmental 315,140         -                      302,864          -                   618,004          

  Charges for services:

    Water charges and connection fees 1,951,517      -                      -                     -                   1,951,517       

    Sewer charges and connection fees 1,671,810      -                      -                     -                   1,671,810       

  Total charges for services 3,623,327      -                      -                     -                   3,623,327       

  Water and sewer special assessments -                   438,088           -                     -                   438,088          

  Investment income 3,845            -                      -                     -                   3,845             

  Other 37,511          -                      -                     -                   37,511           

Total Revenues 3,979,823      1,685,590        302,864          -                   5,968,277       

Expenditures

  Water:

      Pumping system 63,396          -                      -                     -                   63,396           

      Treatment plant and operations testing 560,888         -                      -                     -                   560,888          

      Distribution system and reservoir 394,190         -                      -                     -                   394,190          

      Water meters 132,675         -                      -                     -                   132,675          

      Water hydrants 153,700         -                      -                     -                   153,700          

      Adminstration 759,332         219,236           -                     -                   978,568          

  Total water 2,064,181      219,236           -                     -                   2,283,417       

  Sewer:

      Pumping system 889,621         -                      -                     -                   889,621          

      Collection system 157,053         -                      -                     -                   157,053          

      Administration 751,554         -                      -                     -                   751,554          

  Total sewer 1,798,228      -                      -                     -                   1,798,228       

  Debt service:

      Principal -                   812,933           -                     -                   812,933          

      Interest 497               186,490           -                     -                   186,987          

      Debt deobligated -                   1,580,014        -                     -                   1,580,014       

  Total debt service 497               2,579,437        -                     -                   2,579,934       

  Capital outlay -                   2,975               553,356          115,352         671,683          

Total Expenditures 3,862,906      2,801,648        553,356          115,352         7,333,262       

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

  Expenditures 116,917         (1,116,058)       (250,492)         (115,352)       (1,364,985)     

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Eliminating transfers (213,184)       (277,421)          277,421          213,184         -                    

  Transfers in 180,499         -                      -                     -                   180,499          

  Transfers out (20,300)         -                      -                     -                   (20,300)          

Change in Fund Balances 63,932          (1,393,479)       26,929            97,832          (1,204,786)     

Fund Balances (Deficits), beginning 2,879,718      (2,788,208)       (1,061,356)      3,982,499      3,012,653       

Fund Balances (Deficits), ending 2,943,650$    (4,181,687)$     (1,034,427)$    4,080,331$    1,807,867$     

Utility Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Enterprise Fund 
 
Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private 
business operations.  The City of Homer utilizes one Enterprise Fund. 
 
Port of Homer – This fund accounts for the operations of the port and harbor. 
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Exhibit H-1

Port of Homer Enterprise Fund

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014 2013

Assets

Current Assets

   Cash and investments 1,588,696$        1,779,297$       

   Receivables:

     Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 

       of $28,134 ($40,652 in 2013) 187,104             211,923            

     State and federal grants 3,660,958          1,109,211         

   Inventory 14,431              15,647              

   Prepaid items 48,251              48,607              

Total Current Assets 5,499,440          3,164,685         

Restricted Cash and Investments

  Unspent bond proceeds -                       4,039,656         

  Bond reserves 293,697             293,697            

Total Restricted Cash and Investments 293,697             4,333,353         

Property, Plant and Equipment

   Property, plant and equipment in service 55,754,910        53,906,678       

   Land and land improvements 15,254,041        15,254,041       

   Construction work in progress 10,577,961        4,639,411         

   Less accumulated depreciation (32,340,856)       (30,909,925)      

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 49,246,056        42,890,205       

Total Assets 55,039,193$      50,388,243$      

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts payable 1,024,248$        644,931$          

   Accrued payroll and related liabilities 39,368              36,303              

   Accrued leave 14,398              14,398              

   General obligation bonds payable 130,000             130,000            

   Prepaid berth rentals and deposits 837,534             786,897            

   Unearned lease revenue 18,000              18,000              

   Unearned grant revenue 55,657              21,710              

   Interfund loan 3,291                3,291                

Total Current Liabilities 2,122,496          1,655,530         

Noncurrent Liabilities, net of current portion:

   Unearned lease revenue 234,000             252,000            

   Accrued leave 184,781             171,617            

   Interfund loan 316,129             19,421              

   General obligation bonds payable including bond premium 3,920,054          4,074,780         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 4,654,964          4,517,818         

Total Liabilities 6,777,460          6,173,348         

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 45,489,699        43,018,778       

Unrestricted 2,772,034          1,196,117         

Total Net Position 48,261,733        44,214,895       

Total Liabilities and Net Position 55,039,193$      50,388,243$      

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit H-2

Port of Homer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Operating Revenues

   Harbor 2,347,880$        2,235,358$        

   Main dock 362,070             398,581             

   Fish dock 553,100             731,751             

   Deep water dock 467,584             652,166             

   Rents, leases and storage 459,939             425,168             

   Fish grinder 7,279                 8,815                 

Total Operating Revenues 4,197,852          4,451,839          

Operating Expenses

   Harbor 1,564,027          1,448,251          

   Main dock 86,475               74,159               

   Fish dock 632,669             628,882             

   Deep water dock 141,670             136,225             

   Fish grinder 403                   12,226               

   Administration 1,484,844          1,345,200          

   Depreciation 1,489,777          1,386,053          

Total Operating Expenses 5,399,865          5,030,996          

Operating Loss (1,202,013)         (579,157)            

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

   Investment income 28,690               9,799                 

   State PERS relief 299,245             134,811             

   Other income 129,956             289,765             

   Cruise ship tax 450                   -                       

   Fish tax 58,621               -                       

   Miscellaneous repairs (829)                  (161,394)            

   Bond issuance costs -                       (37,807)              

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 516,133             235,174             
  

Loss before Capital Contributions and Transfers (685,880)            (343,983)            

Capital contributions 4,732,718          3,523,302          

Transfers out -                       (128,000)            

Change in Net Position 4,046,838          3,051,319          

Net Position, beginning 44,214,895        41,163,576        

Net Position, ending 48,261,733        44,214,895$       

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit H-3

Port of Homer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

   Receipts from customers and users 4,418,382$      4,880,427$     

   Payments to suppliers (1,726,502)       (2,076,537)      

   Payments to employees (1,487,223)       (1,454,879)      

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,204,657        1,349,011       

Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities

   Transfer out -                     (128,000)         

   Nonoperating grants, cruise ship tax, and fish tax received 59,071            117,149          

Net cash flows from (for) noncapital financing activities 59,071            (10,851)           

Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

   Principal paid on long-term debt (130,000)          -                     

   Interest paid on long-term debt (158,650)          -                     

   Proceeds from bond issuance -                     4,166,973       

   Capital contributions received 2,180,971        3,076,932       

   Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (7,711,704)       (4,016,361)      

  Increase (decrease) in interfund loan 296,708           (3,291)             

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (5,522,675)       3,224,253       

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

   Investment income received 28,690            -                     

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments (4,230,257)       4,562,413       

Cash and Investments, beginning 6,112,650        1,550,237       

Cash and Investments, ending 1,882,393$      6,112,650$     

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit H-3, continued

Port of Homer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Flows from Operating Activities

     Operating loss (1,202,013)$     (579,157)$       
     Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash flows from operating activities:
         Depreciation 1,489,777        1,386,053       
         Noncash expense - PERS relief 299,245           134,811          
         Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts (12,518)           4,579              
         Amortization of deferred lease revenue (18,000)           (18,000)           
         Miscellaneous nonoperating revenues and expense, net 129,127           138,170          
         (Increase) decrease in assets:
            Accounts receivable 37,337             129,043          
            Inventory 1,216              (935)               
            Prepaid items 356                 (626)               
         Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
            Accounts payable 379,317           52,249            
            Accrued payroll and related liabilities 3,065              200                 
            Unearned grant revenue 33,947             21,710            
            Accrued leave 13,164             30,975            
            Prepaid berth rentals and deposits 50,637             49,939            

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,204,657$      1,349,011$      

Interest capitalized 133,924$         -$                   

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Internal Service Funds 
 
 
Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided to other City 
departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
 
Health Insurance Fund – This fund accounts for the cost of medical, dental, vision and self-insurance 
claims. 
 
Leave Cash-out Fund – This fund accounts for anticipated employee leave cash outs. 
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Exhibit I-1

Health Leave

December 31, 2014 Insurance Cash-out Total

Assets

Cash and investments 905,353$       7,386$         912,739$      

Prepaid items 123,154         -                 123,154        

Total Assets 1,028,507$    7,386$         1,035,893$   

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

  Accounts payable 155,536$       -$                155,536$      

Net Position

Unrestricted 872,971         7,386          880,357        

Total Liabilities and Net Position 1,028,507$    7,386$         1,035,893$   

Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-2

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

                                                 Health Leave

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Insurance Cash-out Total

Operating Revenues

   Interfund charges 1,818,830$     173,932$    1,992,762$    

   Employee health contributions 217,613         -                 217,613         

   Refunds and reinsurance 394,578         -                 394,578         

Total Operating Revenues 2,431,021      173,932      2,604,953      

Operating Expenses

   Personnel -                    151,406      151,406         

   Claims 1,216,168      -                 1,216,168      

   Insurance premiums 301,444         -                 301,444         

   Administration 93,418           -                 93,418          

   Employee incentive fees 68,287           -                 68,287          

Total Operating Expenses 1,679,317      151,406      1,830,723      

Change in Net Position 751,704         22,526        774,230         

Net Position (Deficit), beginning 121,267         (15,140)       106,127         

Net Position, ending 872,971$        7,386$        880,357$       

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-3

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Health Leave

Year Ended December 31, 2014 Insurance Cash-out Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

   Receipts from interfund services provided

     and employee contributions 2,036,443$    173,932$      2,210,375$   

   Reciepts for refunds and reinsurance payments 394,578         -                  394,578        

   Payments to employees (68,287)         (151,406)      (219,693)       

   Payments for insurance claims and administration (1,829,755)     -                  (1,829,755)    

Net cash flows from operating activities 532,979         22,526         555,505        

 

Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities

   Decrease in due to other funds -                   (15,140)        (15,140)         

Net Increase in Cash and Investments 532,979         7,386           540,365        

Cash and Investments, beginning 372,374         -                  372,374        

Cash and Investments, ending 905,353$       7,386$         912,739$      

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Flows from for Operating Activities

     Operating income 751,704$       22,526$       774,230$      

     Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

        net cash flows from operating activities:

           Increase in prepaid items (123,154)        -                  (123,154)       

           Decrease in accounts payable (95,571)         -                  (95,571)         

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 532,979$       22,526$       555,505$      

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-4

December 31, 2014 2013

Assets

Cash and investments 905,353$     372,374$      

Prepaid items 123,154       -                  

Total Assets 1,028,507$  372,374$      

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities

   Accounts payable 155,536$     251,107$      

Net Position

Unrestricted 872,971       121,267       

Total Liabilities and Net Position 1,028,507$  372,374$      

Health Insurance Internal Service Fund
Statement of Net Position

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-5

Health Insurance Internal Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Operating Revenues

   Interfund insurance charges 1,818,830$     1,866,304$     

   Employee health contributions 217,613          144,483          

   Refunds and reinsurance 394,578          -                    

Total Operating Revenues 2,431,021       2,010,787       

Operating Expenses

   Claims 1,216,168       1,978,754       

   Insurance premiums 301,444          394,881          

   Administration 93,418           89,059           

   Employee incentive fees 68,287           -                    

Total Operating Expenses 1,679,317       2,462,694       

Operating Income (Loss) 751,704          (451,907)        

Transfers in -                    800,000          

Change in Net Position 751,704          348,093          

Net Position (Deficit), beginning 121,267          (226,826)        

Net Position, ending 872,971$        121,267$        

City of Homer, Alaska
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Exhibit I-6

Health Insurance Internal Service Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities

   Receipts from interfund services provided and 

     employee contributions 2,036,443$     2,010,787$     

   Receipt of refunds and reinsurance payments 394,578          -                 

   Payments for insurance, claims, and administration (1,829,755)      (2,340,022)      

   Payments to employees for incentive fees (68,287)           -                    

Net cash flows from (for) operating activities 532,979          (329,235)        

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

   Transfers in -                     800,000          

   Decrease in due to other funds -                     (98,391)          

Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities -                     701,609          

Net Increase in Cash and Investments 532,979          372,374          

Cash and Investments, beginning 372,374          -                    

Cash and Investments, ending 905,353$        372,374$        

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Flows from (for) by Operating Activities

     Operating income (loss) 751,704$        (451,907)$       

     Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

       flows from operating activities:

           Increase in prepaid items (123,154)         -                    

           Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (95,571)           122,672          

Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities 532,979$        (329,235)$       

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-7

Leave Cash-out Internal Service Fund
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2014 2013

Assets

Cash and investments 7,386$        -$              

Liabilities

Current Liabilities - due to other funds -$               15,140$     

Net Position

Unrestricted (deficit) 7,386          (15,140)      

Total Liabilities and Net Position 7,386$        -$              

City of Homer, Alaska 
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Exhibit I-8

Leave Cash-out Internal Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Operating Revenues - interfund leave cash-out charges 173,932$      231,216$     

Operating Expenses - salaries and benefits 151,406        250,228      

Change in Net Position 22,526          (19,012)       

Net Position (Deficit), beginning (15,140)         3,872          

Net Position (Deficit), ending 7,386$          (15,140)$     

City of Homer, Alaska 

86
113



Exhibit I-9

Leave Cash-out Internal Service Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities

   Receipts from interfund services provided 173,932$     231,216$    

   Payments to employees (151,406)      (250,228)     

Net cash flows from (for) operating activities 22,526         (19,012)       

Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities

  Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (15,140)        15,140        

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments 7,386           (3,872)        

Cash and Investments, beginning -                  3,872          

Cash and Investments, ending 7,386$         -$               

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 

Flows from (for) Operating Activities

     Operating income (loss) 22,526$       (19,012)$     

City of Homer, Alaska
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Schedule of State Financial Assistance 
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Exhibit J-1

January 1, December 31,

Total 2014 State 2014

Grant Grant Receivable Share of State Receivable

Number Award (Unearned) Expenditures Receipts (Unearned)

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

* PERS Relief N/A 1,867,581$  -$                 1,867,591$       1,867,591$      -$                   

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY,

  AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Karen Hornaday Park Improvements 11-DC-234 250,000       81,657          -                      81,657            -                    

Fire Department Equipment Upgrades 15-DC-060 350,000       -                   53,236              -                     53,236            

Spit Trail Completion/Harbor Pathway 09-DC-210 150,000       133,472        -                      133,472          -                    

* Port and Harbor Building & Skyline Fire Station 14-RR-052 2,000,000    76,492          1,918,049         967,722          1,026,819       

* Cruise Ship Dock and Passenger Facility Improvements 12-DC-609 6,000,000    1,121,027     764,548            1,571,658       313,917          

* Revenue sharing N/A 341,037       -                   341,037            341,037          -                    

Total Department of Commerce, Community,

  and Economic Development  1,412,648     3,076,870         3,095,546       1,393,972       

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Fish Tax N/A 54,283         -                   54,283              54,283            -                    

Fish Business Landing Tax N/A 4,338          -                   4,338               4,338              -                    

Electric and Telephone Co-op Tax N/A 26,845         -                   26,845              26,845            -                    

Liquor Licenses N/A 24,350         -                   24,350              24,350            -                    

Total Department of Revenue -                   109,816            109,816          -                    

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

  AND EARLY DEVELOPMENT

Public Library Assistance PLA-14-738-32 6,600          (6,322)          6,322               -                     -                    

Public Library Assistance PLA-15-738-32 6,650          -                   1,236               6,650              (5,414)            

Total Department of Education and Early Development (6,322)          7,558               6,650              (5,414)            

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

East End Road Sewer Main Extension 40905 41,776         41,776          -                      41,776            -                    

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC

  FACILITITES

* Homer Spit Pathway (Note 2) 54597 2,500,000    -                   2,471,031         2,500,000       (28,969)          

* Homer Spit Pathway - Donated Roads 54597 3,160,000    -                   3,160,000         3,160,000       -                    

Click it or Ticket Enforcement Mobilization N/A 1,588          -                   1,588               1,588              -                    

* Homer Harbor Improvements 14-HG-001 2,855,018    189,850        2,433,726         175,500          2,448,076       

Total Department of Transportation 189,850        8,066,345         5,837,088       2,419,107       

Total State Financial Assistance 1,637,952$   13,128,180$     10,958,467$    3,807,665$     

* Major Program

City of Homer, Alaska 

Schedule of State Financial Assistance
Year Ended December 31, 2014

State Grant Title
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City of Homer, Alaska 
 

Notes to the Schedule of State Financial Assistance 
Year Ended December 31, 2014 
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1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying Schedule of State Financial Assistance include the grant activity of City of Homer 
and are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  The information in the schedules is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance 
Supplement for State Single Audits. 
 
2. Homer Spit Pathway 
 
In 2014, the City discovered that it had failed to report expenditures associated with this program on 
the Schedule of State Financial Assistance.  The 2014 Schedule of State Financial Assistance is 
reporting $2,471,030 in expenditures.  Of this amount, $1,872,622 was actually incurred in 2013.  
This amount has been included in the 2014 expenditure population for major program testing. 
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This part of the City of Homer's comprehensive annual  financial report presents detailed information as

a context for understanding this year's financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary

information.  This information has not been audited by the independent auditor.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader in assessing the City's
current financial performance by placing it in historical perspective.

     Table 1      Net Position by Component 95

     Table 2      Changes in Net Position 96

     Table 3      Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source 97

     Table 4      Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 98

     Table 5      Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 99

Revenue Capacity

These tables contain information that may assist the reader in assessing the viability of the
City's "own-source" revenue sources.

     Table 6      Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 100

     Table 7      Property Tax Rates -  Direct and Overlapping Government 101

     Table 8      Principal Property Taxpayers 102

     Table 9      Property Tax Levies and Collections 103

Debt Capacity

These tables present information that may assist the reader in analyzing the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

     Table 10     Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 104

     Table 11     Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 105

     Table 12     Ratios of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt

                       to Total General Fund Expenditures 106

Demographic and Economic Information

These tables offer economic and demographic indicators that are commonly used for
financial analysis and that can inform one's understanding of the City's present and ongoing
financial status.

     Table 13     Demographics and Economic Statistics 107

     Table 14     Principal Employers - Lower Kenai Penninsula 108

Statistical Section
(Unaudited)
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Contents Page

Operating Information

These tables contain service and infrastructure indicators that can inform one's
understanding of how the information in the City's financial statements relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

     Table 15     City Employees by Function / Program 109

     Table 16     Operating Indicators by Function 110

     Table 17     Operating Assets Indicators by Function 111

Source:

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the annual 
financial reports for the relevant year.

Statistical Section, continued
(Unaudited)
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Table 1

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Governmental Activities

Net investment in

  capital assets 58,894,875$        66,235,552$         63,752,627$        63,616,675$        62,427,809$        43,615,673$         43,848,027$        43,879,310$         42,266,274$         39,633,946$         

Restricted 7,614,492            7,737,510             6,691,992            7,284,209            5,610,035           3,350,187            4,334,477            3,350,187            3,601,605            3,768,592             

Unrestricted 16,187,864          8,085,027             15,644,941          15,774,292          16,833,035          10,482,882           8,149,368            6,014,887            4,932,592            3,919,540             

Total Governmental 

82,697,231$      82,058,089$       86,089,560$      86,675,176$      84,870,879$     57,448,742$       56,331,872$      53,244,384$      50,800,471$       47,322,078$       

Business-type Activities

Net investment in

  capital assets 45,489,699$        42,725,081$         40,259,897$        40,597,366$        41,762,236$        63,567,468$         65,571,218$        62,275,608$         63,457,140$         65,800,613$         

Restricted -                         293,697                -                         -                         -                         4,347,509            7,677,436            7,736,778            3,583,803            2,870,245             

Unrestricted 2,802,533            1,092,728             856,101               112,282               (186,693)             1,448,400            (1,289,199)           (806,158)              3,406,230            1,486,971             

Total Business-type 

48,292,232$      44,111,506$       41,115,998$      40,709,648$      41,575,543$     69,363,377$       71,959,455$      69,206,228$      70,447,173$       70,157,829$       

Primary government

Net investment in

  capital assets 104,384,574$      108,960,633$        104,012,524$       104,214,041$       104,190,045$      107,183,141$       109,419,245$       106,154,918$       105,723,414$       105,434,559$        

Restricted 7,614,492            8,031,207             6,691,992            7,284,209            5,610,035           7,697,696            12,011,913          11,086,965          7,185,408            6,638,837             

Unrestricted 18,990,397          9,177,755             16,501,042          15,886,574          16,646,342          11,931,282           6,860,169            5,208,729            8,338,822            5,406,511             

Total Primary Government

130,989,463$    126,169,595$     127,205,558$    127,384,824$    126,446,422$   126,812,119$     128,291,327$    122,450,612$    121,247,644$     117,479,907$     

  

Notes:

   In 2010, the City converted its Water and Sewer Utility from an Enterprise Fund to a Special Revenue Fund.  Prior years presentation has not

      been reclassified or restated to reflect this change.

   In 2012 the City implemented GASB 63.  Net assets have been retitled.

City of Homer, Alaska

(accrual basis of accounting)

Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

  Activities Net Position

  Activities Net Position

  Net Position
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Table 2

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Expenses

Governmental Activities:

General government 2,337,006$       3,509,077$       3,889,598$       3,907,607$         3,722,993$         2,066,529$         1,761,505$       1,621,298$       1,453,282$      1,800,060$       

Public safety 4,160,799         4,801,462         4,757,442         4,451,784          4,168,529          4,409,769           4,546,766         3,989,765         3,912,322        3,322,075        

Public works 2,402,560         2,920,106         2,680,878         2,612,530          2,676,839          2,955,896           2,637,639         2,422,038         2,405,097        1,066,319        

Library 1,026,662         1,037,518         987,638            943,075             931,139             932,552              890,800            805,570            370,404           293,831           

Airport 282,404            267,179            283,619            281,351             207,701             239,214              233,176            200,331            152,414           149,341           

Parks & recreation 760,178            576,656            512,081            387,924             468,782             427,271              494,083            410,556            391,303           356,721           

Community services 252,833            7,800,998         899,357            586,195             263,224             266,144              321,970            235,831            211,894           582,677           

Water 2,660,899         2,682,608         2,724,923         2,607,880          2,231,144          -                        -                      -                      -                     -                     

Sewer 2,187,873         1,924,466         1,872,736         1,655,405          2,339,709          -                        -                      -                      -                     -                     

Unallocated interest 366,493            440,827            250,842            225,572             225,553             63,870               141,014            113,536            64,676            70,829             

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 16,437,707     25,960,897     18,859,114     17,659,323       17,235,613       11,361,245       11,026,953     9,798,925       8,961,392      7,641,853       

Business-type Activities:

Port & Harbor 5,266,806         5,286,008         4,876,870         4,649,705          4,501,480          4,794,367           4,529,886         4,406,311         4,075,045        3,885,187        

Water & Sewer -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       6,145,835           5,820,558         5,318,033         4,737,887        4,615,144        

Total Business-type Activities Expenses 5,266,806       5,286,008       4,876,870       4,649,705         4,501,480        10,940,202       10,350,444     9,724,344       8,812,932      8,500,331       

Total Activities Expenses 21,704,513$   31,246,905$   23,735,984$   22,309,028$     21,737,093$     22,301,447$     21,377,397$   19,523,269$   17,774,324$  16,142,184$   

Program Revenues

Governmental Activities:

Charges for services

General Government 675,783$          662,367$          515,737$          511,997$            211,625$           185,215$            116,606$          290,197$          437,696$         433,860$          

Public Safey 351,816            329,021            234,527            258,804             198,119             633,372              317,835            462,050            323,916           389,826           

Public Works -                      -                      6,048               9,427                 12,090               62,544               34,715             71,864             62,633            61,572             

Library -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       4,869                 499,189            -                      -                     -                     

Airport 126,774            137,177            170,609            168,569             166,666             165,781              169,196            170,944            143,604           125,316           

Parks and Recreation 156,574            140,960            129,070            145,587             175,859             165,849              157,264            183,310            173,204           181,924           

Community Services 40,280             33,565             28,345             31,767               32,292               28,166               27,058             38,696             18,549            -                     

Water 2,023,009         3,303,929         1,718,767         1,765,551          2,067,751          -                        -                      -                      -                     -                     

Sewer 1,743,301         3,105,293         1,554,324         1,521,740          1,483,423          -                        -                      -                      -                     -                     

Operating grants & contributions 2,231,211         9,834,812         1,377,909         734,045             665,150             607,284              697,372            638,290            640,601           729,240           

Capital grants & contributions 1,844,420         342,571            1,698,849         2,982,510          1,632,234          376,375              746,803            339,482            1,616,075        4,361,468        

Total Governmental Activities Revenues 9,193,168         17,889,695       7,434,185         8,129,997          6,645,209          2,229,455           2,766,038         2,194,833         3,416,278        6,283,206        

Business-type Activities:

Charges for services Port&Harbor 4,197,852         4,451,839         3,917,599         3,563,431          3,504,442          3,347,738           3,288,715         2,791,713         2,632,892        2,507,815        

Charges for services Water/Sewer -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       3,039,391           3,023,126         2,734,564         2,745,335        2,605,377        

Operating grants & contributions P&H 299,245            134,811            249,979            103,169             48,469               -                        -                      -                      -                     -                     

Capital grants & contributions P&H 4,732,718         3,523,302         883,031            59,176               -                       -                        -                      55,187             -                     68,090             

Capital grants & contributions W/S -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       317,159              4,571,058         1,333,867         2,274,619        221,412           

Total Business-type Activities Revenues 9,229,815         8,109,952         5,050,609         3,725,776          3,552,911          6,704,288           10,882,899       6,915,331         7,652,846        5,402,694        

Total Primary Government 

Program Revenues 18,422,983$   25,999,647$   12,484,794$   11,855,773$     10,198,120$     8,933,743$       13,648,937$   9,110,164$     11,069,124$  11,685,900$   

Net (Expense)Revenue

Governmental Activities (7,244,539)$      (8,071,202)$      (11,424,929)$    (9,529,326)$        (10,590,404)$      (9,131,790)$        (8,260,915)$      (7,604,092)$      (5,545,114)$     (1,358,647)$      

Business-type Activities 3,963,009         2,823,944         173,739            (923,929)            (948,569)            (4,235,914)          532,455            (2,809,013)        (1,160,086)       (3,097,637)       

Total Primary Government 

   Net Expenses (3,281,530)$    (5,247,258)$    (11,251,190)$  (10,453,255)$    (11,538,973)$   (13,367,704)$    (7,728,460)$    (10,413,105)$  (6,705,200)$   (4,456,284)$    

General Revenues and Other

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities:

Taxes:

  Property Taxes 3,091,791$       3,224,520$       2,999,341$       2,922,246$         3,051,919$         2,889,856$         2,976,794$       2,529,614$       2,406,263$      2,091,977$       

  Sales Taxes 7,488,925         7,307,475         7,031,266         7,059,404          6,613,640          5,361,109           6,334,758         6,173,478         5,670,638        5,119,528        

  Other 573,889            572,660            808,706            1,220,638          1,272,273          2,113,103           967,635            1,195,849         487,481           376,102           

Transfers -                      128,000            -                      131,335             (24,925)              (115,408)            (30,000)            149,064            459,125           110,000           

Special items (5,143,546)        (7,192,924)        -                      -                       -                       -                        1,099,216         -                      -                     -                     

Total Governmental Activities Revenue 6,011,059         4,039,731         10,839,313       11,333,623         10,912,907         10,248,660         11,348,403       10,048,005       9,023,507        7,697,607        

Business-type Activities:

Sales tax -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       1,072,222           1,266,790         1,235,022         1,134,096        1,031,167        

Other 217,717            299,564            232,611            189,369             235,444             452,206              409,544            482,110            774,459           303,140           

Transfers -                      (128,000)           -                      (131,335)            24,925               115,408              30,000             (149,064)          (459,125)         (110,000)          

Special item write-off NPO -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       -                        514,438            -                      -                     -                     

Total Business-type Activities Revenue 217,717            171,564            232,611            58,034               260,369             1,639,836           2,220,772         1,568,068         1,449,430        1,224,307        

Total Primary Government General 

   and Transfers Revenue 6,228,776$     4,211,295$     11,071,924$   11,391,657$     11,173,276$     11,888,496$     13,569,175$   11,616,073$   10,472,937$  8,921,914$     

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities (1,233,480)$      (4,031,471)$      (585,616)$         1,804,297$         322,503$           1,116,870$         3,087,488$       2,443,913$       3,478,393$      6,338,960$       

Business-type Activities 4,180,726         2,995,508         406,350            (865,895)            (688,200)            (2,596,078)          2,753,227         (1,240,945)        289,344           (1,873,330)       

Total Primary Government 2,947,246$     (1,035,963)$    (179,266)$       938,402$          (365,697)$        (1,479,208)$      5,840,715$     1,202,968$     3,767,737$    4,465,630$     

Notes:

   The City implemented GASB 34 in 2003.

   In 2010, the City converted its Water and Sewer Utility from an Enterprise Fund to a Special Revenue Fund.  Prior years presentation has not

      been reclassified or restated to reflect this change.

   In 2012 the City implemented GASB 63.  Net assets have been retitled.

   Special items - 2008 - Write off NPO, 2013 - Construction of gas pipline on-behalf of third parties

(accrual basis of accounting)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Net Position

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 3

Fiscal Property Sales 

Year Tax Tax Total

2014 3,091,791$       7,488,925$       10,580,716$    

2013 3,224,520         7,307,475         10,531,995      

2012 2,999,341         7,031,266         10,030,607      

2011 2,999,341         7,031,266         10,030,607      

2010 3,051,919         6,613,640         9,665,559        

2009 2,889,856         5,361,109         8,250,965        

2008 2,976,794         6,334,758         9,311,552        

2007 2,501,693         6,173,478         8,675,171        

2006 2,382,936         5,670,638         8,053,574        

2005 2,102,170         5,119,528         7,221,698        

Source: A2 pg 19

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 4

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Nonspendable 586,601$         282,660$         256,265$         244,317$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Restricted 76,421             -                     -                     -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Assigned 171,314           171,314           171,314           171,314           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unassigned 5,734,697        5,593,810        5,661,033        6,312,215        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

6,569,033$     6,047,784$     6,088,612$     6,727,846$     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Nonspendable 305,514$         290,498$         250,313$         334,666$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Restricted 7,538,071        6,467,413        6,691,992        7,284,209        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Committed 2,031,828        1,966,031        1,648,032        
Assigned 3,650,074        6,822,959        5,790,954        5,987,998        -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Unassigned (362,435)          (1,825,321)       (62,591)            (97,653)            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

13,163,052$   13,721,580$   14,318,700$   13,509,220$   -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Reserved -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    255,883$        297,291$        353,901$        296,910$        260,274$        280,743$        
Unreserved, designated:
   Interfund Loan Animal Shelter -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    200,000          250,000          300,000          350,000          400,000          
   PERS -                     -                     -                     -                     171,314          171,314          171,314          171,314          -                    -                    
   Designated for subsequent 
      year's expenditures -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
   Undesignated -                     -                     -                     -                     5,146,617       4,226,615       3,825,104       4,230,983       3,282,823       2,186,409       
Total Unreserved General Fund -                     -                     -                     -                     5,317,931       4,597,929       4,246,418       4,702,297       3,632,823       2,586,409       

-                     -                     -                     -                     5,573,814       4,895,220       4,600,319       4,999,207       3,893,097       2,867,152       

Reserved -                     -                     -                     -                     5,929,657       4,367,506       4,334,477       3,350,187       3,601,605       3,768,592       
Unreserved:
   Library -                     -                     -                     -                     31,519            31,501            31,326            29,289            27,750            8,982             
   Fire Department -                     -                     -                     -                     68,324            64,110            62,965            53,948            11,482            15,522            
   Animal Shelter -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    7,382             7,352             7,173             6,796             10,088            
   Community Schools -                     -                     -                     -                     1,136             1,792             509                699                197                -                    
   Sustainability Global Warming -                     -                     -                     -                     14,774            15,257            15,162            107                -                    -                    
PERS -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    14,436            -                    -                    -                    -                    
Permanent Fund -                     -                     -                     -                     1,531,315       1,150,377       -                    -                    -                    -                    
Special Revenue Funds -                     -                     -                     -                     3,434,211       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
   Capital Project Funds/land -                     -                     -                     -                     2,560,121       2,973,118       3,116,382       1,857,872       1,784,965       1,435,923       
   Capital Project Deficit -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    (47,379)           (20,873)           (3,744)            (31,147)           (455,223)         
Total Unreserved Other
   Governmental Funds -                     -                     -                     -                     7,641,400       4,210,594       3,212,823       1,945,344       1,800,043       1,015,292       

-                     -                     -                     -                     13,571,057     8,578,100       7,547,300       5,295,531       5,401,648       4,783,884       

Total General Fund and
19,732,085$     19,769,364$     20,407,312$     20,237,066$     19,144,871$    13,473,320$    12,147,619$    10,294,738$    9,294,745$     7,651,036$     

Change in Fund Balances (37,279)            (637,948)          170,246           1,092,195        2,031,354       1,325,701       1,852,881       999,993          1,643,709       1,567,558       
Percentage of Change -0.2% -3.1% 0.8% 5.7% 11.9% 10.9% 18.0% 10.8% 21.5% 25.8%

Notes:
   In 2010, the City converted its Water and Sewer Utility from an Enterprise Fund to a Special Revenue Fund.  Prior years presentation has not
      been reclassified or restated to reflect this change.
In 2011, the City adopted the provisions of GASB statement 54.  Prior year presentation has not been reclassifed or restated to reflect the change.

City of Homer, Alaska

Total Other Governmental Funds

 Other Governmental Funds

Other Governmental Funds

Total General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Total General Fund

Other Governmental Funds

Total Other governmental Funds

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)
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Table 5

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Revenues

  Property taxes 3,119,599$       3,209,009$       2,991,230$       2,916,176$       2,954,829$       2,930,696$      2,975,448$        2,501,693$       2,382,936$        2,102,170$     

  Sales taxes 7,488,925         7,307,475         7,031,266         7,059,404         6,613,640        5,361,109        6,334,758         6,173,478         5,670,638         5,119,528       

  Licenses and permits 27,931             35,706             22,248             25,040             22,965             19,614            26,219              43,765             46,096              42,717            

  Intergovernmental 4,428,139         10,472,084       3,573,807         4,779,839         2,937,975        1,854,305        1,778,519         1,873,233         2,247,343         3,740,329       

  Charges for services 5,748,378         5,414,421         5,246,446         5,202,621         5,139,533        2,629,639        2,337,323         2,382,465         2,136,838         2,183,048       

  Special assessments 497,828            296,699            329,958            308,497            415,625           110,543           127,876            14,802             11,180              15,462            

  Investment income 144,146            149,444            240,083            115,862            162,146           82,117            156,429            290,987            233,998            150,223          

  Fines and forfeitures 20,142             10,469             8,065               17,460             15,551             16,065            34,193              19,941             19,435              23,269            

  Contributions and donations 9,524               1,189               19,044             6,516               4,224               2,910              9,181               42,256             64,412              1,362,374       

  Legal settlement -                      -                      -                      -                      266,027           1,150,878        -                      -                      740,404            -                    

  Sale of property and equipment -                      -                      -                      -                      4,917               4,869              499,189            -                      -                      -                    

  Other 70,079             139,176            56,825             41,080             199,703           45,092            170,538            19,970             24,207              23,362            

Total Revenues 21,554,691       27,035,672       19,518,972       20,472,495       18,737,135       14,207,837      14,449,673        13,362,590       13,577,487        14,762,482     

Expenditures

  General government 3,706,787         3,251,596         3,533,983         3,639,834         3,010,375        3,380,193        2,964,905         2,585,147         2,220,086         2,689,530       

  Public safety 4,717,973         4,319,418         4,212,716         3,989,471         3,939,507        4,096,996        4,189,377         3,622,296         3,549,911         3,053,686       

  Public works 2,183,582         1,956,933         1,944,267         1,905,736         1,822,923        2,023,907        2,108,115         1,750,045         1,688,688         1,491,893       

  Library 847,655            771,638            707,603            705,152            716,824           724,150           681,983            593,027            449,289            374,932          

  Airport 221,302            195,109            209,859            216,035            201,118           230,934           228,720            196,710            179,504            146,221          

  Parks and recreation 409,211            383,439            347,107            299,631            377,280           359,683           422,251            384,697            367,027            338,359          

  Community services 252,833            7,800,998         899,357            586,195            261,435           266,144           321,970            235,831            211,894            582,677          

  Water 2,283,417         1,862,937         1,951,063         1,894,144         1,697,751        -                     -                      -                      -                      -                    

  Sewer 1,798,228         1,773,753         1,745,959         1,650,640         1,647,605        -                     -                      -                      -                      -                    

  Debt service:

    Principal retirement 858,082            854,981            876,324            1,017,807         1,049,248        57,934            470,615            608,431            655,016            513,640          

    Interest and fiscal charges 549,595            203,557            218,679            229,263            225,553           63,870            75,812              113,536            64,676              70,829            

    Debt deobligation 1,580,014         -                      -                      -                      -                     -                     -                      -                      -                      -                    

  Capital outlay 2,462,387         5,243,705         4,267,539         5,540,169         2,265,965        1,612,185        1,103,044         2,421,941         5,153,413         4,043,157       

Total Expenditures 21,871,066       28,618,064       20,914,456       21,674,077       17,215,584       12,815,996      12,566,792        12,511,661       14,539,504        13,304,924     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

  Over (Under) Expenditures (316,375)           (1,582,392)        (1,395,484)        (1,201,582)        1,521,551        1,391,841        1,882,881         850,929            (962,017)           1,457,558       

Special item - construction of gas pipeline 5,143,546         7,192,924         -                      -                      -                     -                     -                      -                      -                      -                    

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

  Proceeds from long-term debt 3,550,020         8,809,368         1,565,730         2,162,442         534,728           14,536            -                      -                      2,146,601         -                    

  Transfers in 243,383            327,412            1,359,935         1,440,006         434,460           413,609           2,183,992         2,499,222         2,160,007         2,498,261       

  Transfers out (243,383)           (999,412)           (1,359,935)        (1,308,671)        (459,385)          (494,285)         (2,213,992)        (2,350,158)        (1,700,882)        (2,388,261)      

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,550,020         8,137,368         1,565,730         2,293,777         509,803           (66,140)           (30,000)             149,064            2,605,726         110,000          

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,909,901)$    (637,948)$       170,246$        1,092,195$     2,031,354$     1,325,701$    1,852,881$      999,993$        1,643,709$      1,567,558$   

Debt service as a % of 8.49% 4.54% 6.58% 7.70% 8.40% 1.06% 4.78% 7.37% 8.03% 7.65%

  noncapital expenditures

Notes:

   In 2010, the City converted its Water and Sewer Utility from an Enterprise Fund to a Special Revenue Fund.  Prior years presentation has not

      been reclassified or restated to reflect this change.

(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 6

Real Property Personal Assessed

Less Tax Property Less Tax Value as a

Exempt Tax Exempty Total Taxable Direct Estimated Percent of
Year  Property Property Assessed Value Rate Full Value Actual Value

2005 399,827,162$  26,893,341$     426,720,503$   4.50% 587,914,700$   71.00%

2006 461,018,162    24,598,683       485,616,845     4.50% 646,448,500     72.58%

2007 489,448,562     22,811,263        512,259,825     4.50% 717,875,400     75.12%

2008 588,595,562    24,988,891       613,584,453     4.50% 777,118,400     71.36%

2009 631,527,262    31,030,146       662,557,408     4.50% 850,068,000     78.96%

2010 606,704,342    38,412,787       645,117,129     4.50% 850,068,600     77.94%

2011 603,338,212    25,118,151       628,456,363     4.50% 987,433,007     75.89%

2012 691,321,600    186,215,500     877,537,100     4.50% 983,993,300     89.18%

2013 615,478,812    25,948,461       641,427,273     4.50% 1,046,894,294  61.27%

2014 624,656,144    23,695,000       648,351,144     4.50% 1,046,894,294  61.93%

Source: State of Alaska Assessor Office - Taxable Alaska 

Notes: In 1998, the Kenai Peninsula Borough adopted Borough

Ordinance 97-73 that created a flat tax for watercraft, creating 

$100,000 personal property tax exemption, and increasing

the motor vehicle tax.

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 7

Special Special
Fiscal Year Operating Districts (4) Operating Districts

2005 4.50 1.75 6.50 0.10

2006 4.50 1.75 6.50 0.10

2007 4.50 1.75 6.50 0.00

2008 4.50 2.00 5.50 0.00

2009 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00 (1)

2010 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00

2011 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00

2012 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00

2013 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00

2014 4.50 2.30 4.50 0.00

Notes: Overlapping rates are those of the City of Homer and Kenai Peninsula Borough

Restrictions:Tax rates can only be changed by the vote of the people.

(1) The mill rate for the special district, the Post Secondary Fund, was combined 

into the Operating Fund mill rate

(2) Data provided by the Kenai Peninsula Borough Clerk's Office

(3) Data provided by the City of Homer Clerk's Office

(4) The Homer Special Districts include fire and emergency response, higher

education, and support for hospitals.

City of Homer, Alaska

Direct and Overlapping Government
Property Tax Rates

Kenai Peninsula Borough (2)City of Homer (3)

Tax Rates (Mils)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Table 8

Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Taxable of Total

Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable

Owner Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Homer Spit Properties, LLC 10,634,700$      1 0.22 6,592,300$      2 0.15
Lands End Acquisition Corp. 6,224,200         2 0.13 4,204,100        5 0.09
Alaska Growth Properties LLC 6,096,800         3 0.13 -                      0.00
CGF Properties, Inc 4,517,800         4 0.10 2,256,000        9 0.05
Homer Hotels LLC 4,420,900         5 0.09 -                      0.00
Moore Kenneth & Roseleen Trust 4,192,700         6 0.09 2,668,900        7 0.06
Wells Fargo (National Bank of AK) 4,143,700         7 0.09 3,382,696        6 0.08
Alaska USA Federal Credit Union 4,668,100         8 0.00 0.00
First National Bank Alaska 3,864,000         9 0.08 0.00
Valentin Caspaar LLC 3,451,700         10 0.07 2,382,700        8 0.05
ACS of the Northland Inc 0.00 10,629,557      1 0.24
Johnson John R & Judith E 0.00 5,483,200        3 0.12
Tulin Charles E & Helen 0.00 4,796,400        4 0.11
Maritime Helicopters 0.00 10 0.00
Harbor Enterprises 0.00 -                      0.00
Ramos Jose & Maria 0.00 2,045,800        0.05
Total 52,214,600$    100% 44,441,653$   100%
Source:  Kenai Peninsula Borough

Note:  Total Taxable Assessed Values are utilized from Table 6

City of Homer, Alaska

Principal Property Taxpayers
December 31, 2014

and December 31, 2005

20052014
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Table 9

Collected in

Fiscal Year Total Tax Subsequent

Ended Levy for Years

December 31, Fiscal Year Amount % of Levy Amount Amount % of Levy

 

2005 2,013,518$     1,989,890$     98.83% 23,628$         2,013,518$  98.51%

2006 2,342,439 2,299,478 98.17% 32,081 2,331,559 100.00%

2007 2,383,617 2,339,720 98.16% 10,970 2,350,690 99.54%

2008 2,678,567 2,678,150 99.97% 417 2,678,567 98.62%

2009 2,678,567 2,658,526 99.25% 6,959 2,665,485 99.51%

2010 2,862,172 2,815,749 98.38% 41,043 2,856,792 99.52%

2011 2,869,743 2,764,751 96.34% 100,863 2,865,614 99.81%

2012 2,858,559 2,718,294 95.09% 19,748 2,738,041 95.78%

2013 2,806,719 2,719,474 96.89% 44,370 2,763,845 98.47%

2014 2,845,241 2,780,555 97.73% 11,552 2,792,107 98.13%

Source:  Kenai Peninsula Borough

City of Homer, Alaska

 to Date

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Tax Collected
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Table 10

General Special General Total Percentage

Obligation Assessment Notes Capital Revenue Obligation Notes Capital Primary of Personal Per

Bonds Bonds Payable Leases Bonds Bonds Payable Leases Government Income Capita

2005 920,000$     10,527$        -$                212,257$   870,000$      -$              7,479,081$  -$             9,491,865$    7.50% 1,746$  

2006 475,000       5,280           1,992,753    163,044     620,000        -                9,539,106    208,909    13,004,092    10.09% 2,384    

2007 -                 -                  1,955,878    71,768       365,000        -                10,160,611  153,810    12,707,067    9.63% 2,310    

2008 -                 -                  1,529,282    27,749       185,000        -                11,567,201  95,720      13,404,952    10.12% 2,487    

2009 -                 -                  1,507,077    6,703         -                   -                14,489,912  34,045      16,037,737    13.24% 2,889    

2010 -                 -                  15,489,024  -                -                   -                -                  -               15,489,024    11.70% 3,096    

2011 -                 -                  16,629,968  -                -                   -                -                  -               16,629,968    15.14% 3,292    

2012 -                 -                  17,319,000  -                -                   -                -                  -               17,319,000    15.45% 3,361    

2013 -                 8,809,368     16,491,952  -                -                   4,204,780  -                  -               29,506,100    28.17% 5,674    

2014 -                 12,359,388   14,053,013  -                -                   3,605,000  -                  -               30,017,401    26.34% 5,050    

Population per Alaska Department of Community and Economic Development

In 2010, the City converted its Water and Sewer Utility from an Enterprise Fund to a Special Revenue Fund.  Prior years have not been reclassified

   or restated.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 11

Percent of

Debt Net Bonded Net

Gross Service Debt to Bonded

Assessed Bonded Funds Net Bonded Assessed Debt Per
 Fiscal Year Population Value Debt Available Debt  Value Capita

2014 5153 624,656$    3,605$      294$         3,311$       0.53% -             

2013 5153 615,479      3,735        294           3,441        0.56% 668         

2012 5239 626,606      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2011 5051 504,558      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2010 5003 662,557      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2009 5551 631,527      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2008 5390 588,595      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2007 5502 551,814      -               -               -                0.00% -             

2006 5454 520,542      475           307           168           0.03% 31          

2005 5435 447,448      920           281           639           0.14% 118         

Note:  Population per Alaska Department of Community and Economic Development

     Gross Bonded Debt includes all long-term general obligation bonded debt. It excludes special assessment

     bonds.  Beginning in 2013, the General Obligation debt is in the Harbor Enterprise Fund.

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita amount)

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 12

Percent of

Total Debt Service to

Total General Fund General Fund
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Debt Service Expenditures Expenditures

2014 -$           -$              -$                   12,215,338$     0.00%

2013 -            -                -                     11,065,711       0.00%

2012 -            -                -                     11,021,941       0.00%

2011 -            -                -                     10,140,595       0.00%

2010 -            -                -                     9,989,455        0.00%

2009 -            -                -                     10,807,821       0.00%

2008 -            -                -                     11,046,268       0.00%

2007 475,000  21,082       496,082          9,356,829        5.30%

2006 445,000  39,916       484,916          8,414,502        5.76%

2005 420,000  57,766       477,766          8,018,872        5.96%

Note:  Principal and interest does not include debt service paid by the Water & Sewer,

      and Port Enterprise Funds.  The City had no bonded debt payable from the general fund in 2014.

Ratios of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for

General Bonded Debt to Total General Fund Expenditures
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 13

(1) (2) (1) (3) (2)

Annual

Average Per 

Wage Per Capita Median School Unemployment 

Year Population Worker Income Age Enrollment Rate

2014 5,099 36,000$    33,469$     44.0     1,407 8.8%

2013 5,153 36,000      20,330       44.0     1,427 9.0%

2012 5,239 32,035      21,750       40.6     1,198 9.9%

2011 5,051 32,035      21,750       40.6     765 9.9%

2010 5,003 32,120      21,823       38.8     1,329 11.5%

2009 5,551 31,601      21,823       38.8     1,462 14.8%

2008 5,390 31,625      24,565       38.8     1,445 7.5%

2007 5,502 30,795      23,985       39.7     1,135 6.7%

2006 5,454 31,164      23,630       38.8     1,119 8.6%

2005 5,435 30,696      23,280       38.8     1,248 8.6%

Sources:

(1) Alaska Department of Community and Economic Development

(2) State of Alaska, Department of Labor

(3) Kenai Peninsula Borough School District

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 14

Percentage

Number of of Total 

Employer Employees Rank Employment

 

* The State of Alaska passed legislation that prevents disclosure of employer ranking and or the

the number of employees for each employer.

Source: Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development

City of Homer, Alaska

Principal Employers - Lower Kenai Peninsula

2014
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Table 15

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Function/Program

Administration 29       30     30     30     29     30     29     29     34     27     

Public Safety:

   Fire Department 6         5       5       5       5       6       6       6       6       6       

   Police Department 25       24     24     24     24     26     21     24     27     26     

Public Works:

   PW General Fund 20       22     22     21     15     17     16     13     11     14     

   PW Water/Sewer 16       11     11     11     17     18     18     19     23     25     

Port and Harbor 20       20     20     20     20     20     13     11     13     18     

Total 116      112   112   111   110   117   103   102   114   116   

Notes: Above statistical information taken directly from the 2013 City of Homer Adopted Budget

Last Ten Fiscal Years
City Employees by Function/Program

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 16

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Function/Program

General Government

Registered voters 4,463        4,337        4,436        4,277        4,289        4,270        4,161        4,172        4,073        4,022        

Building permits issued 62            63            49            40            45            55            62            87            83            103           

Police

Requests for service 7,193        7,067        5,604        6,584        6,661        6,139        7,532        6,052        5,987        5,878        

Physical arrests 603           662           619           712           572           471           391           425           428           507           

Traffic citations 113           194           204           650           660           662           731           515           450           464           

Animal control impounds 46            44            66            65            361           3              415           864           1,048        1,065        

Fire 

Emergency responses 483           526           523           438           536           641           599           566           472           469           

Fires calls 112           74            73            75            combined combined 83            100           79            111           

Parks & Recreation

Camping permits - Tents 4,000        3,878        3,386        3,778        9,145        9,172        3,852        3,934        3,830        3,888        

Camping permits - RV's 4,110        3,631        3,668        4,090        combined combined 4,988        5,621        5,250        5,515        

Library 

Number of Visitors 129,600    124,102    115,118    123,015    126,030    125,441    132,402    133,186    91,301      88,372      

Number of Library cards 652           852           793           10,695      11,717      10,720      10,405      10,055      9,812        9,073        

Internet Users 47,229      48,184      49,640      48,270      45,887      44,987      -           40,041      -           19,145      

Public Works

Work orders 6,641        6,975        7,737        7,426        7,509        6,573        6,553        6,761        6,852        6,758        

Water

Number of Consumers 1,643        1,780        1,585        1,559        1,541        1,450        1,445        1,406        1,406        1,373        

Water usage in 

  millions gal 139.6 129.9 121.9            135      1,308.0      1,503.0         142.2         145.1         137.5         179.0 

Wastewater

Number of Consumers 1,698        1,657        1,513        1,490        1,445        1,444        1,432        1,354        1,354        1,280        

Port & Harbor

Harbor Assists 361           698           253           333           196           150           143           197           220           298           

Dock Landings 1,344        1,669        911           843           150           421           226           202           162           139           

Ice sales (ton) 2,045        2,723        2,584        3,182        4,385        4,434        3,776        3,826        3,333        4,261        

Crane hours billed 2,157        2,599        2,270        2,364        2,795        3,134        2,672        2,574        2,535        2,819        

Halibut landings 

  (million tons) 4              7              4              6              11            12            9              10            10            10            

Notes: Above statistical information received directly from the various City of Homer Departments.

Last Ten Fiscal Years
Operating Indicators by Function

City of Homer, Alaska
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Table 17

Fiscal Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Function by Program

Emergency Services

Number of Stations 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Number of Fire Trucks 3 5 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 2

Number of Ambulances 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Number of Employees/ 6 5

   Volunteers 41 38 43 46 41 39 39 39 38 37

Police Protection

Number of Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Patrol Units 12 12 13 0 12 12 12 11 10 9

Number of Employees  25 24 22 24 26 26 21 24 27 28

Public Works

Miles of City-maintained 

   streets 45.4 48.75 48.75 47.1 47.1 46.5 46.5 46.9 46.9 46.5

Water/ Sewer

Miles of Water Lines 46.37 51.53 46.37 42.5 42.5 42.4 42.4 42.4 42.3 42.1

Miles of Sewer Lines 54.98 60.3 54.98 49.2 49.2 49.2 49.2 49.2 49.2 48.7

Parks & Recreation

Number of Parks 23 23 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18

Acres 518.6 518.6 285.9 285.9 285.9 518.2 518.2 518.2 267.4 267.4

Library

Volumes 45,375      43,424      49,609        47,748       44,072       43,148    42,812    40,181    36,984    34,791    

Circulation 130,039    108,146    105,387      104,299     108,166     101,290   99,511    98,815    99,020    89,964    

Public use computers 50 20 19 20 18 18 18 18 6 6

Port & Harbor

Small Boat Harbor - stalls 920           105           920             920            920            920         920         920         920         920         

Transient space square feet 6,000        6,000        6,000          6,000         6,000         6,000      6,000      6,000      6,000      6,000      

Notes: Above statistical information received directly from the various City of Homer Departments.

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Operating Assets Indicators by Function

City of Homer, Alaska

111

138



 

112 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 

139



 

113 

Single Audit 

140



 
 
 

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the 
international BDO network of independent member firms. 
 
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms. 

114 

 
 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 

Tel:  907-278-8878 
Fax:  907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 
 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards  

 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Homer, Alaska 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Homer, as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of 
Homer’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 10, 2015.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Homer’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Homer’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Homer’s internal control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  However, as described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.   
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  We consider the deficiencies described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-001 and 2014-002 
to be material weaknesses. 
 
A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Homer’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  
 
City of Homer’s Response to Findings 
 
City of Homer’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Homer’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.   
 

 
 
Anchorage, Alaska 
June 10, 2015
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3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 

Tel:  907-278-8878 
Fax:  907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 
 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance For Each Major State Program and  
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the State of Alaska 
Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits  

 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Homer, Alaska 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
 
We have audited City of Homer’s (the City’s) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for 
State Single Audits that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major 
state programs for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The City’s major state programs are 
identified in the accompanying schedule of state financial assistance.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Homer’s major 
state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits. Those 
standards and the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single 
Audits require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s 
compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
In our opinion, City of Homer, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2014. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of City of Homer is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control 
over compliance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  
However, as discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control that we consider to 
be a material weakness.   
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance 
with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance 
described in the accompany schedule of findings  and questioned costs as item 2014-002 to be a 
material weakness. 
 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
City of Homer’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit 
is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Homer’s 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.   
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single 
Audits. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Anchorage, Alaska 
June 10, 2015 

145



City of Homer, Alaska 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs  
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

 
 

119 

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results 
     
Financial Statements     
     
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 
     
Internal control over financial reporting:     

Material weakness(es) identified? X yes  no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes X (none reported) 

     
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?  yes X no 
     
State Financial Assistance     
     
Internal control over major programs:     

Material weakness(es) identified? X yes  no 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  yes X (none reported) 

     
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 

major programs: Unmodified 
     
Dollar threshold used to distinguish a major state program: $ 100,000
 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards 

 
Finding 2014-001 Material Weakness – Financial Reporting 
  
Criteria: Financial reporting should be done in accordance with the financial

reporting framework of U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) and in accordance with pronouncements issued by GASB. 

  
Condition: We identified a number of accounts that were not fully reconciled or

presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  Journal entries were identified 
that needed to be made to correct the accounts to be reported fairly under
U.S. GAAP. 

  
Context: There were adjustments made to accrued leave, prepaids, capital assets, 

unearned revenue, accounts receivable, grant revenue, bond premiums,
cash, long term liabilities, transfers, and expenditures. 

  
Effect: Items reported in the financial statements were not presented in 

accordance with U.S. GAAP, particularly with areas associated with 
external financial reporting. 

  
Cause: A shortage of staff and experience led to accounts not being closed in a

timely manner. 
  
Recommendation: It is recommended that the City monitor the year-end closing process more 

closely. 
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Views of Responsible 
Officials and Planned 
Corrective Actions: See the corrective action plan. 
 
 

 

Finding 2014-002 Material Weakness - Grants Management – Preparation of the State and 
Federal Expenditure Schedules 

  
Criteria: Internal controls should be established to ensure proper and accurate

financial reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).  State and federal financial assistance schedules should 
reflect expenditures incurred in the current year associated with active
grants. 

  
Condition: The schedules of state and federal financial assistance and were not fully

reconciled at year end.  In addition, a prior period adjustment was 
recorded to the financial statements in connection with the State TORA
revenue not being properly reported on the state schedule in the prior 
year.  This item alone was a $1,872,622 adjustment.  Other material
adjustments were required to the state and federal schedules. 

  
Context: The schedule of federal awards and the schedule of state financial

assistance were incomplete and did not contain all financial assistance
received.  Although the City did not meet the threshold for a federal single 
audit in 2014, the federal schedule still needs to be completed in an
accurate manner in order to facilitate that determination. 

  
Effect: Several material adjustments were required to complete the year-end 

financial statements in accordance with GAAP and the single audit 
requirements. 

  
Cause: The state and federal revenue accounts were not fully closed prior to the

audit.  There was insufficient communication between the program
personnel and the finance office with regards to the TORA activity.
Turnover in personnel at year end contributed to the errors. 

  
Recommendation: We recommend the City should reconcile and adjust the general ledger to

match the financial reports submitted for reimbursement.  Open 
communications between the program managers and the finance office 
should be maintained.  Reconciliation and closing functions should be 
performed timely at month-end, quarter-end, and at year-end to allow for 
financial statement preparation. 

  
Views of Responsible 
Officials and Planned 
Corrective Actions: See the corrective action plan. 
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Section III State of Alaska Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

 
Finding 2014-002 Material Weakness - Grants Management – Preparation of the Schedule of

State Financial Assistance 
  
Program State of Alaska, Department of Transportation and Public Facilities 

TORA – Homer Spit Pathway 
  
 See Finding 2014-002 at Section II – Financial Statement Findings above. 
  
Questioned costs: None reported. 
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Financial Statement Findings  
 
Finding 2013-001 Significant Deficiencies – Financial Reporting 
  
Status This finding has been revised as item 2014-001.  The item has been 

elevated to material weakness status. 
 

State of Alaska Award Findings  
 
There were no prior year audit findings. 
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Persons Responsible: Zhiyong Li, Finance Director 
 Laurie Moore, Accounting Supervisor 
 907-235-3140 
  

Financial Statement Findings  
 
Finding 2014-001 Significant Deficiency – Financial Reporting 
  
Corrective Action: The cross training is ongoing; however, it has been progressing in a much 

slower pace than anticipated. More efforts and targeted training will be 
implemented to emphasize on teamwork and shared responsibilities. These 
kind problems (unreconciled accounts) can be eliminated or detected at an 
early stage. 

  
Expected Completion: The initial phase will be done in 2015. The effort will be ongoing. 
  
Finding 2014-002 Material Weakness - Grants Management – Preparation of the State and 

Federal Expenditure Schedules 
  
Corrective Action: Previously, there were unsuccessful measures implemented to address the 

insufficient communication issue. Started in November 2014, Finance 
Department and Human Resources worked together to investigate the 
problem and determined to find a solution. The issue has been resolved.     

  
Expected Completion: Completed 
  

State of Alaska Award Findings 
  
Finding 2014-002 Material Weakness - Grants Management – Preparation of the Schedule of 

State Financial Assistance 
  
Corrective Action: Previously, there were unsuccessful measures implemented to address the 

insufficient communication issue. Started in November 2014, Finance 
Department and Human Resources worked together to investigate the 
problem and determined to find a solution. The issue has been resolved.     

  
Expected Completion: Completed 
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City of Homer, Alaska  June 15, 2015 

 

 

 

HOMER CITY COUNCIL     SPECIAL MEETING 

491 E. PIONEER AVENUE      6:00 P.M. MONDAY  

HOMER, ALASKA       JUNE 15, 2015 

www.cityofhomer-ak.gov      COWLES COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
          MAYOR BETH WYTHE 

                    COUNCIL MEMBER FRANCIE ROBERTS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER DAVID LEWIS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BRYAN ZAK 

         COUNCIL MEMBER BEAUREGARD BURGESS 

         COUNCIL MEMBER GUS VAN DYKE 

         COUNCIL MEMBER CATRIONA REYNOLDS  

CITY ATTORNEY THOMAS KLINKNER 

                     CITY MANAGER KATIE KOESTER 

         CITY CLERK JO JOHNSON 

                      

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

Special Meeting 4:00 p.m. and Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m. in Homer City Hall 

Cowles Council Chambers.    

  

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

Councilmembers Van Dyke and Zak have requested excusal. 

 

Department Heads may be called upon from time to time to participate via teleconference. 

 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

(Addition of items to or removing items from the agenda will be by unanimous consent of the 

Council. HCC 1.24.040.) 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS UPON MATTERS ALREADY ON THE AGENDA 

 

4. RECONSIDERATION 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

(Items listed below will be enacted by one motion. If separate discussion is desired on an 

item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Meeting 

Agenda at the request of a Councilmember.) 

 

A. Homer City Council unapproved Special and Regular meeting minutes of May 26, 2015. 

City Clerk. Recommend adoption.       Page 165/167 
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B. Memorandum 15-081, from Mayor, Re: Appointment of Anna Rodriguez Sansom to 

the Economic Development Advisory Commission and Reappointments of Don Stead 

and Roberta Highland to the Advisory Planning Commission.   Page 191 

  

C. Memorandum 15-082, from City Clerk, Re: Liquor License Transfer for Beluga Lake 

Lodge and Best Western Bidarka Inn/Otter Room.    Page 197  

 

D. Ordinance 15-19, An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Amending Homer City 

Code Chapter 9.16 to Revise HCC 9.16.040, HCC 9.16.100, and Add HCC 9.16.110 

Repealing the Seasonal Sales Tax Exemption as Applied to Certain Categories of 

Nonprepared Foods, Including But Not Limited to Cakes, Cookies, Ice Cream, Candy, 

Chips, and Frozen Pizzas. Lewis. Recommended dates: Introduction June 15, 2015, 

Public Hearing and Second Reading June 29, 2015.   Page 219 

E. Ordinance 15-20, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 

Appropriating an Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation Municipal 

Matching Grant in The Amount of $1,922,577 and Authorizing a 30% Matching 

Requirement From the Homer Accelerated Water And Sewer Fund (HAWSP) in the 

Amount of $576,773.10 for the Purpose of Completing the Water Distribution/Storage 

Improvement Project and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 

Documents. City Manager/Public Works Director. Recommended dates: Introduction 

June 15, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 29, 2015. Page 231 

 

F. Ordinance 15-21, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the FY 

2015 Operating Budget by Appropriating $277,335.45 to Pay for Homer Natural Gas 

Special Assessment District Assessments of 85 City Lots From Various City Reserve 

Funds. City Manager. Recommended dates: Introduction June 15, 2015, Public Hearing 

and Second Reading June 29, 2015.       Page 237 

  

G. Ordinance 15-22, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Declaring That 

Lillian Walli Estates Subdivision Lots 57-60, 65-67, and 70 No Longer Need to Be 

Retained For a Public Purpose as No Public Need Exists For Retaining the Property and 

Releasing HM0880016 T06S R14W S24 Lillian Walli Estate Sub Lot 60, 65, 66, 67, 70, 57, 

58, 59 For Sale Subject to Land Disposal Proceedings Under the Homer City Code. City 

Manager. Recommended dates: Introduction June 15, 2015, Public Hearing and 

Second Reading June 29, 2015.      Page 251 
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H. Resolution 15-042, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Supporting 

Salmon Habitat Buffers on Lakes and Streams in the Kenai Peninsula Borough. Lewis. 

Recommend adoption.        Page 267 

 

I. Resolution 15-043, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Urging the 

U.S. Navy to Change Training Exercises in the Gulf of Alaska. Zak/Roberts. 

Recommend adoption.         Page 269 

J. Resolution 15-044, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Disbanding the Port and 

Harbor Building Task Force. Mayor. Recommend adoption.   Page 279  

 

Memorandum 15-083 from Port and Harbor Building Task Force as backup. 

          Page 281 

K. Resolution 15-045, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Directing the 

Administration to Issue a Request for Proposals for Ambulance and Emergency 

Medical Billing Services. City Manager. Recommend adoption.  Page 283 

 

Memorandum 15-085 from Finance Director as backup.   Page 285 

 

L. Resolution 15-047, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Changing Dates 

for Payment of Assessments for the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District. 

City Manager. Recommend adoption.      Page 287 

 

 Memorandum 15-084 from City Manager as backup.   Page 289 

 

M. Resolution 15-048, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Noting the 

Sufficiency of the Petition for the Lillian Walli Fairview Avenue Road Reconstruction 

and Paving and Sewer Improvements Special Assessment District and Setting the 

Public Hearing Date for September 14, 2015. City Clerk/Public Works Director. 

Recommend adoption.       Page 295 

 

 Memorandum 15-086 from Public Works Director as backup.  Page 297 

 

N. Memorandum 15-087, from Finance Director, Re: 2016 Proposed Budget 

Development Schedule.       Page 309 

 

6. VISITORS 
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A. Michelle Drew, BDO, Auditor’s Report, 10 minutes.    Page 11 

 

B. Robert Letson, South Peninsula Hospital, 10 minutes   Page 315 

 

C. Friends of the Homer Library, Library Western Lot Improvements, 10 minutes 

           Page 323 

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS/BOROUGH REPORT/COMMISSION REPORTS 

 

A. Borough Report 

 

B. Commissions/Board Reports: 

 

1. Library Advisory Board 

 

2. Homer Advisory Planning Commission 

 

 a. Minutes of June 3, 2015     Page 329 

 

3. Economic Development Advisory Commission 

 

4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 

 

 5. Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 

 

C. Thank You From Kachemak Heritage Land Trust for Grant Award Through The Homer 

Foundation         Page 337 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARING(S)  

 

A. Ordinance 15-14, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 

Appropriating a Commercial Vessel Passenger Tax Program Grant from the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough for FY 2014 in the Amount of $13,925.00 and Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Introduction May 26, 

2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 15, 2015.   Page 345 

 

B. Ordinance 15-15, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Purchasing Tax 

Foreclosure Property, Kenai Peninsula Borough (KPB) Tax Parcel Number 173-052-19 

and Designating its Use for Public Purpose and Authorizing the City Manager to 
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Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Introduction May 26, 2015, Public 

Hearing and Second Reading June 15, 2015.     Page 365 

            

C. Ordinance 15-16, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Homer City Code 3.05.012, Complete Financial Plan, to Exclude State Revenue Sharing 

From Income in the City Budget. Mayor. Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and 

Second Reading June 15, 2015.      Page 377 

    

D. Ordinance 15-17, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) to Permit the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas 

Distribution Special Assessment Bond Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and 

Authorizing an Amendment to the Loan Agreement Between the City and the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough Regarding the Bond. City Manager. Introduction May 26, 2015, 

Public Hearing and Second Reading June 15, 2015.    Page 385 

 

 Ordinance 15-17(S), An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) to Permit the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas 

Distribution Special Assessment Bond Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and 

Authorizing an Amendment to the Loan Agreement Between the City and the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough Regarding the Bond. City Manager.   Page 391 

 

9. ORDINANCE(S) 

 

10. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

A. City Manager’s Report       Page 427 

 

B. Bid Report         Page 459 

 

11. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

 

12. COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

A. Public Arts Committee 

 

B.  Permanent Fund Committee 

 

C. Employee Committee Report 

 

D. Port and Harbor Building Task Force 
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E. Public Safety Building Review Committee 

 

F. Vessel Haul-Out Task Force 

 

13. PENDING BUSINESS 

 

14. NEW BUSINESS 

 

15. RESOLUTIONS 

 

A. Resolution 15-046, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Accepting the 2014 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with Audit and Financial Statements and 

Acknowledging the Management Letter Submitted by the City’s Independent Auditor, 

BDO, USA, LLP and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Financial Report. City 

Manager/Finance Director.       Page 471 

  

16. COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 

17. COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

18. COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 

19.  COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 

20.  COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 

21.  COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

22. ADJOURNMENT 

 Next Special Meeting is Monday, June 29, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., Committee of the Whole 

5:00 p.m., and Worksession 4:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to be held in the City Hall 

Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 
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PUBLIC COMMENTS  
UPON MATTERS  

ALREADY ON THE AGENDA
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RECONSIDERATION
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CONSENT AGENDA
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HOMER CITY COUNCIL  UNAPPROVED 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 26, 2015 

 

1  06/02/15 - jj 

 

Session 15-19 a Special Meeting of the Homer City Council was called to order on May 26, 

2015 at 4:30 p.m. by Mayor Pro Tempore Francie Roberts at the Homer City Hall Cowles 

Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska, and opened with the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   BURGESS, LEWIS, REYNOLDS, ROBERTS, VAN 

DYKE, ZAK 

 

 STAFF:  CITY MANAGER KOESTER 

   CITY CLERK JOHNSON 

   CITY ATTORNEY KLINKNER 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL (Only those matters on the noticed agenda may be considered, pursuant 

to City Council’s Operating Manual, pg. 5) 

 

Mayor Pro Tempore Roberts called for a motion to approve the agenda. 

 

BURGESS/LEWIS SO MOVED. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

Memorandum 15-078 From City Clerk Re: Request for Executive Session Pursuant to AS 

44.62.310 (a-c)(1 & 5) Matters, the Immediate Knowledge of Which Would Clearly Have an 

Adverse Effect Upon the Finances of the Government Unit, and Matters that are Attorney-

Client Privilege (City of Homer v. Castner Supreme Court No. S-15890 Order). 

Mayor Pro Tempore Roberts called for a motion for the approval of the recommendations of 

Memorandum 15-078 to meet In Executive Session to discuss City of Homer v. Castner 

Supreme Court No. S-15890 Order. 

 

LEWIS/BURGESS - SO MOVED. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
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Motion carried. 

 

Mayor Pro Tempore Roberts called for a motion to adjourn to Executive Session. 

 

BURGESS/LEWIS – SO MOVED. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. LEWIS, BURGESS, ROBERTS, REYNOLDS, ZAK VAN DYKE 

 

Motion carried. 

 

The Council adjourned to Executive Session at 4:32 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 4:52 

p.m. 

 

Councilmember Lewis stated the Council spoke with the attorney and he will bring forth a 

resolution on the reassessment of condos at our next meeting. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 

 

There were no comments of the audience. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Pro Tempore Roberts 

adjourned the meeting at 4:53 p.m. The next Regular Meeting is Monday, June 15, 2015 at 6:00 

p.m., Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., and Special Meeting 4:00 p.m. All meetings 

scheduled to be held in the City Hall Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer 

Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 

 

___________________________ 

JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 

 

Approved: __________________ 
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HOMER CITY COUNCIL  UNAPPROVED 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 26, 2015 

 

1  06/03/15 - jj 

 

Session 15-20 a Regular Meeting of the Homer City Council was called to order on May 26, 

2015 at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Mary E. Wythe at the Homer City Hall Cowles Council Chambers 

located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska, and opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   BURGESS, LEWIS, REYNOLDS, ROBERTS, VAN 

DYKE, ZAK 

 

 STAFF:  CITY MANAGER KOESTER 

   CITY CLERK JOHNSON 

   CITY ATTORNEY KLINKNER 

   CITY PLANNER ABBOUD 

   PORT AND HARBOR DIRECTOR HAWKINS 

   PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR MEYER 

 

The Council met for a Special Meeting in Executive Session from 4:30 p.m. to 4:52 p.m. to 

discuss City of Homer v. Castner Supreme Court No. S-15890 Order. From 5:00 p.m. to 5:50 

p.m. the Council met as a Committee of the Whole to discuss Water and Sewer Rates, Consent 

Agenda, and Regular Meeting Agenda items. 

 

Department Heads may be called upon from time to time to participate via teleconference. 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

(Addition of items to or removing items from the agenda will be by unanimous consent of the 

Council. HCC 1.24.040.) 

 

The following changes were made: CONSENT AGENDA - Resolution 15-038(S), A Resolution 

of the Homer City Council Electing to Participate in the AMLJIA Loss Control Incentive 

Program for the City of Homer for the 2015-2016 Policy Year. City Manager/Finance Director. 

ORDINANCES - Ordinance 15-17, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, 

Amending Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) to Permit the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas 

Distribution Special Assessment Bond Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and Authorizing 

an Amendment to the Loan Agreement Between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough 

Regarding the Bond. City Manager. First Amendment to Loan Agreement as backup. 

Ordinance 15-18(S), An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the FY 

2015 Capital Budget by Appropriating $613,000 $621,500 From the General Fund Fund 

Balance to the Public Safety Building Project Account to Fund the New Public Safety Building 

to 35% Design. Mayor. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT -Memorandum 15-079 from City Manager, 

Re: Tax Revenue and Public Safety. Letter from Concerned Citizens and Business Owners of 
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Kachemak Bay, Re: Polystyrene Debris in Kachemak Bay. Letter from Department of 

Corrections, Re: FY 2016 Funding for Jail. 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS – SO MOVED. 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS UPON MATTERS ALREADY ON THE AGENDA 

 

There were no public comments. 

 

RECONSIDERATION 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

(Items listed below will be enacted by one motion. If separate discussion is desired on an 

item, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the Regular Meeting 

Agenda at the request of a Councilmember.) 

 

A. Homer City Council unapproved Regular meeting minutes of May 11, 2015. City Clerk. 

Recommend adoption.         

 

B. Memorandum 15-068, from Mayor, Re: Reappointment of Patrick Brown to the 

Economic Development Advisory Commission.     

  

C. Ordinance 15-14, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 

Appropriating a Commercial Vessel Passenger Tax Program Grant from the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough for FY 2014 in the Amount of $13,925.00 and Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Recommended dates: 

Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015. 

 

Moved to Ordinances. 

            

D. Ordinance 15-15, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Purchasing Tax 

Foreclosure Property, Kenai Peninsula Borough (KPB) Tax Parcel Number 173-052-19 

and Designating its Use for Public Purpose and Authorizing the City Manager to 
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Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Recommended dates: 

Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015.  

            

Moved to Ordinances. 

 

E. Ordinance 15-16, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Homer City Code 3.05.012, Complete Financial Plan, to Exclude State Revenue Sharing 

From Income in the City Budget. Mayor. Recommended dates: Introduction May 26, 

2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015.    

 

Moved to Ordinances. 

 

F. Resolution 15-035, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Requesting 

That the United States Coast Guard Continue to Maintain and Upkeep the Oil Spill 

Response Caches Located in Kachemak Bay, Cook Inlet, and the State of Alaska. 

Reynolds/Burgess. Recommend adoption.      
   

G. Resolution 15-036, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the Contract to 

Create a Municipal Art Baseline Inventory to Far North Photography of Homer, Alaska, 

in the Amount of $3,700 and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 

Documents. City Clerk. Recommend adoption.      

 

 Memorandum 15-071 from Public Arts Committee as backup.   

 

H. Resolution 15-037, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Awarding the 2015 Septic 

Tank Pumping Contract to Homer Septic Services of Homer, Alaska, in the Amount of 

$35,510.00 and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. 

City Clerk. Recommend adoption.       

 

 Memorandum 15-072 from Permit Technician as backup.    

 

I. Resolution 15-038, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Electing to Participate in 

the AMLJIA Loss Control Incentive Program for the City of Homer for the 2014-2015 

Policy Year. City Manager/Finance. Recommend adoption.   

 

Resolution 15-038(S), A Resolution of the Homer City Council Electing to Participate 

in the AMLJIA Loss Control Incentive Program for the City of Homer for the 2015-2016 

Policy Year. City Manager/Finance Director.     
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J. Resolution 15-039, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Establishing a 

2015 Mill Rate of 9.962541 Mills for the Ocean Drive Loop Special Service District. City 

Manager. Recommend adoption. 

       

K. Resolution 15-040, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Establishing the Property 

Tax Mill Levy Rate at 4.5 for 2015. City Manager. Recommend adoption.  

 

Moved to Resolutions. 

 

L. Resolution 15-041, A Resolution of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Approving a 

Five-Year General Concession Lease at the Homer Airport Terminal for Daniel Lush, 

dba Flying Whale Coffee, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate 

Documents. City Manager. Recommend adoption.     

 

 Memorandum 15-073 from City Manager as backup.    

 

M. Memorandum 15-070, from City Clerk, Re: Travel Authorization for Mayor Wythe to 

Attend the “Building a Sustainable Future: Conversation with Alaskans” Discussion 

June 5-7, 2015 at University of Alaska Fairbanks.     

 

Items C, D, and E, Ordinances 15-14, 15-15, and 15-16 were moved to Ordinances, Items C, D, 

and E. Roberts. 

 

Item K, Resolution 15-040 was moved to Resolutions, Item A. Zak. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the approval of the consent agenda as amended. 

 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS – SO MOVED. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

VISITORS 

 

A. Cody Davidson and Mike Hurd, Youth On Record Alaska  

 

Cody Davidson, Mike Hurd, and Anna Meredith reported on Youth On Record Alaska. Digital 

music production classes are held as a means to facilitate healthy choices for teens. The 
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R.E.C. Room is open Monday through Friday 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. They help kids deal with 

crisis, transitions, and make referrals. The programs are grant and donation funded. More 

information can be found at homerrecroom.org. A fundraising event is scheduled for May 27 

at 8:00 p.m. at the Pratt Museum.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS/BOROUGH REPORT/COMMISSION REPORTS 

 

A. Mayor’s Proclamation Mary Epperson Day June 6, 2015    

 

B. Borough Report 

 

C. Commissions/Board Reports: 

 

1. Library Advisory Board 

 

Library Advisory Board Member Patrick Brown reported on the Library’s increased activity of 

students and patrons. The award winning library has thousands of volumes of books to share. 

Library staff works diligently to keep things clean. An inventory control theft system has been 

serviced to ensure materials are not stolen. Obtaining a library card is easy and benefits all 

patrons. Twice the City of Homer has received the eCity Award from Google. The Library 

provides computers and printers to help job-seeking applicants and small businesses. WiFi, 

new computer systems, and emergency backup power supplies are being requested to 

provide the library with faster and more reliable service for staff and patrons. Several projects 

are underway at the Library including the adjacent lot that has been cleared. Cleanup 

continues this weekend. An architect and gardeners have provided exciting opportunities for 

use and enjoyment of the land and resources. For the youth the Library provides life skills and 

positive solutions for career selection. Programs include TERC (Testing and Education 

Reference Center), genealogy group, Mango languages, public meeting resources, children’s 

library, and amateur radio. Homer Friends of the Library supports SPARK (South Peninsula 

Amateur Radio Klub) and Ham Radio training classes. Last session all nine students passed. 

Trainings were at no cost to the students as the Friends donated resources. The Library has 

accomplished much and continues to expand its mission to serve all patrons. It is many 

hearts, minds, and hands uniting for the greater good and investing in our future. 

 

2. Homer Advisory Planning Commission 

 

 a. Minutes of May 6, 2015      

 

3. Economic Development Advisory Commission 

 

4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission 
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Parks and Recreation Advisory Commissioner Robert Archibald reported on the Recreation 

Symposium at the high school that included every recreation group in town. We are 

advertising for a park host for Karen Hornaday Park. New signs at Jack Gist Park, WKFL Park, 

and End of the Road Park will soon be erected. The City has renewed their membership with 

the Alaska Parks and Recreation Association. A membership meeting this fall will draw several 

hundred people here. The commission is still reviewing a recreational service area and beach 

policies. At the last meeting over 25 people testified on beach access. The commission has 

been working on beach issues for the last four to five months and has reviewed lots of ideas. 

Nationwide Information indicates vehicles are not environmentally good for the beaches. 

Changes will be coming forward for both vehicle and dog access to the beaches. The next 

public meeting is June 18 and the commission will bring the beach policies to the council at a 

June 29th Workesssion. Highland Games are scheduled for June 20th.  

 

 5. Port and Harbor Advisory Commission 

 

 6. Cannabis Advisory Commission 

 

Councilmember Burgess announced the first meeting will be on Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 

 

D. Thank You from Rotary Club of Homer-Kachemak Bay for hosting Russian Open Work 

Team from Yakutsk, Siberia        

 

PUBLIC HEARING(S) 

 

A. Ordinance 15-09, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Subsection (d) of Homer City Code Section 21.58.020, Installation Requirements, to 

Delete the One-Acre Minimum Lot Area for Small Wind Energy Systems. Zak. 

Introduction April 13, 2015, Referred to Planning Commission, Public Hearing and 

Second Reading May 26, 2015.       

 

Memorandum 15-069 from City Planner as backup. 

 

Mayor Wythe opened the public hearing. In the absence of public testimony, Mayor Wythe 

closed the public hearing. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of ordinance 15-09 by reading of title only 

for second and final reading.    
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BURGESS/REYNOLDS – SO MOVED.  

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. BURGESS, REYNOLDS, ZAK, VAN DYKE 

VOTE: NO. LEWIS, ROBERTS 

 

Motion carried. 

 

B. Ordinance 15-13, An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Enacting Homer City Code 

Chapter 9.20, Hotel Tax; and Submitting to the Qualified Voters of the City at the 

October 6, 2015 Regular City Election the Question of Levying a Tax of 2.5% in Addition 

to the General City Sales Tax on Rent for Occupancy of a Room in a Hotel, Motel, Inn, 

Bed and Breakfast or Similar Structure. Lewis. Introduction May 11, 2015, Public 

Hearing and Second Reading May 26, 2015.      

 

 Memorandum 15-065 from City Manager as backup. 

 

Mayor Wythe opened the public hearing.    

 

Pat Malone, city resident, urged Council to vote no. We already pay twice as much in sales tax 

and adding the bed tax will make it three times more and reduce the amount of visitors. 

 

Coletta Walker, city resident, spoke in opposition to the tax as city businesses already have to 

compete against the 7.5% sales tax from businesses outside city limits. AAA and AARP look at 

the taxes; they are a big part of our business. 

 

Mike Warburton, city resident, opposes the tax. People ask about bed and sales tax. Added 

taxes exploit and gouge people and they will trim their stay or not go at all. In 2005 Homer 

voted 65% against bed tax. He suggested a 1% tourism tax. 

 

Kevin Hogan, city resident, commented the tax it is a bad idea and the Council has no 

authority to dedicate tax revenues. 

 

Adrienne Sweeney, city resident, spoke in opposition to the tax. Most of her guests are 

Alaskans 65%; and in the winter 90% locals. It is a dedication of taxes and the city attorney 

said funds cannot be dedicated. Economic growth is the answer and supporting small 

business will generate more revenue. 
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Tom Bos, city resident, opposes the bed tax and was dismayed when he read that people 

won’t notice this. People should be charged for riding on the beaches, recreation, dumping, 

and tax on food all year round so we are getting money from everyone. 

 

Paula Riley, city resident, opposes the bed tax as people are already taxed for their entire stay 

with the absence of the $500 sales tax cap. The tax will hurt businesses if people stay outside 

city limits to avoid the tax. 

 

Anna Rodriquez Sansom, city resident, opposes the tax. People already ask if she will 

discount the rate to cut the tax. They won’t be buying gas here, meals, and spending money 

on trinkets. There are other ways to make economic development.  

 

Keri-Ann Baker, Homer resident, spoke in opposition to the bed tax. It would place an 

overwhelming burden on a small business. She requested an opinion from the attorney on 

the validity of a dedicated tax. 

 

Sarah Vance, city resident, is opposed to the bed tax. We want Homer to be a town people 

come and enjoy without people saying it is really expensive. There are lots of great places to 

spend money in Homer and we want people to enjoy and continue to make economic growth.  

 

Rick Fetterhoff, city resident, expressed opposition to the bed tax. Homer is a discretionary 

destination and there is a certain tolerance of what people put up with. He suggested a broad 

based small percentage tax, if one is needed. 

 

Pat Brown, Homer resident, opposes the bed tax. Homer has become a destination people 

want to come to; no tax is the impetus to allow them to come. He sees groups that advocate 

for people with disabilities also advocate for prices. Once taxes are invoked they won’t 

reverse. He asked that we give our small businesses a chance to grow, nurture, and develop 

and ask the Economic Development Advisory Commission to explore options for economic 

development. 

 

Mayor Wythe closed the public hearing. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-13 by reading of title only 

for second and final reading. 

 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS - SO MOVED. 
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Councilmember Lewis explained the history of the bed tax. The Kenai Peninsula Borough 

Assembly passed a bed tax. The Borough Mayor vetoed it saying people of Homer didn’t want 

the rest of the borough telling them what to do. Councilmember Lewis would like the people 

of Homer to have a say. The ordinance would then go to the Borough for approval. Voters 

would be voting on a dedicated tax as they did with HART and HAWSP funds. He questioned 

Attorney Klinkner on the legality of the dedicated tax. 

 

Attorney Klinkner advised it is legal to dedicate taxes. There is no specific precedent whether 

municipalities can dedicate tax revenues to particular purposes. Dedicating local tax 

revenues is widespread across the state and is had not been questioned for a number of 

years.  

 

Councilmember Zak was declared to have a conflict of interest at the last meeting and an 

attorney opinion was requested. Attorney Klinkner concluded he had no conflict of interest 

with the ownership of a bed and breakfast. 

 

Councilmember Burgess expressed opposition to imposing a tax. This is an advisory vote, an 

idea of posing the question to the voters. Seward has almost a $3M marketing budget from 

ship and bed taxes. That is one of the biggest reasons someone will go to Seward instead of 

Homer. Valley cities Palmer, Wasilla, and Anchorage have a $1.5M marketing budget. Homer 

has a line item of $51,000 that goes to the Chamber of Commerce. We also made one ad buy 

in a book. We are riding on the awesomeness of our place which is riding on a fishery.  Waiting 

for the fishery to get better is not a solution. Not raising taxes at all is not a solution. We need 

to be competitively marketing ourselves..   

 

Mayor Wythe clarified this is not an advisory vote. It is for the voters to approve an increase of 

tax. If passed, the Council would not have the authority to change the allocation of the funds. 

If the voters vote yes it will go to the Borough Assembly; if they vote no the entire ordinance is 

void. 

 

Councilmember Zak counted the cost this could have on the local economy, including the 

expense of putting it on the ballot and the citizens’ time. A .5% property tax or 1% tourism tax 

may be more fair. This could hurt us when looking at changes to halibut regulations. As a bed 

and breakfast owner he has been asked to discount the tax rate. We need to stop this here 

tonight and not go before the voters. If voters vote to tax the minority group we are taxing an 

economic industry that doesn’t have a sales tax cap. 
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Councilmember Reynolds commented Councilmember Lewis brought the ordinance forward 

as we are facing a lot of pressure for a rec area. Although she sees the value of the charter 

fishing industry, kayaking and hiking appeal to her. Sales tax on food is an unfair tax for 

people of the lowest incomes. Tourism tax is hard to enforce since there is so much grey area 

between what locals and tourists want to do.  

 

Mayor Wythe noted twelve years ago the City separated taxation since so much of the 

community is not in City of Homer proper. We removed part of the mill rate to increase sales 

tax for the library. As we look at a tax increase, property tax is much smaller than the user 

community. Sales tax makes a lot more sense for everyone’s participation. The conversation 

will be needed in the near term. We increased sales tax after the voters voted to build the 

library with no funding. We then came back in six months after discussion and education and 

the voters supported the sales tax increase. The money that increased support to the library 

is not with us for months without the food tax. It is easy to say tighten the budget but that 

means cutting crucial services that allow us to enjoy living here. We could close the library 

and community schools but we still need police, fire, and public works. Our only source of 

revenue is through taxation. We have cut the budget substantially year after year and the 

Council struggles year after year with the budget.  

 

Councilmember Burgess urged the Council if they are not going to proactively look for 

solutions to balance the budget it is poor form to advocate spending monies if you are not 

looking for ways to generate revenues. If you are going to make compelling arguments use 

factual arguments rather than an emotional appeal.  

 

Councilmember Zak commented the citizens here tonight are paying for marketing and are 

doing so much more to market and sell Homer. Knowing how much work these people put 

into the community to survive we have to discover a new way to survive. There are many 

other ways to find revenue streams. Do we want to spend $649,000 to take something to the 

35% design phase? We have to look at employees, the biggest cost to our city. We pay for 

health care for all the employees; IBM no longer does.   

 

Councilmember Lewis commented on charging employees for health care when they were 

hired and promised not to have to pay for it. The $600,000+ is not raising any money. We have 

to look at ways to raise funding since costs keep increasing. He doesn’t want to single any 

individual group or business. There are a number of people that have asked him why we don’t 

have a bed tax. Now will be their chance to say yes or no. You can’t cut your way out of 

economic problems because you will lose what becomes the community of Homer. The 

nonprofits take up a lot of the slack the City can’t afford to do.  
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Councilmember Zak said we have looked at selling land and putting it back on the tax rolls. 

There is a lot we can do besides implementing an additional tax. We have to look at 

something equally, not just the minority. He doesn’t want to lose our citizens along the road. 

He doesn’t want to put it on the ballot due to costs and citizens’ time.  

 

VOTE: YES. ROBERTS, LEWIS 

VOTE: NO. REYNOLDS, ZAK, BURGESS, VAN DYKE 

 

Motion failed. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a recess at 7:25 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 

 

ORDINANCE(S) 

 

A. Ordinance 15-17, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) to Permit the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas 

Distribution Special Assessment Bond Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and 

Authorizing an Amendment to the Loan Agreement Between the City and the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough Regarding the Bond. City Manager. Recommended dates: 

Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015.  

            

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-17 for introduction and 

first reading by reading of title only. 

 

LEWIS/BURGESS – SO MOVED. 

 

Attorney Klinkner advised Mayor Wythe has no conflict of interest since the improvements for 

the gas district have been constructed and assessments have been levied. 

 

ROBERTS/BURGESS - MOVED TO HAVE THE PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING ON JUNE 

15TH. 
 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

B. Ordinance 15-18, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the FY 

2015 Capital Budget by Appropriating $613,000 From the General Fund Fund Balance 

to the Public Safety Building Project Account to Fund the New Public Safety Building 
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to 35% Design. Mayor. Recommended dates: Introduction May 26, 2015, Public 

Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015.       

 

 Memorandum 15-074 from City Manager as backup.    

 

Ordinance 15-18(S), An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the 

FY 2015 Capital Budget by Appropriating $613,000 $621,500 From the General Fund 

Fund Balance to the Public Safety Building Project Account to Fund the New Public 

Safety Building to 35% Design. Mayor.      

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-18 for introduction and 

first reading by reading of title only. 

 

LEWIS/BURGESS - SO MOVED.  

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion to substitute Ordinance 15-18(S) for Ordinance 15-18. 

 

 LEWIS/BURGESS – SO MOVED. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

ROBERTS/BURGESS - MOVED TO CHANGE THE PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING TO 

JUNE 29TH.  

 

Mayor Wythe commented in the absence of State funding we have momentum behind the 

project to follow through to 35% design. If anything changes with funding we can take the 

project forward or to the voters for bond funding. If we stop now we have nothing to take 

forward. She is requesting the allocation of State Revenue Sharing funds for the project.  

 

Mayor Wythe noted funds from 2015 distributed in 2014 were unallocated and we have an 

excess revenue. It is close to equal of the State Revenue Sharing for 2014. In past years State 

Revenue Sharing has been used to balance the budget, although it should be separated from 

the annual budget. Funds for the public safety building design to 35% will come from the 

general fund that includes State Revenue Sharing. We have to get off the dependency of using 

State Revenue Sharing as it will be discontinued within the next two years. 

 

The Council discussed the importance of fire, public safety, and police. OSHA says we will 

provide a safe working environment. Currently we cannot keep employees safe from 
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prisoners. The Fire Department is a high need, but the Police is a critical need. The project has 

been on the CIP for 20 years and we have not done anything. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

C. Ordinance 15-14, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 

Appropriating a Commercial Vessel Passenger Tax Program Grant from the Kenai 

Peninsula Borough for FY 2014 in the Amount of $13,925.00 and Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Recommended dates: 

Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-14 for introduction and 

first reading by reading of title only. 

 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS - SO MOVED. 

 

LEWIS/ROBERTS - MOVED TO AMEND FOR THE SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING TO BE 

ON JUNE 15TH. 

 

The Council discussed the disparity between funds Seward and Homer receive for cruise 

ships. We need to figure a way to get cruise ships to come to Homer instead of Seward. 

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

D. Ordinance 15-15, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Purchasing Tax 

Foreclosure Property, Kenai Peninsula Borough (KPB) Tax Parcel Number 173-052-19 

and Designating its Use for Public Purpose and Authorizing the City Manager to 

Execute the Appropriate Documents. City Manager. Recommended dates: 

Introduction May 26, 2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015. 

 

Councilmember Burgess declared a potential conflict of interest as he owns property within 

300 ft. of the subject parcel.  

 

City Attorney Klinkner advised there is little to no effect on the value of Councilmember 

Burgess’ property resulting from the City purchasing the parcel. 

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-15 for introduction and 

first reading by reading of title only. 
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LEWIS/REYNOLDS – SO MOVED.  

 

ROBERTS/LEWIS - MOVED TO AMEND THE PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING TO JUNE 

15TH. 

 

There was no discussion. 

 

VOTE: (amendment) YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

VOTE: (main motion as amended) YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

E. Ordinance 15-16, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending 

Homer City Code 3.05.012, Complete Financial Plan, to Exclude State Revenue Sharing 

From Income in the City Budget. Mayor. Recommended dates: Introduction May 26, 

2015, Public Hearing and Second Reading June 8, 2015.    

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Ordinance 15-16 for introduction and 

first reading by reading of title only. 

 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS - SO MOVED. 

 

The Council discussed the declining State Revenue Sharing and the need to stop relying on it 

to balance the budget. The Council may allocate State Revenue Sharing for a specific use with 

the passage of Ordinance 15-16. 

 

ROBERTS/LEWIS - MOVED TO CHANGE THE PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING TO JUNE 

15TH. 

 

VOTE: (amendment) YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

VOTE: (main motion as amended) YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 
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CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

A. City Manager’s Report        

 

 1. Memorandum 15-076 from City Manager, Re: Process for land sales. 

            

 2. Memorandum 15-075 from IT Manager, Re: Telephonic Participation at Council 

Meetings.         

 

3. Memorandum 15-079 from City Manager, Re: Tax Revenue and Public Safety 

 

Bridge Creek Watershed Lots for Sale 

I was approached by Aryn Young and Beau Burgess of Porcupine LLC regarding lots for sale in 

the Bridge Creek Watershed (see attached map). According to Planning Director Abboud, at a 

minimum 2 of these lots, lots 17368015 and 17368014 are rich with tributaries and would be 

very beneficial for the preservation of the watershed (see attached map). The assessed value 

of the lots is $16,300 and $20,000, however the lot owner is asking $55,000 for both parcels.  

The lots would need to be appraised before they could be purchased by the City to determine 

fair market value. The City Council would need to identify a source of funding for land 

purchase. There is the Land Reserve fund, however it currently carries a small negative 

balance (-$200).  One option would be for the Council to advance with the land sales 

proposed in the Land Allocation Plan with the intention of building up the fund and pursuing 

purchase of the lots at a later date. A second option would be to transfer funds from the 

General Fund to the Land Reserve Fund (this is what is proposed in the resolution before you 

today authorizing the purchase of 40 acres of foreclosed property in the watershed from the 

Borough). However, Ms. Young indicated a desire to put the lots on the market in the near 

future, which means the City runs the risk of the lots selling before the City is able to build up 

the necessary capital. Of course the third option is to do nothing given the current fiscal 

climate. Please let me know if Council believes these lots are valuable enough to warrant 

further investigation. 

Blue Crest Energy Update 

Port and Harbor Director Hawkins and I had a visit from Blue Crest Energy this week updating 

the City on plans for the drilling of the Cosmo oil project. The project is located on the bluff 

side of Milepost 151 of the Sterling Highway near Anchor Point. Though the rig and drill 

operation will be located onshore, the project will horizontally drill to access oil fields 

offshore. Product will primarily be trucked north to Nikiski.  During construction, September – 

April, Blue Crest will be employing 300-350 people and depending on Homer hotels for 

housing employees that cannot be found locally (primarily through contractors). The City has 

put Blue Crest in touch with the Chamber and Homer Marine Trades Association as potential 

resources. During construction it is also likely that the Port will be used for bringing in 
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construction materials, though details have yet to be finalized. I have included a Frequently 

Asked Questions for your information. Blue Crest will be holding a public meeting on June 

10th at Land’s End. 

Street Sweeping Delays 

Public Works was expecting to have their new sweeper (the one that picks up the bulk of the 

material as opposed to the vacuum sweeper that is for secondary cleanup) the first half of 

April.  The unit was being manufactured over the winter.  The vendor, Yukon Equipment, was 

late getting it to Homer and once it was delivered Public Works found programing issues with 

it.  The vendor and manufacturer are working diligently on resolving the issues, however it 

has resulted in a delay of street sweeping. Unfortunately, this is taking place when we need 

that piece of equipment the most. Public Works has been using the vacuum sweeper as best 

as it can be used, but many streets still have not been swept.  The vacuum unit is not 

designed to pick up heavy sand, so it is a slow operation to use it as a pick-up broom. The new 

unit was delivered on May 19th and Public Works will have it in operation every day until the 

streets are cleaned. Please be patient with street sweeping and know that Public Works is 

doing the best they can with the limited tools available. 

Float Debris 

Councilmembers have heard from members of the public regarding float debris that have 

been found on Kachemak Bay beaches. As part of the harbor float replacement project, the 

contractor, Harris Sand and Gravel, was required to dispose of the old harbor floats. 

Unfortunately the City did not stipulate in the contract during the first phase of the project 

how the floats were to be disposed of and Harris Sand and Gravel gave floats from the first 

phase away to a number of different people last fall. The floats were taken to various sites 

around the bay and some obviously were not properly secured. No one knows for sure how 

many of the first phase 1 floats have become float debris. A recent letter from concerned 

residents leads us to believe that there are quite a few float sections that have gotten away 

from their owners and that some level of action needs to be taken. In the second phase 

(System 4 rehab) of the harbor float improvement project the city made stipulations in the 

contract as to how the demoed floats were to be disposed of. The floats were removed from 

the harbor to the chip pad and could only be reused/returned into the bay  if the flotation 

billets were replaced with encapsulated billets as required by fish and game habitat.   

The City has installed a dumpster above the commercial barge ramp for members of the 

public to deposit flotation debris that they find (see attached map). Debris cleanup is 

complicated by the fact that many of the old floats are on private property – this is why it is 

important that members of the pubic who have debris on their beaches, or were given the 

floats and cannot safely secure them, communicate with the City and Borough landfill so that 

arrangements can be made for proper disposal. The City provided dumpster will be for 

smaller parts and pieces. Persons interested in returning large float sections to the harbor 

recovered from the bay will need to contact the harbormaster so that arrangements can be 

made to remove the floats from the water. 

182



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 26, 2015 

 

17  06/02/15 - jj 

 

Port and Harbor Director Hawkins, Public Works Director Meyer, and I will be meeting with 

Harris Sand and Gravel to discuss debris cleanup. I will keep you updated on the progress. 

Water Storage/Distribution Improvements Project 

The funding for this project ($1,922,577) continues to remain in the State budget. Public 

Works will be completing a grant application (to facilitate the preparation of a formal grant 

agreement) for the City Manager’s signature. Public Works will be preparing a resolution 

authorizing the City Manager to execute the formal grant agreement, and an ordinance that 

appropriates the matching funds for the project from the HAWSP Fund ($832,961) for Council 

action at the first meeting in June. (See attached letters to adjacent property owners for more 

information). 

Jail Contract Cuts 

The final word is not in yet from the state on what the cuts will be to the jail contract; however 

the situation does not look good. Though the program was cut by 30% in the operating 

budget, program administrators and the Department of Public Safety were optimistic that 

funding solutions to help mitigate the damage could be found given the integral nature of 

Community Jails to the State. The latest word from the State is cuts could be as deep as 50%. 

The City of Homer is anticipating a cut of $240,000- $450,000. The Department of Corrections 

still does not have a final number for communities, though they hope to by the end of the 

month. The reality of the cuts are fast approaching; the State’s fiscal year begins on July 1. I 

will be meeting with the Finance Director and Police Chief to discuss possible funding 

scenarios, how the City would react, and the risk involved to the City.  

Natural Gas, Interest, and the Free Main Allowance 

The City started incurring interest on the loan from the Borough as soon as we made the first 

draw on the loan. Interest for all assessed property owners begins accruing on July 1, 2015. 

The first two years of interest payments were never calculated into the total project cost 

because the City did not really know what those costs would be because there was always the 

possibility the City might pay off early or perhaps borrow less because project costs were less 

than estimated. Either of those could change what the City ultimately paid in interest. The 

thought at the time was to budget for the interest and/or use the Free Main Allowance. The 

net result of this is that the first two years of interest payments, $813,000 is absorbed by the 

project. This eats up a large chunk of the Free Main Allowance. The fiscal impact of losing the 

condominium case, if that were to happen, could cost around $300,000, depending on how 

the Council decides to assess condominiums. At the very beginning of the project Enstar 

estimated we would receive $1.6M in FMA over the course of 10 years. We have received $1.1M 

to date. As you can see, there is very little wiggle room in the project to account for things like 

deferred assessments and additional exemptions. Essentially, by paying the first two years of 

interest on behalf of the property owners the City has given each property owner their share 

of the FMA up front instead of waiting until the loan has been paid off to redistribute any 

leftover funds. This equates to $215 per lot owner.  
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FMA estimate from Enstar over 10 

years 

$1,600,000 

  

First two years of interest -$813,000 

Assessments for condominiums -$326,200 

  

Remaining $460,800 

 

 

 

 

 

City Manager Koester commented on the city process for land sales. It is a cumbersome 

process where land has to be appraised, the Council adopts a resolution authorizing 

advertisement for sealed bids or a public outcry auction, and properties cannot be sold for 

less than fair market value. Recommendations were discussed at the Committee of the Whole 

including appraisals before sale, but not before listing for sale, and sale of land to adjacent 

land owners.   

 

The Council suggested having the ability to list property for sale and allowing interested 

buyers to approach the City. Property could be sold for higher than the assessed value. 

Modifying the requirements that property be sold for higher than appraised value to higher 

than assessed value will eliminate the need for an appraisal. The objective in liquidating the 

properties is to get them back on the tax roll without diminishing the value. An ordinance 

changing the process to “assessed” instead of “appraised” value would solve most of the 

issues.  

 

The Council decided to use the existing process on the West Hill and Kachemak Drive 

properties to get the process moving forward quickly. 

 

Port and Harbor Director Hawkins reported on the float debris. They have stationed a 

dumpster by the barge ramp to collect debris brought in from the beaches. The float 

replacement project had two phases; phase 1 started in October. It detailed it as the 

contractor’s responsibility to dispose of the floats, but didn’t say how. There was a lot of 

interest around the bay for the floats that were advertised for free. Property owners took the 

floats across the bay and some owners allowed the floats to get away, ending up on area 

beaches. The City has supplied a dumpster to bring pieces back in for disposal. Port and 

FMA current balance $1,100,000 

  

First two years of interest -$813,000 

Assessments for condominiums -$300,000 

  

Remaining -$13,000 
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Harbor Director Hawkins has asked the contractor for a list of people who received the floats 

to have a conversation with them. He does not know how big the issue is; to date he has 

received a few pictures of floats, three pieces so far. The second phase contract said the 

discarded floats need to be removed from the harbor and set on uplands for three weeks to 

make sure the species of growth have died. Flotation billets had to be replaced with modern 

coated flotation.  

 

Cuts to the jail contract and diminishing State Revenue Sharing will impact next year’s 

budget. The Council scheduled an Executive Session on June 15th to review the budget 

deficiencies.  

 

B. Bid Report          

 

C. Games Report          

 

 1. Alaska Marine Conservation Council      

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

 

City Attorney Klinkner reported the Alaska Supreme Court denied the petition for review on 

the assessments for condominiums for the Natural Gas Special Assessment District. He will 

provide a resolution for the next meeting to reassess the condominiums. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

A. Public Arts Committee 

 

B.  Permanent Fund Committee 

 

C. Employee Committee Report 

 

D. Port and Harbor Building Task Force 

 

Mayor Wythe reported the grand opening celebration of the harbor office is June 11th.  

 

E. Public Safety Building Review Committee 

 

Mayor Wythe reported there is no meeting scheduled for the committee at this time. 

 

F. Vessel Haul-Out Task Force 
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PENDING BUSINESS 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

A. Resolution 15-040, A Resolution of the Homer City Council Establishing the Property 

Tax Mill Levy Rate at 4.5 for 2015. City Manager.  

 

Mayor Wythe called for a motion for the adoption of Resolution 15-040 by reading of title only. 

 

LEWIS/REYNOLDS – SO MOVED. 

 

The Council suggested bringing the property tax resolution before them next year at the first 

meeting in May. Therefore if changes were recommended it could be noticed. 

 

It was suggested that Council look at the property tax exemption before looking at the mill 

rate.  

 

VOTE: YES. NON OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 

 

Motion carried. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 

 

There were no comments of the audience. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

 

City Attorney Klinkner had no comments. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 

 

City Clerk Johnson commended the Council on an exceptional job getting through tough 

issues. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 

 

City Manager Koester reported a $366,000 cut to jail funding. Council has intelligently backed 

out revenue sharing from the budget. There is a combined fiscal gap of $750,000 and sales tax 
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is down 8% for the first quarter when there was a projected 2% increase. The supplemental 

packet contains mill rate and sales tax information. She commended the Council for looking 

at the budget for the next meeting and asked them to delve into the details. It gives her great 

pause to be facing that type of shortfall.  

 

Mayor Wythe clarified jail funding for 2015 will diminish by one half of the $366,000.  

 

COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 

 

Mayor Wythe thanked everyone for being here and Francie for starting the meeting in her 

absence. She had an awesome day with the King of Norway. It was fun and she learned a lot 

of things about the Arctic and that we need to have a bigger voice in that conversation. The 

community of Homer needs to start paying attention; she knows there are people doing that. 

We need to be getting our name and business card out there saying we have a port and need 

a bigger harbor. We need to be able to help support that industry as it comes on. It will be 

important to us in the next 3-5 years. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Councilmember Roberts appreciates everyone’s comments, although we didn’t always agree. 

It was interesting debate on ideas of how to address some of the problems. She had asked 

Interim City Manager Yoder to look into the amount of water in our reservoir. We didn’t get 

much snow pack this year. She asked City Manager Koester to look into it to reassure us we 

do not have water issues. We approved the public arts inventory contract. She is glad to see it 

is happening. Her original concern was it would be too costly, but it doesn’t seem overboard 

in cost. We have wonderful artwork all over the City and it would be good to get that job 

done. She asked City Manager Koester about the re-allocation for Waddell Way.  

 

City Manager Koester answered we had asked for $600,000 to be re-appropriated to the 

public safety building. The money was not re-appropriated, but it wasn’t taken. We still have 

$1.4M for Waddell Way. Carey has been working on it and brought it to Planning Commission 

at their last meeting. She will provide an update at the next meeting. 

 

Councilmember Reynolds thanked everyone for the lively discussion and everyone that came 

for public comments. She thanked Alaska Youth On Record. She was happy to see Resolution 

15-035 passed, especially after this weekend when there was an oil spill on Thors Hammer. 

We have already had three large vessels in Cook Inlet lose power this year. Hopefully the 

Coast Guard is able to see the wisdom of keeping response caches around the area. 

 

Councilmember Van Dyke had no comment. 

 

Councilmember Lewis asked Katie to have a resolution supporting the 50 ft. buffer around 

streams. The Borough has an ordinance coming up to do away with that, but salmon is an 

187



HOMER CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MAY 26, 2015 

 

22  06/02/15 - jj 

 

important part of the Peninsula. He wished the boys’ soccer team luck this week at State. 

They won two and lost one; all of the games were by one goal and two were in overtime. They 

get to pay Kenai for their first game at the State. He is glad to see Chamber of Commerce 

Director Karen Zak here. Councilmember Lewis received a couple emails from Nick Varney 

who had contacted the Chamber about a partnership with businesses and building an 

enclosure over the fish cleaning tables at the Fishing Hole and he had not heard back from 

the Chamber. He asked Karen to get in touch with him. 

 

Councilmember Zak thanked the Council for their great work and the City Manager for 

bringing it to our attention she is looking for assistance with the budget. We had the King of 

Norway and the first cruise ship of the season dock here. We get a few cruise ships and some 

revenue from them. Those visitors see our beautiful community and often come back. It was 

great to see and learn of additional small businesses that are operating in our community.  

 

Councilmember Burgess reminded the general public when they make an emotional appeal 

to persuade someone on an issue, he appreciates people bringing facts to the table when 

trying to convince the Council either way to state their position. It is a lot easier to get behind 

solutions than emotional appeals. We are lucky to have a mayor who takes care of our town 

fiscally. Although he may not agree with the mayor on every policy decision we make, Mayor 

Wythe does an excellent job looking out for the fiscal future of our town and in balancing our 

budget. It makes him feel good when we spend money to send her to a Fairbanks conference 

or when she takes time to hang out with a foreign head of state because there is a lot of good 

that comes to the City of Homer for her efforts. It is often overlooked by those who aren’t 

intimately involved with our government. He asked if we are getting a new project manager 

for Carey.  

 

City Manager Koester answered she had advertised a temporary position for the project 

manager. She hopes funding for it can come out of the Deep Water Dock Feasibility Study. It is 

a big project that needs to be managed. She hasn’t authorized filling a full time position as 

she is moving forward cautiously. 

 

Mayor Wythe added the project manager was authorized previously to the extent we had 

projects funded to support his salary. It was not considered a permanent position. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Wythe adjourned the 

meeting at 8:26 p.m. The next Regular Meeting is Monday, June 15, 2015 at 6:00 p.m., 

Committee of the Whole 5:00 p.m., and Special Meeting 4:00 p.m. All meetings scheduled to 

be held in the City Hall Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, 

Alaska. 
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__________________________ 

JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 

 

Approved: _________________ 
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Memorandum 15-081 
 
TO:   HOMER CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:   MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 

DATE:   JUNE 9, 2015 

SUBJECT:  APPOINTMENT OF ANNA RODRIGUEZ SANSOM TO THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION AND REAPPOINTMENTS OF DON 
STEAD AND ROBERTA HIGHLAND TO THE ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Anna Rodriguez Sansom is appointed to the Economic Development Advisory Commission to 
replace outgoing member Josh Ross. Her term will expire April 1, 2018.   
 
Don Stead is reappointed to the Advisory Planning Commission with a term to expire July 1, 
2018.  
 
Roberta Highland is reappointed to the Advisory Planning Commission with a term to expire 
July 1, 2018.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Confirm the appointment of Anna Rodriguez Sansom to the Economic Development Advisory 
Commission, and reappointments of Don Stead and Roberta Highland to the Advisory 
Planning Commission. 
 
 
Fiscal Note: N/A 
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Memorandum 15-082 
TO:  MAYOR WYTHE AND HOMER CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  JO JOHNSON, CITY CLERK 

DATE:  JUNE 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE TRANSFER FOR BELUGA LAKE LODGE AND BEST WESTERN BIDARKA 
INN/OTTER ROOM   

We have been notified by the ABC Board of liquor license transfers within the City of Homer for the 
following: 

Type:   Transfer of Ownership/Restaurant Designation Permit    
Lic #:   4795       
DBA Name:  Beluga Lake Lodge     
Service Location: 204 Ocean Drive Loop     
Owner:   Johnson Inn Homer, LLC      
Mailing Address: 575 Sterling Highway, Homer, AK 99603 
 
    
Type:    Transfer of Ownership/Restaurant Designation Permit   
Lic.#:    1402  
DBA Name:  Best Western Bidarka Inn/Otter Room 
Service Location: 575 Sterling Highway 
Owner:   Johnson Inn Homer, LLC 
Mailing Address: 575 Sterling Highway, Homer, AK 99603 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Voice non objection and approval for the liquor license renewals. 

 

Fiscal Note: Revenues. 
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-19 
 

An Ordinance of the Homer City Council, Amending Homer City Code Chapter 9.16 to Revise 
HCC 9.16.040, HCC 9.16.100, and Add HCC 9.16.110 Repealing the Seasonal Sales Tax 
Exemption as Applied to Certain Categories of Nonprepared Foods, Including But Not Limited 
to Cakes, Cookies, Ice Cream, Candy, Chips, and Frozen Pizzas. 
 
Sponsor: Lewis 
 
1. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Introduction 
 

a. Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2008-28 
 b. Ordinance 08-32(S)(A-2) 
 c. Kenai Peninsula Borough Initiative Ordinance 2008-01 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

Lewis 3 
ORDINANCE 15-19 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL, AMENDING 6 
HOMER CITY CODE CHAPTER 9.16 TO REVISE HCC 9.16.040, HCC 7 
9.16.100, AND ADD HCC 9.16.110 REPEALING THE SEASONAL 8 
SALES TAX EXEMPTION AS APPLIED TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF 9 
NONPREPARED FOODS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO 10 
CAKES, COOKIES, ICE CREAM, CANDY, CHIPS, AND FROZEN 11 
PIZZAS. 12 

 13 
WHEREAS, A proposition was passed by the voters in the Kenai Peninsula Borough 14 

(“Borough”) exempting nonprepared foods from sales tax from September 1st through 15 
May 31st; and 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, The Borough adopted Ordinance 2008-28 authorizing cities within the 18 

Borough, including the City of Homer (“City”), to continue taxing nonprepared foods during 19 
the period from September 1st through May 31st despite the Borough’s exemption of such 20 
foods from sales tax during those months; and  21 

 22 
WHEREAS, The City enacted Ordinance 08-32(S)(A-2) on December 8, 2008 exempting 23 

the sales of nonprepared foods from City sales tax during September 1st through May 31st of 24 
each year; and 25 

 26 
WHEREAS, The loss of sales tax revenues on the sale of nonprepared foods has had a 27 

substantial negative impact on funding for essential City services including but not limited to 28 
water, sewer, and road project matching funds and has required the almost complete 29 
elimination of all non-essential City services; and 30 

 31 
WHEREAS, It is in the City’s best interest to reinstate the sales tax at the full 4.5% rate 32 

on a year-round basis on the categories of nonprepared foods described in Homer City Code 33 
9.16.100(c), enacted by this ordinance, to provide funding for City services.  34 

 35 
THE CITY OF HOMER HEREBY ORDAINS: 36 
 37 
Section 1. The City of Homer exercises the authority granted it under Kenai 38 

Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2008-28 to levy and collect sales taxes on the nonprepared 39 
food items described in Homer City Code 9.16.100(c), enacted by this ordinance, on a year-40 
round basis notwithstanding Kenai Peninsula Borough Initiative Ordinance 2008-01. 41 
 42 
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Section 2. Homer City Code 9.16.040 is amended to read as follows: 43 
 44 

9.16.040  Borough Provisions Adopted by Reference.  Subject to Section 9.16.100 and 45 
9.16.110, Tthose sections of the Kenai Peninsula Borough Code of Ordinances applicable to 46 
the levy and collection of the sales tax described in this chapter are incorporated by this 47 
reference and made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth in this chapter. 48 

 49 
 Section 3. Homer City Code 9.16.100 is amended to read as follows: 50 
 51 

9.16.100 Exemptions.  52 
 53 
The following sales of items are exempt from sales tax:  54 
 55 

a. Commencing January 1, 2009, sExcept as provided in section 9.16.110 of 56 
the city code, sales of nonprepared food items occurring from September 1st 57 
through May 31st of each year. 58 
 59 

b.  The sale of all other items granted exemption from sales tax under the 60 
Kenai Peninsula Borough Code as amended from time to time, except where the Kenai 61 
Peninsula Borough by ordinance expressly authorizes the City to tax a source 62 
exempted from sales tax by the Kenai Peninsula Borough Code and City imposes a 63 
sales tax on that source in compliance with the law.  64 
 65 
Section 4.  Homer City Code Chapter 9.16 is amended to add section 9.16.110 to read 66 

as follows: 67 
 68 
9.16.110 Sales Tax 69 
 70 
Sales of the following products shall be subject to sales tax 365 days a year:  71 

 72 
a. beverages containing less than 50% fruit or vegetable juice, including 73 

soft drinks, energy drinks and sports drinks, but excluding dairy and dairy 74 
substitute beverages; 75 

 76 
b. candy; 77 
 78 
c. potato and corn chips, pretzels, crackers and other ready-to-eat snack 79 

foods; 80 
 81 
d. ready-to-eat baked products, including cookies, cake, donuts, danish, 82 

and muffins, but excluding bread; 83 
 84 
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e. ice cream, sherbet and other frozen desserts; 85 
 86 
f. frozen foods that are ready to eat upon heating in a conventional or 87 

microwave oven, including entrees, dinners, pizza and burritos, but excluding 88 
frozen fruits and vegetables; and 89 

 90 
g. prepackaged or made-to-order sandwiches, wraps and salads. 91 

 92 
Section 5. This ordinance is of a permanent and general character and shall be 93 

included in the city code.  94 
 95 

Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect January 1, 2016. 96 
 97 

ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this _______ day of 98 
__________________, 2015. 99 
         100 
       CITY OF HOMER 101 
 102 
 103 
       ____________________ 104 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 105 
ATTEST: 106 
 107 
 108 
___________________________ 109 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 110 
 111 
 112 
 113 
 114 
YES:  115 
NO:  116 
ABSTAIN:  117 
ABSENT:  118 
 119 
 120 
 121 
 122 
First Reading: 123 
Public Hearing: 124 
Second Reading: 125 
Effective Date:   126 
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Reviewed and approved as to form: 127 
 128 
___________________________   ____________________________ 129 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager   Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 130 
 131 
Date: ___________________ ___   Date: _______________________     132 
 133 
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  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-20 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and Appropriating an Alaska 
Department of Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching Grant in The Amount of 
$1,922,577 and Authorizing a 30% Matching Requirement From the Homer Accelerated Water 
And Sewer Fund (HAWSP) in the Amount of $576,773.10 for the Purpose of Completing the 
Water Distribution/Storage Improvement Project and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Execute the Appropriate Documents. 
 
Sponsor: City Manager/Public Works Director 
 
1. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. Notification of Municipal Matching Grant from Alaska Department of 

Environmental Conservation 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

                                                                                        City Manager/ 3 
Public Works Director 4 

ORDINANCE 15-20 5 
  6 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 7 
ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING AN ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF 8 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION MUNICIPAL MATCHING GRANT 9 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,922,577 AND AUTHORIZING A 30% 10 
MATCHING REQUIREMENT FROM THE HOMER ACCELERATED 11 
WATER AND SEWER FUND (HAWSP) IN THE AMOUNT OF 12 
$576,773.10 FOR THE PURPOSE OF COMPLETING THE WATER 13 
DISTRIBUTION/STORAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND 14 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 15 
APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS.   16 
 17 

            WHEREAS, The City submitted an application for an Alaska Department of 18 
Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching Grant for the purpose of completing water 19 
distribution/storage improvement projects to include water main extensions on Kachemak 20 
Drive and Shellfish Avenue/South Slope Drive; and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching 23 
Grant was awarded to the City in the amount of $1,922,577, requiring a 30% match of 24 
$576,773.10 from the Homer Accelerated Water and Sewer Fund; and 25 

 26 
            NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 27 
  28 
            Section 1.  The Homer City Council hereby accepts and appropriates an Alaska 29 
Department of Environmental Conservation Municipal Matching Grant in the amount of 30 
$1,922,577 with a required 30% match of $576,773.10 from the Homer Accelerated Water and 31 
Sewer Fund for the purpose of completing the water distribution/storage improvement 32 
project as follows: 33 
 34 

Revenue: 35 
 36 
Account                       Description                                      Amount  37 
 38 
HAWSP (205)  Water Distribution/    $1,922,577 39 

Storage Improvements  40 
 41 
 42 
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Expenditure:  43 
   44 
Account                       Description                                      Amount  45 
 46 
205-375              30% HAWSP Fund Match          $576,773.10  47 
 48 
Section 2.  The City Manager is authorized to execute the appropriate documents. 49 
 50 

             Section 3. This is a budget amendment ordinance, is temporary in nature, and shall 51 
not be codified. 52 
  53 
            ENACTED BY THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL this ___ day of ______________, 2015. 54 
  55 

CITY OF HOMER 56 
  57 
  58 
                                                                          ______________________________             59 
                                                                          MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 60 
 ATTEST: 61 
  62 
  63 
______________________________ 64 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 65 
  66 
  67 
YES: 68 
NO: 69 
ABSENT: 70 
ABSTAIN: 71 
  72 
First Reading: 73 
Public Hearing: 74 
Second reading: 75 
Effective Date: 76 
  77 
Reviewed and approved as to form: 78 
  79 
______________________________                       ______________________________ 80 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager                                    Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney   81 
  82 
Date:_________________________                         Date:_________________________              83 
 84 
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-21 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending the FY 2015 Operating Budget 
by Appropriating $277,335.45 to Pay for Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District 
Assessments of 85 City Lots From Various City Reserve Funds. 
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. List of City properties for gas assessments 
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    City Manager 3 
ORDINANCE 15-21 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
AMENDING THE FY 2015 OPERATING BUDGET BY 7 
APPROPRIATING $277,335.45 TO PAY FOR HOMER NATURAL GAS 8 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS OF 85 CITY LOTS 9 
FROM VARIOUS CITY RESERVE FUNDS.   10 
 11 

WHEREAS, In compliance with Homer City Code Chapter 17, Improvement Districts, 12 
the Homer City Council initiated a Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District on July 23, 13 
2012, via Resolution 12-069 assessing all parcels equally that benefited from the natural gas 14 
distribution system; and 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, Construction of 73 miles of natural gas distribution system was complete in 17 

2014; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, The City has benefited from the construction of the natural gas distribution 20 

system with a cost savings and reduced carbon emissions for facilities that have been hooked 21 
up to natural gas; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS, The final assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment 24 

District was adopted on March 23, 2015, via Resolution 15-017; and 25 
 26 
WHEREAS, The total project cost for the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment 27 

District was $12,359,388 divided among 3,788 parcels at a cost of $3,262.77 per parcel; and 28 
 29 
WHEREAS, The City of Homer owns 85 parcels that are included in the Homer Natural 30 

Gas Special Assessment District; and 31 
 32 
WHEREAS, It is in the City’s best interest to pay the assessments off in full as soon as 33 

possible to avoid accruing interest. 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
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NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 38 
 39 
Section 1. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 40 

$3,262.77 from the Animal Shelter Reserve fund for the assessment associated with the 41 
Animal Shelter parcel. 42 

 43 
Section 2. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 44 

$3,262.77 from the City Hall Reserve fund for the assessment associated with the City Hall 45 
parcel. 46 

 47 
Section 3. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 48 

$32,627.70 from the General Fund Reserve fund for the assessment associated with 10 49 
miscellaneous City parcels. 50 

 51 
Section 4. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 52 

$13,051.08 from the Library Reserve fund for the assessment associated with the Library 53 
building, old library parcel and 2 adjacent parcels. 54 

 55 
Section 5. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 56 

$6,525.54 from the Parks and Recreation Reserve fund for the assessment associated with 57 
Ohlson Lane and Jack Gist Parks. 58 

 59 
Section 6. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 60 

$1,631.39 from the Police Reserve fund and $1,631.39 from the Fire Reserve fund for the 61 
assessment associated with the Fire and Police Station parcel. 62 

 63 
Section 7. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 64 

$6,525.54 from the Public Works Reserve fund for the assessment associated with the 2 Public 65 
Works Administration building parcels. 66 

 67 
Section 8. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 68 

$6,525.54 from the Water Reserve fund for the assessment associated with the Water 69 
Treatment Plant and parcel reserved for a new water tank. 70 

 71 
Section 9. The FY 2015 Operating Budget is hereby amended by appropriating 72 

$202,291.74 from the Port and Harbor Reserve fund for the assessment associated with 62 73 
parcels on the Homer Spit. 74 
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ORDINANCE 15-21 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

Expenditure: 75 
Account     Description    Amount 76 
156-0370 (Animal Shelter Reserve) 1 Parcel    $3,262.77 77 
156-0384 (City Hall Reserve)  1 Parcel     $3,262.77 78 
156-0375 (General Fund Reserve) 10 Parcels    $32,627.70 79 
156-0390 (Library Reserve)  4 Parcels    $13,051.08 80 
156-0385 (Park & Rec Reserve)  2 Parcels    $6,525.54 81 
156-0394 (Police Reserve)  ½ Parcel    $1,631.39 82 
156-0393 (Fire Reserve)   ½ Parcel    $1,631.38 83 
156-0395 (Public Works Reserve)  2 Parcels    $6,525.54 84 
256-0378 (Water Reserve)  2 Parcels    $6,525.54 85 
456-0380 (Port and Harbor Reserve) 62 Parcels    $202,291.74 86 
 87 
Total      85 Parcels     $277,335.45 88 
 89 

Section 10. This is a budget amendment ordinance, is temporary in nature, and shall 90 
not be codified. 91 

 92 
ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ___day of _______, 2015. 93 
 94 
      CITY OF HOMER 95 
 96 
      _____________________ 97 
      MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 98 
 99 
 100 

ATTEST: 101 
 102 
___________________________ 103 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 104 

 105 
YES: 106 
NO: 107 
ABSTAIN: 108 
ABSENT: 109 
 110 
 111 
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ORDINANCE 15-21 
CITY OF HOMER 
 
First Reading:  112 
Public Hearing: 113 
Second Reading: 114 
Effective Date: 115 
 116 
 117 
Review and approved as to form: 118 
 119 
_________________________     ____________________________ 120 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager    Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 121 
 122 
Date: ____________________    Date: ________________________ 123 
 124 
Fiscal Note: Fiscal information included in body of Ordinance. 125 
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-22 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Declaring That Lillian Walli Estates 
Subdivision Lots 57-60, 65-67, and 70 No Longer Need to Be Retained For a Public Purpose as 
No Public Need Exists For Retaining the Property and Releasing HM0880016 T06S R14W S24 
Lillian Walli Estate Sub Lot 60, 65, 66, 67, 70, 57, 58, 59 For Sale Subject to Land Disposal 
Proceedings Under the Homer City Code.  
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. Ordinance 93-17 
 b. Ordinance 94-2(A) 
 c. Resolution 15-030(A) 
 d. 2015 Land Allocation Information on Lillian Walli Estates Lots 
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 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager 3 
 ORDINANCE 15-22  4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA 6 
DECLARING THAT LILLIAN WALLI ESTATES SUBDIVISION LOTS 7 
57-60, 65-67, AND 70 NO LONGER NEED TO BE RETAINED FOR A 8 
PUBLIC PURPOSE AS NO PUBLIC NEED EXISTS FOR RETAINING 9 
THE PROPERTY AND RELEASING HM0880016 T06S R14W S24 10 
LILLIAN WALLI ESTATE SUB LOT 60, 65, 66, 67, 70, 57, 58, 59 FOR 11 
SALE SUBJECT TO LAND DISPOSAL PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE 12 
HOMER CITY CODE 13 
 14 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 93-17, Section 2, accepted and designated Lillian Walli Estates 15 
Subdivision Lots 57-60, 65-67, and 70: KPB Parcel No. 175-241-11 and Parcel No. 175-241-12 16 
(“Property”) for a public purpose and declared that a public need existed for the retention of 17 
the Property by the City at the time the Property was accepted; and 18 

 19 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 94-2(A) confirmed the designation of the Property for a public 20 

purpose and the then existing public need for retention of the Property, which was described 21 
in Ordinance 94-2(A) as Assessor’s Parcel No. 175-241-12-4, Plat No. 88-16 and Lot 67; and 22 

 23 
 WHEREAS, The City of Homer, Alaska, determined in Resolution 15-030(A) authorizing 24 

the City 2015 Land Allocation Plan that the Property, described within the Resolution as 25 
HM0880016 T06S R14W S24 LILLIAN WALLI ESTATE SUB LOT 60, 65, 66, 67, 70, 57, 58, 59, 26 
should be subject to sale as part of that allocation plan; and  27 
 28 

WHEREAS, The Property as described in Resolution 15-030(A) or in Ordinances 93-17 29 
and 94-2(A), is no longer needed for a public purpose and it is now in the City’s best interest to 30 
dispose of the Property via sale. 31 
 32 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 33 
 34 

Section 1. The Property is no longer needed for public use or purpose; 35 
 36 

Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to commence the sale of the 37 
Property subject to the Homer City Code, including but not limited to HCC Chapter 18.12.  38 
 39 

Section 3.  This Ordinance is not permanent in nature, and shall not be codified. 40 
 41 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 42 
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Page Two 
ORDINANCE 15-22 
CITY OF HOMER 

______________, 2015. 43 
 44 
       CITY OF HOMER 45 
 46 
 47 

____________________ 48 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  49 
 50 
ATTEST:  51 
 52 
 53 
____________________________ 54 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  55 
 56 
 57 
 58 
 59 
 60 
YES:  61 
NO:  62 
ABSTAIN:  63 
ABSENT:  64 
 65 
 66 
 67 
 68 
First Reading: 69 
Public Hearing: 70 
Second Reading: 71 
Effective Date:   72 
 73 
Reviewed and approved as to form. 74 
 75 
    76 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager  Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 77 
 78 
Date:    Date:   79 
 80 
 81 
Fiscal Note: N/A 82 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA  2 

Lewis 3 
RESOLUTION 15-042 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
SUPPORTING SALMON HABITAT BUFFERS ON LAKES AND 7 
STREAMS IN THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH. 8 

 9 
WHEREAS, Wild Alaskan salmon define who we are as Alaskans; salmon provide 10 

countless jobs in our community, they support our local and state economies, they shape our 11 
culture and they feed our families; and 12 
 13 

WHEREAS, Alaska’s Sustainable Salmon Policy states "salmon habitats should not be 14 
perturbed beyond natural boundaries of variation; . . . all essential salmon habitat in marine, 15 
estuarine, and freshwater ecosystems and access of salmon to these habitats should be 16 
protected; … [and] salmon habitat in fresh water should be protected on a watershed basis;” 17 
and 18 
 19 

WHEREAS, Article 8 of the Alaska Constitution defines our water and salmon resources 20 
as public resources belonging to all Alaskans, to be managed for the maximum benefit of 21 
current and future generations; and 22 
 23 

WHEREAS, The importance of salmon habitat protection has been apparent for many 24 
years on the Kenai Peninsula; in 1996 the Kenai Borough put forward riparian protections 25 
around the Kenai River, in 2000 it expanded those safeguards to larger salmon streams, and 26 
in 2011 it approved protections for all waterbodies where wild salmon spawn and rear in the 27 
Kenai Borough; and 28 
 29 

WHEREAS, Habitat protection buffers around streams and lakes are well-known by 30 
scientists, managers and developers alike to provide important safeguards for wild salmon, 31 
especially during the early stages of their lifecycles, and such safeguards have been shown to 32 
also increase property values and reduce property damage caused by flooding; and 33 
 34 

WHEREAS, The Alaska Department of Fish and Game’s jurisdiction extends only to the 35 
mean high water mark of lakes and streams, and the Kenai Peninsula Borough’s habitat 36 
buffers provide vitally important protections for the banks of such waterbodies. 37 
 38 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Homer, Alaska, does 39 
hereby support 50 ft. habitat protection buffers on the lakes and streams supporting wild 40 
Alaska salmon in the Kenai Peninsula Borough. 41 

 42 
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Page 2 of 2 
RESOLUTION 15-042 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council on this 15th day of June, 2015. 43 
 44 
       CITY OF HOMER 45 
 46 
 47 
       ____________________ 48 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 49 
ATTEST: 50 
 51 
 52 
___________________________ 53 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 54 
 55 
Fiscal Note: N/A 56 

 57 
 58 
 59 
 60 
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CITY OF HOMER 
HOMER, ALASKA  

Zak/Roberts 
RESOLUTION 15-043 

 
A  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER,  ALASKA, 
URGING THE U.S. NAVY TO CHANGE TRAINING EXERCISES IN 
THE GULF OF ALASKA.  

 
WHEREAS, The City of Homer supports vibrant fishing economies that illustrate 

coastal Alaska's reliance on the fish and wildlife resources in the Gulf of Alaska; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Homer supports a strong national defense, and recognizes the 

need for trainings and exercises to promote military readiness; and  
 

WHEREAS, The U.S. Navy plans to conduct training exercises in June 2015 which will 
release hundreds of thousands of pounds of toxic and other pollutants into waters 
designated by NOAA as Essential Fish Habitat for a multitude of species that support 
economic development in Alaskan coastal communities and the harvest of wild Alaskan fish 
for global markets; and 
 

WHEREAS, The training will also entail various forms of high frequency sonar 
which will disrupt the behaviors of hundreds of thousands of marine mammals, and have 
untold impacts on various fish species; and 

 
WHEREAS, The training area is a highly productive region for many marine fish, 

shellfish and marine mammal populations and supports some of the most productive 
fisheries in the United States. It is also an important spawning area for many fishes, and 
the training is scheduled to take place during the summer season when many fish 
populations are migrating and spawning.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Homer, Alaska, does 
hereby request that the Navy move these trainings to less sensitive areas 200 nautical miles 
from Alaska’s shoreline, and conduct the exercises at a later time in the year to avoid 
spawning, rearing and migrating fish and other species. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council on this 15th day of June, 2015. 

 
       CITY OF HOMER 
 
 
       ____________________ 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 
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Page 2 of 2 
RESOLUTION 15-043 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Fiscal Note: N/A 
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NOTES ON PROPOSED GULF OF ALASKA NAVY TRAINING EXERCISES: 
 
The following are excerpts from the Navy’s Environmental Impact Statement and can be read in full 
at www.goaeis.com. 
 
EIS Section 3.6 Fish:  

- The TMAA and vicinity is a highly productive region for various marine fish and shellfish 
populations and supports some of the most productive fisheries in the United States* 

- The TMAA falls within the Alaska Current (AC) and the Alaska Coastal Current (ACC) systems. 
Both currents flow in a northerly direction off southeastern Alaska and then turn southwestward 
along the Alaska coast** 

- Currently the GOA supports habitats of “endangered” and “threatened” populations of high seas 
salmon (Chinook, coho, chum, and sockeye salmon, and steelhead)  

- The TMAA and vicinity is a highly productive region for various marine fish and shellfish 
populations and supports some of the most productive fisheries in the United States. It is also an 
important spawning area for many fishes 

- At least 383 species belonging to 84 families of marine and anadromous fishes have been reported 
from the predominant ecosystems found in the GOA TMAA  

- 59 of the 66 managed groundfish species are known to occur in the TMAA  
- Five species of Pacific salmon (Chinook, coho, chum, pink, and sockeye salmon) have EFH 

designated within the TMAA  
- Of the five species of Pacific Salmon, Chinook would be the most affected by the Navy’s trainings 
- The effects [of the trainings] on fish could include direct physical injury, such as potential for 

death, injury, or failure to (or an increase in the time needed to) reach the next developmental 
stage.  

- Stress to fish populations in warfare areas includes environmental stressors, acoustic effects of 
underwater sounds to fish, effects of underwater impulsive sounds, explosive ordnance, 
nonexplosive ordnance, and expended materials.  

- Potential stressors to fish and EFH include vessel movements (disturbance and collisions), aircraft 
overflights (disturbance), explosive ordnance, sonar training (disturbance), weapons 
firing/nonexplosive ordnance use (disturbance and strikes), and expended materials (ordnance-
related materials, targets, sonobuoys, and marine markers).  

- Potential effects of explosive charge detonations on fish and EFH include disruption of habitat; 
exposure to chemical by-products; disturbance, injury, or death from the shock (pressure) wave; 
acoustic impacts; and indirect effects including those on prey species and other components of the 
food web.  

* These trainings will occur during fishing season. Commercial fishing is the largest private sector 
employer in the state of Alaska and supports over 800,000 jobs.  
** This means that the expended materials left in the water after the trainings will flow towards Alaska’s 
coastline.  

In reference to Sonar: 

- There have been very few studies on the effects that human-generated sound may have on fish  
- The majority of studies often lack appropriate controls, statistical rigor, and/or expert analysis of 

the results 
- Hearing capability data only exists for fewer than 100 of the 29,000 fish species  
- Generally, a clear correlation between hearing capability and the environment cannot be asserted 

or refuted due to limited knowledge of ambient sound levels in marine habitats and a lack of 
comparative studies 

- Based upon currently available data it is not possible to predict specific effects of Navy impulsive 
sources on fish. At the same time, there are several results that are at least suggestive of potential 
effects that result in death or damage 
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- The literature on vulnerability to injury from exposure to loud sounds is similarly limited, relevant 
to particular species, and, because of the great diversity of fish, not easily extrapolated  

We just don’t know: 

- The effects of sound on fish are largely unknown  
- A number of studies have examined the effects of explosives on fish. However, these studies are 

often variable, so extrapolation from one study to another, or to other sources, such as those used 
by the Navy, is not really possible 

- Little is known about the very important issues of nonmortality damage in the short- and long-
term, and nothing is known about effects on behavior of fish.  

- More well-controlled studies are needed on the hearing thresholds for fish species and on 
temporary and permanent hearing loss associated with exposure to sounds.  

- The effects of sound may not only be species specific, but also depend on the mass of the fish 
(especially where any injuries are being considered) and life history phase (eggs and larvae may 
be more or less vulnerable to exposure than adult fish).  

- No studies have established effects of cumulative exposure of fish to any type of sound or have 
determined whether subtle and long-term effects on behavior or physiology could have an impact 
upon survival of fish populations.  

Munitions Constituents: 

- Petroleum hydrocarbons released during an accident are harmful to fish. Jet fuel is toxic to fish. 
- Unburned fuel may be spread over a large area 
- Fuel spills and material released from weapons and targets could occur at different locations and at 

different times.  
- Potential impacts from Navy explosives training include degradation of substrate and introduction 

of toxic chemicals into the water column  

EIS Section 3.14 Public Safety:  

- Undetonated ordnance on the ocean floor may pose a risk to fishermen, particularly bottom 
trawlers. If a trawl contacted an undetonated ordnance item, the item could detonate.  

- Chaff (aluminum-coated polymer fibers inside of a launching mechanism) will be used during the 
trainings. Upon deployment, the chaff and small pieces of plastic are expended. The purpose of 
chaff is to counter avoid aircraft detection by radar by masking the aircraft and to provide false 
radar returns to defeat radar-guided anti-aircraft defensive systems. Chaff will form a large cloud 
of fiber that disperses slowly, which could affect public safety.  

- Some solid training items expended at sea could migrate to the shoreline where the public could 
encounter them. Included among these items are targets and sonobuoys.  

Hazardous materials from the trainings left in the water include heavy metals, propellants, and 
explosives. Including the following: Cyanide, Chromium, Lead, Tungsten, Nickel, Cadmium, Barium 
chromate, Chlorides, Phosphorus, Titanium compounds, Lead oxide, Barium chromate, Potassium 
perchlorate, Lead chromate, Ammonium perchlorate, Potassium perchlorate, Fulminate of mercury, 
Potassium perchlorate and Lead azide. 

The Navy was permitted Alternative 2 (their preferred).  
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Alaska regulations on expended and hazardous materials are not applicable to Navy training in the TMAA 
because no training activities take place within State waters (up to three nm from shore). Alaska has not 
developed any state-specific military munitions regulations.  

Assuming Navy training under Alternative 2 would remain consistent over periods of five and 20 years, the 
Navy would expend approximately 880 tons (209 lb per nm2 [27.5 kg per km2]) and 3,520 tons (835 lb per 
nm2 [110 kg per km2]) of training material in the TMAA, respectively.  

 

Continued, next page 
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List of Weapons to be Used in the GOA Trainings 
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Map of the TMAA* (Temporary Maritime Activities Map) 
*exact locations of training exercises are classified 
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1

Jo Johnson

From: Shelley Gill <whaledetective@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 10, 2015 8:52 AM
To: Bryan Zak
Subject: Navy exercises in the Gulf of Alaska

Dear Mr. Zak, 
Thank you for submitting the resolution against Navy testing. I understand it will come before 
the council Monday June 15. Homer is a town dependent on the health of the sea. All of our 
tourist related businesses, all of our fishing charters and the commercial fleet, even the grocery 
stores currently boxing boat orders rely on the vigor of the marine environment.  
 
Sadly Alaska is experiencing climate change linked events such as the warm water blob that now 
extends from Baja through the Gulf to the Bering sea. A surface temperature increase of 5 
degrees is limiting plankton bloom, affecting feed fish populations and causing sea star and sea 
lion die offs along the Pacific coast. Prince William Sound is still struggling to recover from the 
Exxon Valdez oil spill 26 years later. The ocean noise levels have increased substantially in the 
last five years- so much so that some species of whales have had to scream to be heard. These 
cumulative affects on the ocean habitat are poorly understood but common sense tells us 
introducing spent munitions, toxic chemicals, active sonar and Navy noise to the habitat is a 
really bad idea, especially during the peak of the migration of salmon and whales. 
There is virtually no research on how active sonar affects migrating salmon. National Marine 
Fisheries asked the Navy to monitor and study these effects when the Navy applied for a permit 
for Northern Edge exercises five years ago. The Navy declined. 
 
When the Navy held a public hearing in Homer in March they gave an analysis on the impact of 
sonar on marine mammal species. They forgot to mention three species of beaked whales that 
frequent the deep Alaska Trench. To prevail in legal action against the Navy one must show 
proof of harm. That proof came in the Bahamas in 2000 when beaked whales and dolphins 
stranded after Navy exercises there. A biologist, Ken Balcomb, himself a former Navy sonar guy, 
obtained the head of a freshly dead Cuviers beaked whale and after storing it in a freezer at a 
local bar oevrnight, flew it to a necropsy expert where it was proved the whale died from sonar 
trauma. This set the stage for both California and Hawaii through the NRDC to push these 
exercises out of their waters.  
 
The Navy's exercises put our way of life and our economic viability in peril. As our newly elected 
governor canvasses the state asking Alaskans what paths we should take to insure our economic 
future it is incumbent that we remember we have the miracle of a strong fishery-a sustainable 
and environmentally clean industry that helped build Alaska. We need to act now to protect it. 
I'll see you at City Hall on Monday. 
Shelley Gill 
Homer 
 
Sent from my iPad 
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 CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

         City Council 3 
RESOLUTION 15-044 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL DISBANDING THE 6 
PORT AND HARBOR BUILDING TASK FORCE. 7 
 8 

 WHEREAS, The Port and Harbor Building Task Force was formed on June 10, 2013 via 9 
Resolution 13-059; and 10 
 11 

WHEREAS, The purpose of the Task Force was to seek comment from interested 12 
parties and the general public, review existing documents, help develop the request for 13 
proposals, review and score construction proposals, act as a sounding board for the architect 14 
or design/construction team, review the project scope of work and budget, and make 15 
recommendations to the City Council; and 16 
 17 

WHEREAS, The Port and Harbor Building Task Force completed the work it was tasked 18 
with. 19 

 20 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Homer, Alaska, disbands 21 
the Port and Harbor Building Task Force. 22 
 23 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council this 15th day of June, 2015. 24 
  25 
      CITY OF HOMER   26 
 27 
  28 
      _________________________ 29 
                MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR   30 
  31 
 32 
ATTEST: 33 
 34 
  35 
______________________________ 36 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK    37 
  38 
Fiscal Note: N/A 39 
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Memorandum 15-083 
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Wythe and City Council Members 

FROM:  Port and Harbor Building Task Force, Barbara Howard, Chair 

DATE:  June 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Request to Dissolve the Port and Harbor Building Task Force 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
In compliance with Resolution 13-059 the work of the Port and Harbor Building Task Force 
has now been completed.  Nearly two years to the date of inception, this task force proudly 
requests that the City Council dissolve this body.  
 
Members of the Task Force, along with the Director of Public Works and the Project Manager, 
met often with the architects, engineers and contractors to design and construct a suitable 
facility for the port and harbor staff and harbor customers and did so while bringing this 
project to fruition within schedule and budget. This was truly a team effort in achieving for 
the citizens of this community and the users of this harbor the best possible end product.  
 
The beautiful building is complete. The staff has moved in and the community has come to 
witness the dedication and grand opening of this building. A very proud and happy occasion. 
 
The Task Force expresses its gratitude of thanks to Mr. Dan Nelsen and Mr. Carey Meyer for 
their tireless efforts to contain cost for a building that will be adequate for the needs of the 
harbormaster's staff and the vessel owners for a very long time.  
 
The Task Force also recognizes the sincerest efforts each port and harbor employee played in 
the space efficiency and design for the customers who visit each day. 
 
To the Mayor and City Council, your foresight and determination made this project a reality. 
 
Task Force Members request to "stand down". 
 
Bryan Hawkins 
Robert Hartley 
Lisa Ellington 
David Lewis 
Barbara Howard 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

                                                                                                                                     City Manager 3 
RESOLUTION 15-045 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
DIRECTING THE ADMINISTRATION TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR 7 
PROPOSALS FOR AMBULANCE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL 8 
BILLING SERVICES. 9 
 10 

WHEREAS, Emergency medical services are an essential service the City of Homer 11 
provides, and 12 

 13 
WHEREAS, The City of Homer Volunteer Fire Department went to 483 medic calls in 14 

2014; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, Whenever possible the City attempts to partially recover the cost of medic 17 

calls by billing Medicaid, Medicare, private insurance, and individuals for the service; and 18 
 19 
 WHEREAS, Medical billing codes have become so specialized and cumbersome that it 20 
is no longer feasible or efficient to continue to bill for ambulance services in-house; and 21 
 22 
 WHEREAS, Many fire departments in Alaska outsource ambulance billing to a 23 
specialized third party, and 24 
 25 
 WHEREAS, A higher rate of recovery, turn around, and reliable cash flow from a 26 
specialized third party billing on behalf of the City of Homer will benefit the financial 27 
condition of the City.   28 
 29 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Homer City Council directs the City 30 
Manager and the City Clerk to issue a Request for Proposals for ambulance and emergency 31 
medical billing services. 32 
 33 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council this 15th day of June, 2015. 34 
 35 
   36 
 37 
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RESOLUTION 15-045 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

CITY OF HOMER 38 
 39 
 40 
       _____________________ 41 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 42 
ATTEST: 43 
 44 
 45 
___________________________ 46 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 47 
 48 
Fiscal Note: Estimated advertising costs $600. 49 
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Memorandum 15-085 

TO:    Mayor Wythe and Homer City Council  

THROUGH:  Katie Koester, City Manager 

FROM:   John Li, Finance Director 

DATE:   June 10, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Ambulance Billing  

Currently the City’s Finance Department is doing the emergency medical service (EMS) billing. 

The City’s EMS, part of the Fire Department, is considered one of the essential services 

provided by the City. Therefore, total cost recovery is not the objective. However, the Finance 

Department concluded that the billing process has not been the most efficient use of 

resources and the revenue is not maximized by this function.  

City of Homer EMS Billing:  

Ambulance billing has become more and more specialized. The ever-increasing demand for 

staffing time and technical proficiency in dealing with Ambulance & Emergency Medicine 

Coding, compliance, and claim denials has made it very difficult to be effectively and 

efficiently preforming the billing function internally.   

1. City of Homer EMS has been providing from 450 to 600 billable (medically necessary) 

transports per year for the past five years.   

2. We are currently at least four months behind in processing the bills.  

3. Denial rate is very high.  

4. Budget, Revenue, and Collection History: 

 

Fiscal Year Ending 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 5 Year Total

Rev. Budgeted 225,000     210,000     225,000     225,000     175,000     1,060,000   

Rev. Audit Adj. 114,318     117,169     99,508        194,877     203,253     729,125       

Cash Collected 109,027     119,916     143,243     168,805     158,646     699,637       

Collected - Bud (115,973) (90,084) (81,757) (56,195) (16,354) (360,363)
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MEMORANDUM 15-085 

CITY OF HOMER 

 

Around the State of Alaska:  

Organization/City Population 
Paid 
Staff Volunteers Bill Method Vendor 

Capital City Fire Rescue >15000 33 65 Yes Vendor Whitman Enterprises 

Fairbanks Fire Dept >15000 39 0 Yes Vendor 
Fairbanks Billing 
Service 

Kenai Fire Department 10000-15000 18 0 Yes Vendor  Systems Design  

Matanuska-Susitna Borough >15000 18 200 Yes Agency MBS Accounting Dept 

Central Emergency Services >15000 42 35 Yes Vendor 
Systems Design 
Northwest 

Anchorage Fire >15000 325 0 Yes Vendor Whitman Enterprises 

North Tongas Volunteer FD <5000 3 15 Yes Vendor Systems Design 

Nikiski 5500 21 20 Yes Vendor Systems Design 

Cordova VFD <5000 2 40 Yes Vendor Systems West Design 

Petersburg VFD <5000 2 65 Yes Vendor Omni Billing 

Ninilchik Emergency 
Services <5000 0 25 Yes Agency   

Sitka Fire Department 5000-10000 9 45 Yes vendor Omni Billing 

Skagway 750-3000 4 25-40 yes Vendor Omni Billing 

Dillingham Fire Department <5000 2 33 yes Vendor Systems Design 

 

Based on current conditions, the City Administration’s recommendation is to outsource the 

function to a professional billing service. The objectives are to have quick turnaround, reliable 

cash flow, high quality claims, and better customer services.  

Budgetary consideration:  at least revenue neutral.  
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA  2 

City Manager 3 
RESOLUTION 15-047 4 

 5 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
CHANGING DATES FOR PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 7 
HOMER NATURAL GAS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT.  8 

 9 
WHEREAS, Due to start-up issues the issuance of bills for assessments in the Homer 10 

Natural Gas Special Assessment District has been delayed; and 11 
 12 

WHEREAS, Because of this delay, the due date for assessment payments must be 13 
changed to comply with Title 17 of the Homer City Code; and 14 
 15 

WHEREAS, Due to litigation regarding the assessment of condominium units in the 16 
Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District, the due date for assessment payments for 17 
condominium units must be deferred. 18 
 19 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that on or before 5:00 p.m. on September 1, 2015, 20 
all assessments in the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District, except for assessments 21 
of condominium units, shall become due and payable in full.  An optional ten (10) year 22 
payment plan is offered whereby the assessment, except for assessments of condominium 23 
units, may be paid in ten (10) equal yearly installments of principal plus interest of four 24 
percent (4%) on the unpaid balance of the assessment.  The first such installment shall be 25 
due and payable on or before 5:00 p.m. September 1, 2015 with interest accrued from July 2, 26 
2015 to the due date, and each installment thereafter shall be due on or before July 1st of 27 
each year.  The outstanding balance of an assessment, plus accrued interest, may be prepaid 28 
at any time. If payment in full or any annual installment payment is not received when due, 29 
the entire outstanding principal amount of the assessment shall be in default and shall be 30 
immediately due and payable.  The entire outstanding assessment principal (including the 31 
annual installment) shall have added a penalty of ten percent (10%) on the outstanding 32 
principal.  The principal and penalty shall draw interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) 33 
per annum until paid.  Should default occur, the City of Homer will institute a civil action for a 34 
foreclosure of the assessment lien. Foreclosure shall be against all property on which 35 
assessments are in default.  All costs including collection and legal fees resulting from such 36 
action, shall be added and incorporated into the assessed amount due plus interest and 37 
penalties and shall be reimbursed from the proceeds of foreclosure sale of the assessed real 38 
property. 39 
 40 
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RESOLUTION 15-046 
CITY OF HOMER 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the due date for assessment payments for 41 
condominium units shall be deferred to a later date to be determined by subsequent Council 42 
resolution. 43 
 44 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council on this 15th day of June, 2015. 45 
 46 
       CITY OF HOMER 47 
 48 
 49 
       ____________________ 50 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 51 
ATTEST: 52 
 53 
 54 
___________________________ 55 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 56 
 57 
Fiscal Note: N/A 58 
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Memorandum 15-084 
TO:  Mayor Wythe and Homer City Council 

FROM:  Katie Koester, City Manager 

DATE:  June 10, 2015 

SUBJECT: Resolution 15-047: Setting a New Due Date for Natural Gas HSAD Assessments 

On March 23, 2015 Council passed Resolution 15-017 confirming the Natural Gas HSAD 
Assessment Roll and setting a due date of July 1, 2015 for assessments. Resolution 15-047 
before you today sets a new due date of September 1, 2015 for assessments. There are two 
reasons for this change: 

1) City code requires that statements for special assessment districts are issued 60 days 
prior to the due date.  The Finance Department has encountered numerous problems 
with the accounting software that has made it impossible to print the statements in a 
timely manner. Parcel owners were sent a notice of the due date, assessment amount, 
and payment amount if lot owners choose the payment plan, on April 22, 2015 (see 
sample notice attached). 

2) City code requires that all members of a special assessment district be notified of the 
fines and penalties associated with non-payment on the statement. The fines and 
penalties are very steep for special assessment districts: non-payment or late payment 
incurs a 10% fine on entire balance, the balance becomes due and the interest rate 
increases to 15%. The fines and penalties will be prominently displayed on the 
statement itself and explained in a cover letter accompanying the statement (see 
cover letter attached).  

Statements will be mailed out June 18, 2015. This will give parcel owners over 60 days before 
their statement is due. In the meantime, the Finance Department will be accepting payments. 
Many people have already come in to pay their assessment. As of June 9, 2015, 65 customers 
paid in full and about 85 customers have chosen the 10-year optional payment plan and 
made the first installment. The total receipts are about $250,000. 

Aside from changing the date the assessment is due, the Resolution before you makes two 
additional changes from the original Resolution 15-017. 

1) Resolution 15-047 defers the due date for assessment payments for condominium 
units. 

2) Resolution 15-0xx makes the fine and penalty structure consistent for non-payment 
and late payment. Staff found inconsistencies in the fines and penalty structure in the 
original resolution that Resolution 15-047 fixes. Under the original resolution, if a 
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MEMORANDUM 15-084 
CITY OF HOMER 

 
parcel owner chose to not make any payment towards the assessment, they would 
incur a 10% fine, however their interest rate would be lowered to 3%. This is less than 
the City is being charged for the loan from the Borough (4%). Council’s intent was to 
discourage non-payment of the assessment, which is why the fine and penalty 
structure for late payments in the original resolution was so steep. Resolution 15-0xx 
makes the fine and penalty structure consistent for non-payment and late payment. 
The City wants to encourage even partial payment of the assessment – not make it 
cheaper to ignore paying the assessment all together. Why the oversight? The original 
resolution included stock language the City uses for other special assessment districts 
where the terms and conditions are different: we own the infrastructure and we are 
either financing ourselves or receiving a very discounted government loan where a 3% 
interest rate would be an increase.  

 
Thank you for your patience and assistance as we wade through the final steps of the Natural 
Gas HSAD.   

Enc: 

Sample April 22, 2015 Natural Gas HSAD Notice  
Natural Gas HSAD Statement Cover Letter 
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HOMER, AK 99603 

Re: Parcel# 

Dear Property Owner, 

Legal description 

Finance Department 
491 East Pioneer Avenue 

Homer, Alaska 99603 

finance@cityofhomer-ak.gov 
(p) 907-235-8121
(f) 907-235-3140

April 22, 2015 

Your property has been assessed $3,262. 77 for the Natural Gas Special Assessment District (HSAD). 
In approximately 30 days, you will receive a pink statement from the Finance Department where you will 
have the option of paying the assessment in full or making the first annual installment of $405.27 (see below 
terms) by July 1, 2015. There is a low income deferment available to those who qualify. 
Once you receive the pink notice, we will be able to accept payments and you can apply for the low income 
deferment. 

Assessment Amount: 
Annual Interest Rate: 
Annual payments: 
Payment Frequency: 
Compound Period: 
Annual payment: 

$3,262.77 
4.00% 
10 
Annual 
Annual 
$405.27 

If you have any additional questions, please call 435-3116. 

Sincerely, 

Zhiyongli, 
Finance Director 
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June 18, 2015 
 
 
RE: PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE HOMER NATURAL GAS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
Dear Property Owner(s): 
 
Earlier we notified you assessments for the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment District 
would be mailed soon. Due to a failure with our accounting software, mailing of the pink 
statements was delayed. This also resulted in an extension of the due date for assessments.  
 
DUE DATE 
Included is your statement of assessment for the Homer Natural Gas Special Assessment 
District. This is due and payable on September 1, 2015 before 5:00 p.m. You may either pay 
the $3,262.77 (per parcel) amount in full or the first installment of $402.00 by September 1, 
2015.  
 
The City is offering a ten (10) year payment plan to pay the assessment in ten (10) yearly 
installments of principal plus interest of four percent (4%) on the unpaid balance of the 
assessment. The first installment is due and payable on or before 5:00 p.m. September 1, 
2015. Interest is accrued from July 2, 2015 to the due date. Each installment thereafter shall 
be due on or before July 1st of each year. The outstanding balance of an assessment, plus 
accrued interest, may be prepaid at any time.  
 
PENALTIES 
If payment in full or any annual installment payment is not received by the due date, the 
entire outstanding principal amount of the assessment shall be in default and shall be 
immediately due and payable.  The entire outstanding assessment principal (including the 
annual installment) will have an added penalty of ten percent (10%) on the outstanding 
principal. This results in a $326.27 penalty on a missed first payment. The principal and 
penalty will draw interest at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum until paid.  
 
DEFAULT 
If default should occur, the City of Homer will institute a civil action for a foreclosure of the 
assessment lien. Foreclosure shall be against all property on which assessments are in 
default.  All costs including collection and legal fees resulting from such action, shall be 
added and incorporated into the assessed amount due plus interest and penalties and shall 
be reimbursed from the proceeds of foreclosure sale of the assessed real property. 
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DEFERRAL 
Assessment payments may be deferred if a person:  

1. Has an annual family income that is less than 125 percent of the current U.S. Health 
and Human Services Poverty Guidelines for Alaska;  
2. Owns or has a life tenancy in the assessed property, and permanently resides in a 
single-family dwelling on the property; and  
3. Is not determined by the City, after notice and hearing, to have been conveyed the 
property primarily for the purpose of obtaining the exemption. 

 
An assessment payment deferment is subject to approval by the Council. A person seeking 
deferment of an assessment payment shall file a written application with the Finance Director 
on or before September 1, 2015. An application is available at City Hall or on the City’s 
website. 
 
If you have any questions concerning the enclosed statement or the contents of this letter, 
please call me at 235-8121. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Zhiyong Li 
Finance Director  
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Clerk/ 3 
Public Works Director 4 

RESOLUTION 15-048 5 
 6 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 7 
NOTING THE SUFFICIENCY OF THE PETITION FOR THE LILLIAN 8 
WALLI FAIRVIEW AVENUE ROAD RECONSTRUCTION AND PAVING 9 
AND SEWER IMPROVEMENTS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 10 
AND SETTING THE PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR SEPTEMBER 14, 11 
2015. 12 

 13 
 WHEREAS, A petition for road reconstruction and paving and sewer improvements for 14 
property owners within the Lillian Walli Fairview Avenue Subdivision was circulated from 15 
October 30, 2014 to December 30, 2014; and 16 
 17 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to HCC 17.04.040(a)(2) the sufficiency of the petition requires 18 
signatures of not less than one half in value of the real property in the proposed improvement 19 
district; and  20 
 21 
 WHEREAS, Signatures from property owners in favor of the road reconstruction and 22 
paving and sewer improvements equal 70.6%; and  23 
 24 
 WHEREAS, A neighborhood meeting was held on February 11, 2015; and 25 
 26 

WHEREAS, The notice of public hearing and statement of objection form will be sent to 27 
property owners by certified mail in accordance with HCC 17.04.050(a). 28 

 29 
WHEREAS, The lots contained within this proposed special assessment district are 30 

covered by a subdivision agreement that stipulates that the costs of the construction of all 31 
subdivision improvements are the responsibility of the lot owners; and 32 

 33 
WHEREAS, Improvements constructed within this subdivision are not eligible for 34 

Homer Accelerated Roads and Trails (HART) funding, but can be completed as a HART Special 35 
Assessment District with 100% of the cost of the proposed road and sewer improvements 36 
being the responsibility of the benefitted properties; and 37 

 38 
WHEREAS, The properties within the proposed Lillian Walli Sewer Special Assessment 39 

District have been previously assessed for sewer improvements that did not provide sewer 40 
service to the properties; a credit should be given each benefitted property in the amount of 41 
the previous assessment. 42 
 43 
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 WHEREAS, It is expected that the road improvements that should be constructed 44 
within Fairview Avenue will incorporate additional pavement width, curb and gutter, street 45 
lighting and pedestrian/bike friendly amenities associated with a “collector” street that are 46 
not normally required for a residential road, the cost of which benefits the community as a 47 
whole. 48 
 49 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Homer City Council notes the sufficiency of 50 
the petition for the Lillian Walli Fairview Avenue Subdivision Road Reconstruction and Paving 51 
and Sewer Improvements Special Assessment District and sets a public hearing date of 52 
September 14, 2015.  53 
 54 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Homer City Council supports the creation a special 55 
assessment district through the HART program, once all conditions necessary have been met, 56 
with the understanding that 100% of the cost of the road and sewer improvements are the 57 
responsibility of the benefitted lot owners; and that the amount of previously paid sewer 58 
assessments will be credited back to each property owner at the time the proposed Lillian 59 
Walli road and sewer assessments are levied; and that any additional cost associated with 60 
constructing a “collector” street vs. a normal residential street will be paid for by the City. 61 
 62 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of Homer, Alaska this 15th day of June, 63 
2015. 64 
 65 
      CITY OF HOMER 66 
 67 
 68 
             69 
      MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 70 
 71 
ATTEST: 72 
 73 
 74 
      75 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 76 
 77 
Fiscal Note:  Staff time and certified mail fees. 78 
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Memorandum 15-086   
 

TO:  Mary K. Koester, City Manager 

FROM:  Carey Meyer, Public Works Director 

DATE:  June 10, 2015 

SUBJECT: Lillian Walli Subdivision 
Fairview Avenue Road and Sewer Special Assessment District 

 
 
In response to a request by a property owner within the Lillian Walli Subdivision, a petition for 
road reconstruction and paving and sewer improvements was circulated from October 30, 2014 
to December 30, 2014 for what is now known as the Lillian Walli Fairview Avenue Road 
Reconstruction and Paving and Sewer Improvements Special Assessment District (SAD). The 
district boundaries are shown on the attached map. 

Signatures from property owners in favor of the road reconstruction and paving and sewer 
improvements equal 70.6%; sufficient to move forward with a public hearing and potentially the 
formation of the district. 

Three issues need to be clarified regarding how the costs of the road and sewer improvements 
will be assessed to benefitted property owners: 

1) The lots contained within this proposed special assessment district are covered by a 
subdivision agreement that stipulates that the costs of the construction of all subdivision 
improvements are the responsibility of the lot owners.  Improvements constructed within 
this subdivision are not eligible for HART subsidy funding. Can the proposed road and sewer 
improvements be completed as a HART Special Assessment District with 100% of the cost of the 
proposed road and sewer improvements being the responsibility of the benefitted properties? 
 

2) The proposed road improvements in Fairview Avenue will, most probably, be more 
substantial than a normal neighborhood road. Fairview Avenue should be constructed as a 
“collector” street, with pedestrian/bike friendly amenities, street lighting and additional 
pavement widths that are not normally associated with a residential neighborhood street. 
Will the City cover the additional cost of these “collector” street requirements? 

 
3) The properties within the proposed Lillian Walli sewer special assessment district have been 

previously assessed for sewer improvements that did not provide sewer service to the 
properties. The subdivision was assessed for extending the sewer main along the Sterling 
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Highway. Should a credit be given back to the Lillian Walli property owners, since they did not 
receive sewer service from the Sterling Highway sewer improvement? 

 
Recommendations: 

The City Council pass a resolution that notes the sufficiency of the petition for the Lillian Walli 
Fairview Avenue Road Reconstruction and Paving and Sewer Improvements Special Assessment 
District and sets a public hearing date. 

The resolution should also support the creation a special assessment district through the HART 
program, once all conditions necessary have been met, with the understanding that 100% of the 
cost of the road and sewer improvements are the responsibility of the benefitted lot owners; 
that the amount of previously paid sewer assessments will be credited back to each property 
owner at the time the proposed Lillian Walli road and sewer assessments are levied; and that 
any additional cost associated with constructing a “collector” street vs. a normal residential 
street will be paid for by the City. 
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 Memorandum 15-087 
 
 
TO:  MAYOR WYTHE AND HOMER CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  JOHN LI, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE:  JUNE 10, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2016 PROPOSED BUDGET SCHEDULE 

 
 
Included is the 2016 Proposed Budget Development Schedule. 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Review and approve the 2016 Budget Schedule. 
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Council Meeting Date Time Event

Monday, June 15, 2015 6:00 PM Budget Schedule to Council.

Monday, July 27, 2015
Submit to departments, budget work sheets including 
salary and fringe benefit costs.

Monday, August 10, 2015 5:00 PM
During Committee of the Whole, Council to discuss 
budget priorities for the coming year.

Monday, August 10, 2015 6:00 PM
Regular Meeting-Public Hearing, Council to seek 
public input on budget priorities for the coming year.

Monday, August 24, 2015
Complete budget work sheets, including narratives, 
and justifications from departments to Finance.

Monday, September 14, 2015 5:00 PM
During Committee of the Whole, Council to discuss 
Revenue Sources for General Fund.

Monday, September 14, 2015
Compile data and return copy to departments for 
review.

Monday, September 14, 2015 Week of
City Manager, Finance Director, Department Heads - 
budget review

Monday, September 28, 2015 Preliminary budget assumptions to Council.

Monday, October 12, 2015
City  Manager submits Draft Proposed Budget to 
Council.

Monday, October 12, 2015 5:00 PM
During Committee of the Whole, Council to discuss 
budget - 1 hour.

Monday, October 12, 2015 6:00 PM Regular Meeting - Public Hearing.

Monday, October 26, 2015 5:00 PM
During Committee of the Whole, Council to discuss 
budget - 1 hour

Monday, October 26, 2015 6:00 PM
Regular Meeting-Budget Ordinance and Fee/Tariff 
Resolutions Introduced.

Monday, November 23, 2015 5:00 PM
During Committee of the Whole, Council to discuss 
budget - 1 hour

Monday, November 23, 2015 6:00 PM Regular Meeting - Public Hearing.

Monday, December 14, 2015 6:00 PM
Regular Meeting - Public Hearing & adoption of 
Proposed Budget.

City of Homer
Proposed Budget Development Schedule for FY 2016
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VISITORS
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6/9/2015

1

South Peninsula Hospital, Inc.
Presentation to the City of Homer

June 15, 2015
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2

New Services 

New or Expanded Services & Providers

Specialty Clinic:

Podiatry 

Expanded 
Ear/Nose/Throat

Urology

Neurology

Pacemaker SPH Specialty Clinic, Bartlett Street

New Services 

New or Expanded Services & Providers

Homer Medical Center: 

Additional providers

Behavioral Health

Obstetrics and Gynecology 

Addiction Medicine

Teresa Johnson, MD
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New Services 

New or Expanded Systems

EMS Telemedicine

Operating Room 
renovation 

BioFire Lab Testing

CT Upgrades

Imaging Software
.

Community Benefit

• Payroll of $23.4 million

• 384 employees

• Health Fairs

• Educational programs

• Health Promotions

• School programs

• MAPP of SKP

• Charity Care

Community Benefit
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Community Benefit

Multi Agency 
Disaster Drill

Hospital Usage
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Hospital Usage
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6

FY 2015 - Financial Snapshot

Net Operating Revenue $46,462,300 

Operating Expenses $47,389,716

Loss from Operations ($   618,140)

EBITDA $  1,895,784

Non-operating revenue $  2,515,079

Net Income $  1,896,939

Financial Update

Five Year Strategic Plan

Long Term Care 

Medical Staff 
Development Plan

Home Health Care

Patient Centered 
Medical Home

Supporting an aging workforce and service area

Immediate Priorities
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FHL ~ 500 Hazel Ave., Homer, AK 99603 ~ 907-435-3195 ~ www.friendshomerlibrary.org 

 

Homer Public Library’s Western Lot 

 

The City of Homer embarked on the New Library Project more than 10 years ago and set aside lots 
from Heath Street to the Poopdeck Trail, adjacent to Hazel Avenue, as the location of this civic 
anchor. The original design plans included park-like attributes for the 2.24 acre western lot, but due 
to funding considerations only a gravel foot path was established to link the library’s main parking 
area to the Poopdeck Trail. Now, with increasing concern about safety in the area, the time is right 
to re-envision the library’s western lot and its potential as a vibrant community space. 
 
The Friends of the Homer Public Library (FHL) propose the following set of goals and objectives for 
integrating the western lot into the library’s mission and programs.  These achievable and desirable 
goals follow a community conversation in September 2014; thinning of vegetation by the City of 
Homer in February 2015; and ongoing discussions with the Library Director and staff. It is FHL’s 
intention to collaborate as much as possible while providing leadership and initial funding to 
achieve these goals. 
 
Long-term Goals (2015-2020) 

1. increase safety for trail users and library patrons  

2. expand available space for existing library programs 

3. create potential space for new library programs 

4. develop new partnerships with community entities who encourage the use of outdoor space 

5. provide a new community space within the city center  

6. connect with neighbors interested in improving the Poopdeck Trail area to make it a community 

asset, not a liability 

 
 

 
Google Earth Imagery (5/12/2011) with western lot outlined (yellow) 
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Short-term Objectives (2015 - 2016) 

Our first priority is to establish the western lot as a safe place. Our short–term objectives are to: 

 Maintain better sight lines created by the recent thinning by the city 

o Work soil to prevent rapid regrowth of shrubs and weeds 

o Remove stumps where appropriate  

o Map out wetland area and plant compatible low growing plants  

o Recruit volunteer work crew to cut back regrowth  

 Install downward facing lighting  

o Map out potential locations for new footpaths to accommodate program needs 

o Meet with the city to discuss the feasibility of installing lighting and annual maintenance 

needs and costs; and new potential footpath map  

o Put in new footpaths and install lighting  

 Encourage appropriate use of the lot to discourage inappropriate use 

o Install dog poop bag receptacles  

o Install picnic tables, benches and a little free library  

o Hold a community meeting of groups that use outdoor space for events/programs to 

discuss their needs  

o Hold additional meetings with user groups, neighbors and other community partners to 

gather ideas and address concerns  

o Develop a site plan based on community discussion, program needs and reasonable 

funding levels for the next 5 years  

 

Progress 

1. FHL worked with Peter Briggs (Corvus Design, landscape architect) to develop a site analysis and 

concept ideas for addressing short-term objectives (see “Library Site – Bubble Diagram.pdf”).  

2. FHL met with Public Works Director Meyer and Police Chief Robl on May 4th to share our goals 

and objectives. Both were supportive of the project. 

3. FHL spoke to the Library Advisory Board on May 5th to share our goals and objectives, 

addressed their questions and gained their support. 

4. FHL met with Public Works staff on May 15 to discuss the site analysis and concept ideas and 

how we could collaborate.  

5. Public Works staff has been mowing to keep site lines open and installed two dog poop 

receptacles. 

6. FHL is recruiting volunteers for a work party on Sunday June 28th from 1 – 5 pm to remove 

stumps, cut back regrowth, work soil and plant grass and other low growing plants.    
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JUNE 3, 2015 

1 

 

Session 15-09, a Regular Meeting of the Homer Advisory Planning Commission was called to order by   
Chair Don Stead at 6:34 p.m. on June 3, 2015 at the City Hall Cowles Council Chambers located at 491 
E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska.  
 
 
PRESENT: COMMISSIONERS BOS, ERICKSON, HIGHLAND, BRADLEY, STEAD, STROOZAS,   
  AND VENUTI    
 
STAFF:  CITY PLANNER ABBOUD 
  DEPUTY CITY CLERK KRAUSE  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Stead requested a motion to approve the agenda. 
 
HIGHLAND/BRADLEY – SO MOVED. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE. YES. NON-OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
The public may speak to the Planning Commission regarding matters on the agenda that are not scheduled for 
public hearing or plat consideration.  (3 minute time limit).  

 
There was no public comment. 
 
RECONSIDERATION 
 
No items were scheduled for reconsideration. 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA 
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine and non-controversial by the Planning Commission and are 
approved in one motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Planning 
Commissioner or someone from the public, in which case the item will be moved to the regular agenda and 
considered in normal sequence.     

 
A. Approval of the minutes of May 20, 2015 meeting 
 
Chair Stead requested a motion to approve the consent agenda. 
 
HIGHLAND/BRADLEY – SO MOVED. 
 
There was no discussion. 
 
VOTE. YES. NON-OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
There were no presentations scheduled. 
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REPORTS 
A. Staff Report PL 15-39, City Planner’s Report 
 
City Planner Abboud provided a summary of his report. He noted the following: 
- City Council has introduced and scheduled for second reading on June 15th the ordinance to 
 purchase the 40 acre parcel containing tributaries to Bridge Creek. 
-  Due to Quorum issues Council meetings for June were rescheduled to June 15th and 29th 
-  The 1 acre requirement was removed. 
-  Submittal of the Site Development Standards recommendations will be submitted to Council if 
 the commission approves. 
-  Commissioner Stead and Highland have requested reappointment to the commission. 
-  The Hodnik Preliminary Plat was postponed at the May 26th Borough Plat meeting. 
- The Lease Committee is recommending negotiations for a 120 foot tower on the spit there were 
 two proposals received and until awarded the commission will have to wait to be advised who 
 will be awarded the contract.  
-  City Council had requested the commission expand the GC1 land in the city. This will be before 
 the commission at the June 17th meeting. Statistical analysis for review that included types of 
 structures and uses, land vacancy and availability will be provided as well as activities that are 
 unique to GC1. There is growth in trades, shop space, laydown yards. Commissioners were 
 asked to review their current zoning maps and Comprehensive Plans. 
  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Testimony limited to 3 minutes per speaker. The Commission conducts Public Hearings by hearing a staff report, 
presentation by the applicant, hearing public testimony and then acting on the Public Hearing items.  The 
Commission may question the public.  Once the public hearing is closed the Commission cannot hear additional 
comments on the topic.  The applicant is not held to the 3 minute time limit. 

 
A.  Staff Report PL 15-40, Petition to Vacate Willow Drive Right of Way at Mission Road 
 
Chair Stead introduced the item into the record. City Planner Abboud provided his report. Chair Stead 
opened the Public Hearing for testimony. 
 
Bonnie Boisvert, city resident, read a letter submitted by Attorney Michael Hough representing 
property owners within 500 feet of the action requested. Mr. Hough recommended against approval of 
the vacation of the subject right of way due for several reasons: the importance of being an alternate 
access for residents of Mission Road; water springs located under Willow Drive, location of utility 
easement and utility pedestals; there are covenants in place; there is not sufficient enough reason for 
eliminating the property rights of others including the public; the applicants are the only party 
benefitting from the action; this same action was before the commission and denied and there is no 
change in circumstances to warrant reconsideration of the denial; the appearance that the Borough 
may deny this second duplicative application since elimination of Willow Drive as a through street does 
not result or allow for equal or superior access being available. 
 
Nickolas Botkin, petitioner/applicant, testified that the request to vacate the right of way was 
attempted last year and there were concerns based on the conditions of the road at that time. Since 
then the city has improved the road and now there is opposition based on the potential for it to be an 
escape route. Mr. Botkin stated that he was requesting the vacation based on the extreme safety factor 
regarding limited to no sight lines at the intersection, icy road conditions during the winter 
compounded by the steepness of the road. He stated that Willow Drive is not suitable and should not 
be used as a shortcut or escape route. He also stated that there are several young children in that area 
and he has only noticed a few students and others use Willow Drive. Mr. Botkin stated that the city 
cannot maintain the road because of the steepness. 
 
Russ Humbyrd, resident, has lived on Willow Drive for 19 years stated that Mr. Botkin speeds down the 
road like a teenager and one of his neighbors is putting in a peony farm and there is talk about putting 
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in a B & B at the end of the road and if they are worried about traffic then you don’t go adding more 
businesses. He added that there are kids and Mr. Botkin needs to slow down and he will gain a 
substantial amount of land if this goes through there are covenants in place and they have filled some 
of the land down there. 
 
Irene Clark, resident, 26 years on Mission Road, she uses Willow Drive to walk to her mailbox safely. 
She has worked at the High School for 19 years and has had to use Willow Drive to get to work as she 
could not get up the hill to the intersection of East Hill and Mission, she recalled several times the 
school bus has had to use Willow Drive because the Mission Rd East Hill intersection was too icy and 
they could not get up there. Ms. Clark stated that Mission Road is a dead end and if they had a fire or 
earthquake and could not use the East Hill intersection they would be trapped, Willow Drive provides 
and alternate access to them. 
 
Ray Sinclair, resident, Willow Drive, concerned about the steepness of Willow and Mission, you cannot 
see oncoming traffic, he recognized that they were leaving a 40 foot public use easement which is good 
but he suggested leaving it like it is and putting in posts that would allow for and 8 foot emergency 
egress. He viewed that there is more traffic that uses that road than should and that limiting the use if 
it was a good idea. 
 
Malcolm Gaylord, resident, Willow Drive, owns several lots that would be in the proposed cul de sac 
and his concern is the safety, he cited concerns for the children and the limited sight distances for 
vehicles because of the steep intersection. 
 
Christopher Pryor, resident, has lived on Mission Road, commented on the safety issues regarding the 
steep bank or grade and there is very limited sight for traffic turning onto Willow and onto Mission 
Road from East Hill. The roads were not maintained over the winter and he could not access the 
intersection of Willow and Mission because of ice and how steep the road was. 
 
Kris Botkin, resident, has a son and expressed concern regarding the access and egress, safety for the 
kids, believed it to be a financially smart move since the city will not have to maintain this 
intersection. 
 
Kristen Wertanan, resident, Willow Drive for the past year, she has viewed residents have difficulty 
with the intersection of Mission Rd and Willow Drive. She has viewed numerous vehicles speeding down 
Willow who do not live on the road. 
 
Chair Stead closed the public hearing and requested a motion. 
 
HIGHLAND/BOS - MOVED TO ADOPT STAFF REPORT PL 15-40 VACATION OF ROW AND DEDICATION OF A 
PUBLIC USE EASEMENT OF THE NORTHERN 200’ OF WILLOW DRIVE. 
 
Staff responded to Commissioner Highland that there was nothing in code to prohibit another 
application to request vacation of the right of way since it never made it to the Borough the first time.  
 
Commissioner Bos informed the commission that he visited the area and reported the extreme 
steepness of the intersection and questioned how any vehicles without enough speed behind them 
would make it up that intersection and that it was extremely difficult to see approaching vehicles from 
East Hill. 
 
Commissioner Stroozas stated that when looking at health, safety and welfare which is what this boils 
down to and Commissioner Bos’ recent personal experience seems to substantiate those issues. 
 
Chair Stead declared opinionated comments from the audience as out of order. 
 
Chair Stead offered that the City has not provided a superior level of access and has denied access to 
this road by taking this action and has difficulty approving the vacation. 
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Commissioner Venuti agreed with the Chair and added a comment regarding the animosity displayed 
between the property owners present. 
 
Commissioner Highland requested if they can ask questions of the applicant, it was determined by the 
Chair with input from Staff that it was appropriate. 
 
Commissioner Highland asked if there was any way to make the intersection safer and remove the 
steepness to add visual sight lines and if that would be an option. 
 
Carey Meyer, Public Works Director/City Engineer, responded that the quick answer is yes, you can 
throw enough money at any problem to correct it. The long answer is the road design criteria required 
filling approximately 40 feet to create a flatter approach and creating a landing zone at that 
intersection, road grades are to be limited to less than 10% which would make access to the adjacent 
properties very difficult. How far down Mission Road that would have to go to extend would be several 
hundred feet and be extremely costly.  
Mr. Meyer stated that the grade is in excess of 15% on that road and the city tries to keep the grades at 
6% noting it can go higher but still requires the landing zone at the intersection, he further added that 
Mission Road did not make the appropriate grade either on the approach to East Hill Road.  
Mr. Meyer added that if the subdivision was brought before the commission today it would not be 
approved, it might have been the best designed at the time but not today. He further responded that 
the whole length of Mission Road has been improved and in his opinion was a really nice gravel road 
compared to last year. He will not certify it as bulletproof but believes that the approach to East Hill 
will be much more dependable. 
 
City Planner Abboud answered that if this action is approved by commission the borough may approve 
it, but if the commission did not approve the action he did not feel that it would get approval at the 
Borough level. 
 
Commissioner Highland inquired if Commissioner Stead and Venuti’s minds were changed by the safety 
concerns and responses from Mr. Meyer. Commissioner Stead responded it had not changed his 
opinions. Commissioner Venuti indicated his had not changed either. 
 
Mr. Meyer then answered questions from Commissioner Stroozas regarding: 
 
- if the vacation was approved and the pedestrian and emergency access provided it would provide 
some redress to the apparent safety issues however it may not accommodate all the fire vehicles 
 
Chair Stead reiterated that the intersection was still not superior access and he could not approve 
taking away a right of way for something that is not superior access even for an unsafe intersection, 
that the city has numerous unsafe intersections. 
 
Mr. Meyer provided further testimony on the vacation will solve the problems for the city in having to 
maintain that intersection since they cannot safely use the grader to maintain that road.  
 
Commissioner Erickson commented on the abnormal winters and recommended the property owners on 
Willow install signage stating Children at Play. 
 
Commissioner Bradley reported that she visited that area today and cannot understand why anyone 
would want to live up there in the winter, even if they have four wheel drive, she cannot picture how a 
school bus navigates Willow Drive. 
 
Commissioner Venuti reminded everyone that this leaves the commission and goes to City Council and 
if the party does not prevail they can appeal to the City Council too. So he believes that they are at a 
point they can take action on this now. 
 
Chair Stead called for a roll call vote. 
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VOTE. YES. STROOZAS, BOS, BRADLEY, HIGHLAND 
 NO. VENUTI, STEAD, ERICKSON 
 
Motion carried. 
 
B.  Staff Report PL 15-41, Towers Ordinance 
 
Chair Stead introduced the item into the record. City Planner Abboud reviewed his report and 
commented on the appropriate sized area needed for a fall zone for a 120 foot tower, he noted 
technical issues that were provided in the laydown materials and advised the commission that it 
deserved consideration and review by the commission. 
 
Commissioner Erickson recommended that they review the information with Staff comments at a 
worksession or next meeting.  
 
Commissioner Highland asked about the tower that is to be placed on the end of the spit. 
 
Commissioner Erickson left the table at 8:37 pm. Chair Stead called for a brief recess.  The meeting 
was called back to order at 7:44 pm. 
 
City Planner Abboud responding to Commissioner Highland that the City has made a recommendation 
for a proposal to construct a 120 foot tower on a lot but it is not 1:1, there are many issues,  but there 
has to be some way to be prudent. City Planner Abboud stated that they may not find the lot that 
works. It is not often, it is more that something falls off the tower than the tower falling, not sure how 
they would accomplish their goals with this. 
 
Commissioner Erickson noted that breaking points within the height of the tower to alleviate the need 
for the space can be incorporated into towers. City Planner Abboud stated that it would be good to talk 
with someone about that technology and there is a possibility that that may work. 
 
Chair Stead opened the public hearing for testimony.  
 
Josh Reynolds, Chief Information Officer for SpitwSpots, a fixed wireless provider located in Homer,  
our view after reading the submitted materials SpitwSpots comments and recommendations would be 
virtually the same. Mr. Reynolds stated that it was apparent that the commission’s intent is to establish 
and make concrete guidelines and terminology definitions and it has kind of veered into safety and 
visual impact. If you look at what this ordinance is going to make happen though is instead of having 
one – three towers in large height that makes visual impact and what this ordinance will do is create 
more towers, because they are not allowed to have the appropriate height or location due to the 1:1 
requirement. This ordinance will accomplish what the commission is actually trying to prevent. He 
stated that there is language that has already been brought down in Federal Court, SpitwSpots is not 
going to take it up with the City but if AT&T, Verizon or another larger company requires a tower they 
will take it up with the city and make it a legal battle. If you to make the limit 40 feet then you can 
only use the top of the tower therefore if you have 5 companies needing a tower instead of co-location 
you end up with 5 towers.  
 
Chair Stead closed the public hearing and asked for a motion to adopt Staff Report PL 15-41 
 
Commissioner Highland requested clarification on motion content. City Planner Abboud responded that 
she could move to adopt the Staff Report. 
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HIGHLAND/BOS - MOVED TO ADOPT STAFF REPORT PL 15-41, TOWERS ORDINANCE AND POSTPONE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING TO BRING IT BACK FOR REVISIONS. 
 
Discussion on requesting information from professionals in the field for the next review of the 
commission so that the commission can make informed decisions on possible revisions to the draft 
ordinance. Discussion also included seeing more than two comments on this and input from the industry 
professionals would be added value, he further stated that most of Homer is a view shed and he would 
like to see some requirement for blending into nature.  
 
Commissioner Highland asked about amending line 147-148 on page 33 of the packet to add “ice” since 
that would be a big deal here. Staff can add that note and make the motion at the next meeting. 
 
VOTE. YES. NON-OBJECTION. UANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
Chair Stead clarified that the Staff Report has been adopted and the commission will see the ordinance 
again with minor revisions at the next meeting, with more public comment. 
 
C.  Staff Report PL 15-42, Site Development Standards  
 
Chair Stead read the title into the record. City Planner Abboud read his report.  
 
Chair Stead opened the public hearing for comment. Seeing no public present the public hearing was 
closed. 
 
BOS/ERICKSON - MOVED TO ADOPT DRAFT ORDINANCE 15-08, SITE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND 
FORWARD TO CITY COUNCIL FOR PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
Commissioner Highland noted line 11, space needed between words “BY” and “AUGUST” and a comma 
was needed in line 32 after the word “months”. 
 
Commissioner Venuti, questioned line 36, requesting clarification for “other means” once clarification 
was provided then it was discussed that it does not allow time for the developer to re-vegetate since 
the ordinance states that it must be re-vegetated by native or other means. Commissioner Erickson 
pointed out the use of the word “that” in line 34 before nine month period provides definition of the 
period allowed for a cleared area to be re-vegetated. There was a brief discussion on the enforcement 
of the area being re-vegetated in  the 9 month time period.  
 
VOTE. YES. NON-OBJECTION. UNAIMOUS CONSENT 
 
Motion carried 
 
PLAT CONSIDERATION 
 
There were no plat considerations. 
   
PENDING BUSINESS 
A. Staff Report PL 15-43,  Waddell Way  
 
Chair Stead read the title into the record. City Planner Abboud reviewed his report and requested 
recommendations from the commission. 
 
ERICKSON/BOS - MOVED TO ADOPT OPTION A  
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Staff did not feel that it was appropriate at this time without public input. The commission was 
concerned that they wanted to discuss the project. 
 
Commissioner Erickson wished to withdraw her motion. Chair Stead did not think that was allowed at 
this point. The commission requested a assistance from Deputy City Clerk Krause who confirmed that 
the maker of the motion could withdraw the motion with consent. 
 
The motion was withdrawn by consensus of the Commission. There was brief discussion by the 
commission on what they wished to do. 
 
HIGHLAND/BOS - MOVED TO DISCUSS STAFF REPORT PL 15-43, WADDELL WAY ROAD PROJECT 
 
Discussion by the commission ensued on how to best proceed with the project. Points noted were: 
-  Support for Option A with concern expressed on HEA access such as short distance from the 
intersection of the new road and Heath Street 
- There is public support for the creation of this connecting roadway 
- Reduced curves, well lit intersections, preference for wide shoulders on each side of the road and a 
sidewalk 
- Incorporate right hand turn lanes at intersections with Lake Street 
- Recommended placing HEA access off of the proposed new road not Heath Street offer driveway 
permit as incentive  
- Naming of street to Goldmine Way or Lane or continue “Grubstake” across Heath Street 
- Bike design Level 4 if first choice, then Level 2 
 
VOTE. YES. NON-OBJECTION. UNANIMOUS CONSENT. 
 
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
There was none. 
 
INFORMATIONAL MATERIALS 
A. City Manager’s Report from May 26, 2015 City Council Meeting 
 
There was no discussion. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
Members of the audience may address the Commission on any subject.  (3 minute time limit)    

 
There was no audience present. 
 
COMMENTS OF STAFF 
 
City Planner Abboud commented on the dire financial condition of the city and that the planning staff 
will be reduced by one member, it is actually a position, based on seniority. The department can 
absorb quite a bit, there will be things that rise to the top and the department will focus on the most 
important things, the staff member luckily will be able to transfer over so they don’t get laid off. 
 
Deputy City Clerk Krause had no comments. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE COMMISSION 
 
Commissioner Highland spoke about the wind energy discussion she would like the commission to have 
and has brought the issue up with Mr. Abboud, they should be seeing something, maybe in the future. 
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Commissioner Bradley thanked the commission. 
 
Commissioner Erickson apologized for leaving the meeting abruptly, she is on call and will be getting 
another staff person and will not have to carry extra phones after this weekend. It was a good meeting, 
very interesting, hard to make those difficult decisions with two opposing viewpoints, lot of them 
friends, it was not easy. 
 
Commissioner Bos thought it was a good meeting tonight thought Commissioner Venuti’s comment to 
the audience was fantastic and perfect, he could not have said that; congratulations to Commissioner 
Highland and Chair Stead for signing up for a few more years. They seem to be cruising through things 
now and getting others done. He thanked the staff and all they do and will be doing short staffed. He 
noted that Fish and Games employees are being cut almost 60% and our state resources will have to 
manage with half the staff. 
 
Commissioner Venuti good meeting and the other day he drove up to a project up in the Bridge Creek 
Watershed and all their efforts in that area he noticed that the roads had had calcium chloride spread 
all over them so it appears they are going in the opposite direction. He was sure how they could solve 
that. He was going to have Jim Hornaday stop by with his ukulele but he was booked. Happy Birthday 
Chair Stead. 
 
Commissioner Stroozas wished Chair Stead Happy Birthday and announced the following items: the 4th 
of July parade will be on Saturday, July 4th, the Chamber is heading it up and the theme for this year 
is Pioneer Time - a Salute to Our Heritage. Rumor has it that Norman Lowell will be the Grand Marshal 
this year and he will have his family in the car. They are fully staffed at the Chamber now they hired 
Jan Knutsen as Chamber Visitor Information Center and Events Coordinator and the Garden Club of 
Homer will have their Annual Plant Sale on this Saturday, June 6th at 11:00 a.m. in the chamber parking 
lot. 
 
Chair Stead announced the next meeting date and worksession, he thought they did well today, 
appreciated all the support and well wishes. 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for WEDNESDAY, JUNE 17, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall 
Cowles Council Chambers. There is a worksession at 5:30 p.m. prior to the meeting.  
 
 
        
Renee Krause, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved:        

 

336



337



338



 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING(S)

339



340



CITY OF HOMER 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Ordinances 15-14, 15-15, 15-16, and 15-17 

 
A public hearing is scheduled for Monday, June 15, 2015 during a Special City Council 
Meeting.  The meeting begins at 6:00 p.m. in the Homer City Hall Cowles Council Chambers 
located at 491 E. Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska. 
 
Ordinance 15-14, 15-15, 15-16 and 15-17 internet address: 
http://www.cityofhomer-ak.gov/ordinances 
 
Ordinance 15-14, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and 
Appropriating a Commercial Vessel Passenger Tax Program Grant from the Kenai Peninsula 
Borough for FY 2014 in the Amount of $13,925.00 and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute 
the Appropriate Documents. City Manager.  
 
Ordinance 15-15, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Purchasing Tax 
Foreclosure Property, Kenai Peninsula Borough (KPB) Tax Parcel Number 173-052-19 and 
Designating its Use for Public Purpose and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
Appropriate Documents. City Manager.        
    
Ordinance 15-16, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending Homer City 
Code 3.05.012, Complete Financial Plan, to Exclude State Revenue Sharing From Income in 
the City Budget. Mayor. 
    
Ordinance 15-17, An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending Ordinance 
13-03(S)(2) to Permit the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas Distribution Special 
Assessment Bond Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and Authorizing an Amendment to 
the Loan Agreement Between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough Regarding the Bond. 
City Manager.  
 

►►♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦♦◄◄ 
 

All interested persons are welcomed to attend and give testimony. Written testimony 
received by the Clerk's Office prior to the meeting will be provided to Council. 
 
** Copies of proposed Ordinances, in entirety, are available for review at Homer City Clerk's 
Office.  Copies of the proposed Ordinances are available for review at City Hall, the Homer 
Public Library, and the City's homepage - http://clerk.ci.homer.ak.us.  Contact the Clerk's 
Office at City Hall if you have any questions. 235-3130, Email: clerk@ci.homer.ak.us or fax 235-
3143. 
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Jo Johnson, MMC, City Clerk 
Publish: Homer News: June 11, 2015  
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-14 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Accepting and Appropriating a 
Commercial Vessel Passenger Tax Program Grant from the Kenai Peninsula Borough for FY 
2014 in the Amount of $13,925.00 and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
Appropriate Documents.  
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting May 26, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. Kenai Peninsula Borough Grant Agreement 
 b. Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2014-19-50 w/backup memorandum and 

letters 
 
2. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 a. Kenai Peninsula Borough Grant Agreement 
 b. Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2014-19-50 w/backup memorandum and 

letters 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

         City Manager 3 
ORDINANCE 15-14 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
ACCEPTING AND APPROPRIATING A COMMERCIAL VESSEL 7 
PASSENGER TAX PROGRAM PASS THROUGH GRANT FROM THE 8 
KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2014 IN THE 9 
AMOUNT OF $13,925.00, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 10 
TO EXECUTE THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS. 11 
 12 

 WHEREAS, The State of Alaska collects revenues under the Commercial Vessel 13 
Passenger Tax Program and remits proceeds to boroughs which contain ports where cruise 14 
ships land; and 15 
 16 
 WHEREAS, The Kenai Peninsula Borough has received such funds for calendar year 17 
2014 and decided to pass those revenues through to Homer and Seward; the communities 18 
where cruise ships land and utilize local infrastructure and services; and 19 
 20 
 WHEREAS, The Borough Assembly adopted KPB Ordinance 2014-19-50 which 21 
appropriated funds and authorized a pass through grant to the City of Homer in the amount 22 
of $13,925.00. 23 
 24 
 WHEREAS, The grant funds must be used for port and harbor projects that benefit 25 
cruise ship passengers and the City has proposed to use the proceeds of this grant for 26 
passenger seating at the cruise ship passenger loading/staging area, and signage on trails 27 
around the harbor. 28 
 29 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 30 
 31 
 Section 1. The Homer City Council hereby accepts and appropriates a Commercial 32 
Vessel Passenger Tax Program pass through grant from the Kenai Peninsula Borough for 33 
calendar year 2014 in the amount of $13,925.00 as follows: 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
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Page 2 of 2 
ORDINANCE 15-14 
CITY OF HOMER 
 
Appropriation: 38 
 Account              Description                                       Amount  39 
 460-927              KPB CVPT Pass Through Grant for 2014           $13,925.00 40 
 41 
 Section 2. The City Manager is authorized to execute the appropriate documents. 42 
 43 
 Section 3.  This ordinance is a budget ordinance only, is not permanent, and shall not 44 
be codified. 45 
 46 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this _______ day of 47 
__________________, 2015. 48 
         49 
       CITY OF HOMER 50 
 51 
       ________________________ 52 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 53 
ATTEST: 54 
 55 
______________________________ 56 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 57 
 58 
YES:  59 
NO:  60 
ABSTAIN:  61 
ABSENT:  62 
 63 
First Reading: 64 
Public Hearing: 65 
Second Reading: 66 
Effective Date:   67 
 68 
Reviewed and approved as to form: 69 
 70 
________________________   ____________________________ 71 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager   Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 72 
 73 
Date: ___________________ _   Date: _______________________     74 
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 K E N A I  P E N I N S U L A  B O R O U G H 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Total Grant Funds Authorizing Ordinance KPB Account Number Total Grant Award 
$13,925.00 O2014-19-50 271.94910.15CPV.43011 $13,925.00 

Project Title 
Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Program 

Funding Source 
State 

Grantee Borough Contact Person 

Name 
City of Homer 

DUNS# 040171563 
EIN# 92-0030963 

Name 
Brenda Ahlberg, Community & Fiscal Projects Manager 

Mailing Address 
491 E. Pioneer Avenue 

Mailing Address 
144 N. Binkley Street 

City/State/Zip 
Homer AK 99603 

City/State/Zip 
Soldotna, AK 99669 

Contact Person 
Katie Koester, City Manager   

Email 
bahlberg@kpb.us 

Phone 
235-8121  

Fax 
235-3148  

Phone 
714-2153 

Fax 
714-2377 

 
The Kenai Peninsula Borough (hereinafter “Borough”) and City of Homer (hereinafter “Grantee”) agree as set forth herein. 

 
Section I:  The Borough shall pay Grantee for the performance of the project work under the terms outlined in this agreement. The 
amount of the payment is based upon project expenses incurred, which are authorized under this agreement. 
In no event shall the payment exceed $13,925.00. 
 
Section II:  The Grantee shall perform all of the work required by this agreement. 
 
Section III:  The work to be performed under this agreement begins 04/21/2015 and shall be completed no later than 06/30/2016. 
 
Section IV:  the agreement consists of this page and the following attachments: 
A. Scope of Work and Use of Funds 

Payment Method and Reporting Requirements 
Standard Provisions 

B. Financial/Progress Report 
C. Signature Authorization Form 
Certificate(s) of Insurance – provided by Grantee 

 
Section V:  The Community & Fiscal Projects Manager shall control the original, including any attachments filed. 

Grantee Borough 

Signature: Signature: 

Authorized Signatory Name and Title 
Katie Koester, City Manager 

Authorized Signatory Name and Title 
Mike Navarre, Mayor 

Date:  Date: 
 Attest: Johni Blankenship, Borough Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

 Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:  
 
 
Holly Montague, Deputy Borough Attorney 349
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FY15 KPB Grant Agreement 
City of Homer - Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Program CY2014 Funds 

Scope of Work and Use of Funds         

Project Description:  The purpose of this Borough Grant is to provide funding through the State 
of Alaska Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Program, hereinafter referred to as CPVT, to the 
City of Homer, hereinafter referred to as “Grantee.” The Grantee will use the funds for port and 
harbor projects impacted by cruise ship landings as governed by the Alaska Statutes (see “Source 
of Funds, page 2). 

Project Management            

1. The project will be managed by the Grantee.  
 
2. The City Manager, or such other person(s) as indicated on Attachment C, shall be designated 

as the representative to receive or make all communications regarding the performance or 
administration of this agreement. The Borough Community & Fiscal Projects Manager, or 
such other person(s) as designated by the Borough Mayor, is hereby designated as the 
representative of the Borough to receive or make all communications, payment requests, and 
reports regarding the performance or administration of this agreement, and who approves 
payment under this agreement. The parties may change their representative upon written 
notification to the other party. 

Key Contact Information           

Brenda Ahlberg, Community & Fiscal Projects 
714-2153 ∙ bahlberg@kpb.us 
Kenai Peninsula Borough 
144 N. Binkley St. 
Soldotna AK 99669 
 

Project Approval            
The Assembly approved and appropriated CPVT funds from calendar year 2014 in the amount of 
$13,925.00 to the Grantee through KPB Ordinance 2014-19-50. Grantee shall cite KPB account 
number 271.94910.15CPV.43011 in correspondence and reporting forms. 

Grant funds, or any earnings there from, may be spent only for the purposes of the grant project 
as described above. Any monies used for purposes not authorized by this agreement shall be 
refunded to the Borough immediately after such expenditures, with or without demand by the 
Borough. Request to amend the budget shall be submitted to the Community & Fiscal Projects 
Manager no less than ninety (90) days prior to performance period end date. 
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Project Performance Period           
Period:  The performance period shall be effective for the period commencing on April 21, 2015 
and ending on June 30, 2016. The Grantee must liquidate all obligations not later than June 30, 
2016. The Borough shall have no obligation for payment of services rendered by the Grantee 
which are not performed within this specified period. 

Request to Extend:  Any determination to extend the project performance period is solely at the 
discretion of the Borough. A request to amend the performance period should be submitted not 
later than ninety (90) days prior to the established end date. 
 
Funding             
 
1. Source of Funds: 

a. This project is being funded in full through the State of Alaska Department of 
Commerce, Community & Economic Development, “Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax 
Program” (CPVT) as governed by AS 43.52.200 - 43.52.295. 

b. All unexpended grant funds as of the end of the grant period must be returned to the 
Borough. Funds will be considered obligated if they have actually been expended or 
encumbered prior to the end date of the performance period. 
 

2. Condition for Receipt of Funds: The Grantee shall comply with AS 43.52.230 (b), federal 
legislation and court rulings that permit the use of these funds for port facilities, harbor 
infrastructure, and other services provided to the commercial passenger vessels and the 
passengers on board those vessels. 
 

3. Funds, or earnings there from, shall not be expended for the purposes of lobbying activities 
before the Borough Assembly, the Alaska State Legislature or U.S. Congress. 

 
 
Payment Terms and Reporting Requirements        
 
1. Payments: 

a. The Grantee will be compensated for up to and not exceeded $13,925.00 as determined 
by the State of Alaska for projects identified in the City of Homer’s request letter dated 
March 23, 2015 and approved by Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2014-19-50. 

b. Under no circumstances will funds be released to the Grantee unless all required 
reporting is current. 

 
2. Reporting Requirements: 

a. The Borough’s approval of the proposed expenditures shall not be construed to mean that 
the Borough is liable in any manner whatsoever if it is determined by an agency or court 
of competent jurisdiction that the city’s project does not satisfy the statutory criteria.  
 

b. Upon completion of the projects, but no later than thirty days thereafter the agreement 
end date, the Grantee shall provide a detailed written report to the Borough 
administration and assembly, explaining the use of these funds and their compliance with 
statutory requirements. 
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c. The Grantee agrees to refund any such amounts, including principal, interest, costs, fees, 
fines, or other charges, if it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction that the 
Grantee’s expenditure of the funds does not meet the statutory criteria. 

 
d. This agreement is not to be construed as entitlement to city receiving the future allocation 

of the Borough’s CPVT. 
 
e. Failure to meet the reporting requirements set forth in this agreement may result in the 

Borough withholding future allocations of the borough’s grant of CPVT funds. 
 

 
Mail OR Email Narrative and Fiscal Reports to: 

Brenda Ahlberg, Community & Fiscal Projects Manager 
Kenai Peninsula Borough 
144 N. Binkley St., Soldotna AK 99669 
(907) 714-2153 ∙ bahlberg@kpb.us 

 
 
Standards for Financial Management         
 
Financial Management System: 

1. The Grantee will maintain an accounting system and a set of accounting records that at a 
minimum, allows for the identification of individual projects by source of revenue and 
expenditures related to this project. 

2. All costs will be supported by source documentation. Grantee shall retain all contracts, 
invoices, materials, payrolls, personnel records, conditions of employment, and other data 
relating to matters covered by this agreement for a period of three years after the 
completion date of the agreement, or until final resolution of any audit findings, claims, or 
litigation related to the grant. 

3. The Grantee’s accounting records will be the basis for generating financial reports which 
must reflect accurate and complete data. In addition, financial records must be properly 
closed out at the end of the project period and all reports submitted in a timely manner. 
 

Procurement Standards           
 
The Grantee agrees to use a competitive process when making procurements for goods and 
services. These standards include but are not limited to the following: 

1. Grantee may use its own procurement policies provided that they adhere to the applicable 
standards; 

2. Grantee shall maintain a code of conduct which shall govern the performance of its 
officers, employees or agents in contracting with or expending grant funds; and 

3. All procurement transactions shall be conducted in a manner so as to provide for 
maximum open and free competition. 
 

Audits and Monitoring           
 
Audits: 

1. Provisions of 2 AAC 45.010 shall apply to a Borough Grantee receiving a grant of 
$100,000 or more from the Borough. An audit in compliance with 2 AAC 45.010 shall be 
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required on the performance of the grant conditions. Such audit report shall be due to the 
Borough no later than 30 days after the audit is completed, or 6 months after the 
expiration of the grant, whichever is sooner. A copy of a federal single audit report may 
be submitted to fulfill the requirements of this section. 

2. An annual audited financial statement, certified by a Certified Public Accountant, shall be 
submitted by a Borough Grantee receiving a grant less than $100,000 from the Borough. 
Such financial statement shall be due no later than 6 months from the termination of this 
agreement. 

3. Grantees receiving less than $100,000 from the Borough and receiving payments on a 
reimbursable basis are exempt from the audit requirements. 

 
Monitoring: 

1. The Grantee may receive an on-site review from the Borough, or its authorized 
representatives, in addition to reviews from State of Alaska personnel representing the 
AK Department of Commerce, Community & Economic Development. Monitoring staff 
may review project and financial activity relating to the terms of this agreement. Upon 
request, the Borough shall be given full and complete access to all information related to 
the performance period of this agreement to ensure compliance with the project activities 
and consistently applied costs. 

2. The Grantee shall provide the Borough and its authorized representatives all technical 
staff, assistance and information needed to enable the Borough or the State personnel to 
perform its monitoring function. This assistance from the Grantee includes, but is not 
limited to, information about the Grantee’s project operation, accounting and data-base 
systems. 
 

Program and Financial Deficiencies: 
1. Through audits, reviews, monitoring or other means, the Borough may find the Grantee 

to have program or financial deficiencies in the performance of the agreement. Such 
deficiencies may include, but are not limited to, the areas of accounting, financial 
controls, budgeting, and/or project compliance issues. If deficiencies are found, the 
Borough may require the Grantee to take corrective action and to submit a written 
corrective action plan to address identified deficiencies. All corrective action plans must 
be accepted by the Borough or its authorized representatives. Any corrective action must 
be satisfactorily completed within thirty days from the date of written notification. 

2. The Borough, in its sole discretion, may require the Grantee to submit periodic written 
verification that measures have been taken to implement the corrective action. If the 
Grantee fails to demonstrate its compliance with the approved corrective action plan 
within the time constraints set by the Borough, the Borough may, at its option, exercise 
its rights to terminate the agreement. The Borough may exercise any of the other rights 
and remedies available to it at law or in equity.  

 
Standard Provisions           
 
1. No Maintenance or Further Funding Responsibility:  By signing this agreement, Grantee 

certifies that it will not ask the Borough to operate or maintain its program, except as may be 
otherwise agreed to in writing signed by both parties. Grantee understands, acknowledges 
and agrees that the Borough shall not be responsible for any services, programs, 
maintenance, operations, or further funding to Grantee, or actions related thereto, and has 
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not, and will not assume any such responsibility, all of such to be the sole and exclusive 
responsibility of Grantee. 

 
2. Defense and Indemnification:  The Grantee shall indemnify, defend, save and hold the 

Borough, its elected and appointed officers, agents and employees, harmless from any and all 
claims, demands, suits, or liability of any nature, kind or character including costs, expenses, 
and attorneys fees resulting from Grantee or Grantee’s officers, agents, employees, partners, 
attorneys and suppliers’ performance or failure to perform this agreement in any way 
whatsoever. This defense and indemnification responsibility includes claims alleging acts or 
omissions by the Borough or its agents, which are said to have contributed to the losses, 
failure, violations, or damage. However, Grantee shall not be responsible for any damages or 
claim arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the Borough, its agents, or 
employees. Grantee shall also not be required to defend or indemnify the Borough for 
damage or loss that has been found to be attributed to an independent party directly 
responsible to the Borough under separate written contract. If any portion of this clause is 
voided by law or court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the clause shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

 
3. Insurance:  Grantee shall purchase at its own expense and maintain in force at all times 

during the term of this agreement Commercial General Liability and Automobile Insurance. 
Such policies are to include bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage with respect 
to the property and the activities conducted by Grantee in which coverage shall not be less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence or such higher coverage as specified by the Borough. The 
policy shall name the Borough as an additional insured. Borough approval shall be required 
for the amount of any deductible or self-insured retention. 

 
Additionally, Grantee shall purchase and maintain at its own expense worker’s compensation 
and employers liability insurance for all employees per Alaska State Statutes who are 
performing work under this agreement. 

 
Proof of Insurance:  Grantee shall deliver to the Borough certificates of insurance 
along with Grantee’s signature on this agreement.  The certificates shall indicate the 
Borough as an additional insured.   This insurance shall be primary and exclusive of 
any other insurance by the Borough.  Failure to provide the certificate of insurance 
required by this section, or a lapse in coverage, is a material breach of the terms of 
this agreement entitling the Borough to terminate this agreement. 

 
4. Relationship of Parties:  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed or construed by the 

parties hereto, nor by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, or of 
partnership, or of joint venture between the parties hereto, it being understood and agreed 
that neither method of computation of payment nor any other provision contained herein, nor 
any acts of the parties hereto, shall be deemed to create any relationship between the parties 
hereto other than the relationship of Borough and independent Grantee of funds. 

 
5. No Exclusive Service; No Property Interest:  The Grantee understands, acknowledges and 

agrees that all supplies, materials and equipment purchased with the grant funds shall be and 
shall remain the property of the Grantee, subject to all applicable State statutes and Federal 
regulations. 
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6. Termination.  The Borough may terminate this agreement, by written notice, when it is in 
the best interest of the Borough. In the event that Grantee does not perform the tasks as 
required in this agreement, or does not submit any required reports for verification of 
performance, the Borough may exercise its option to terminate this agreement.   

 
7. Permits, Taxes and Adherence to Local, State, and Federal Laws:  Signing of this 

agreement does not, in any manner, excuse Grantee from complying with any other law, 
Alaska state statute or regulation, or Borough ordinance or regulation. Grantee must in all 
cases adhere to all local, state and federal laws and regulations that pertain to public funds, to 
the services performed pursuant to this agreement, and related to wages, taxes, social 
security, workers compensation, nondiscrimination, licenses, permits, and registration 
requirements. Grantee shall pay all taxes pertaining to its performance under this agreement, 
and shall acquire and maintain in good standing all permits, licenses and other entitlements 
necessary to the performance under this agreement. 

 
8. Jurisdiction; Choice of Law:  Any civil action arising from this agreement shall be brought 

in the superior court for the Third Judicial District of the State of Alaska at Kenai. The law of 
the State of Alaska shall govern the rights and obligations of the parties. 

 
9. Non-Waiver:  The failure of the Borough at any time to enforce a provision of this 

agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the 
validity of this agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the Borough thereafter to 
enforce each and every protection hereof. No conditions or provisions of this grant agreement 
can be waived unless approved by the Borough in writing. Waiver by the Borough of any 
non-compliance by Grantee, or excusing or extending performance, shall not be considered a 
waiver of any other rights of the Borough or a waiver of the right to terminate in the event of 
future breaches. 

 
10. No Third-Party Beneficiary:  This agreement is intended solely for the benefit of each party 

hereto. Nothing contained herein shall be construed or deemed to confer any benefit or right 
upon any third party. 

 
11. Environmental Requirements:  The Grantee must comply with all environmental 

standards, to include those prescribed under State of Alaska and Federal statutes and 
Executive Orders.  

 
12. Entire Agreement:  This agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between 

the Borough and Grantee, and supersedes all prior, inconsistent negotiations, representations 
or agreements, whether written or oral. This agreement may be amended only by written 
instrument signed by both the Borough and Grantee.
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FROM:   City of Homer     Contract Amount:  $13,925.00 
KPB ACCOUNT: 271.94910.15CPV.43011  Ending: 06/30/2016   
 

 Financial / Progress Report 
Submit Report To: Project Name: Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Program 

Brenda Ahlberg Date:  

Community & Fiscal Projects Manager Report No.:  

Kenai Peninsula Borough Quarter From:  

144 N. Binkley St., Soldotna, AK 99669 To:  

 
FINANCIAL REPORT: 
 

Cost Category Authorized 
Budget

Expenditures 
from Last 

Report

Expenditures 
This Period

Total 
Expenditures to 

Date
Balance of Funds

-$                 
Personnel -                     -                       -$                     
Travel -                     -                       -                        -$                     
Contractual -                     -                       -                        -$                     
Supplies 13,925.00$      -                     -                       -                        13,925.00$          
Other -                     -                       -                        -$                     

-                     -                       -                        -$                     
TOTALS 13,925.00$      -                     -$                     -$                      13,925.00$          

Advance funding 13,925.00$          

Expenditures applied to advance 13,925.00$          

Remaining Advance Balance -$                     

PROGRESS REPORT:  Describe activities that have occurred during this reporting period.  Describe any 
challenges you may have experienced, any foreseen problems, and/or any special requests.  Attach additional pages. 

Reference: City of Homer’s request letter dated March 23, 2015 and approved by Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2014-19-50. 

 
Grantee Certification: I certify that the above information is true and correct, and that expenditures have been 
made for the purpose of, and in accordance with, applicable grant agreement terms and conditions. 
 
Signature:  __________________________________ Date:        
 
Printed Name and Title:            

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH   
144 North Binkley Street ● Soldotna, Alaska 99669-7599 
PHONE:  (907) 714-2153 ● FAX:  (907) 714-2377 
EMAIL:  bahlberg@kpb.us 
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Signature Authorization Form 

 

Grant Program: Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Program - State Pass Thru Funding 

Agreement Number: 271.94910.15CPV.43011 Effective Date 04/21/2015 

Name of Grantee 

DUNS# and Tax ID# 

City of Homer 

DUNS # 040171563      TAX ID# 92-0030963 

Point of Contact Information 
Program Manager, Chief Financial Officer, and Signatory Official must be three (3) different individuals. 

 Primary and Alternate Signatories: Grant Award/Amendments and Grant Reports 

Program Manager  Name 
Individual managing the project Brian Hawkins 

PM Address  491 E. Pioneer Ave., Homer, AK 99603 

PM  Telephone 907-235-3160 

PM  Fax  907-235-3152 

PM  Email   bhawkins@ci.homer.ak.us 

Chief Financial Officer Name 
Authorized to certify financial 
expenditures and records 

John Li  

CFO Address  491 E. Pioneer Ave. Homer, AK 99603 

CFO Telephone  907-235-8121  

CFO Fax 907-235-3140  

CFO Email  jli@ci.homer.ak.us  

Signatory Official  Name 
City Manager Katie Koester  

Signatory Official Address  491 E. Pioneer Ave., Homer AK 99603  

Signatory Official Telephone  907-235-8121  

Signatory Official Fax 907-235-3140  

Signatory Official Email  kkoester@ci.homer.ak.us  

Signatures required by each of the above-named individuals. 

Project Manager  

Signature and Date 

Chief Financial Officer   

Signature and Date 

Signatory Official   

Signature and Date 
Attachment C - CY2014 Commercial Passenger Vessel Tax Revenue Program 
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Introduced by: 

Date: 

Hearing: 

ACtion: 

Vote·: 

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 
ORDINANCE 2014-19-50 

Mayor 

04/07/15 

04/21/15 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING .COMMERCIAL PASSENGE~ VESSEL TAX 
PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA IN THE.AMOUNT OF 

$361,657.50 AND ALLOCATING $347,732.50 TO THE CITY OF SEWARD AND 
$13,925.00 TO THE CITY OF HOME~ 

WHEREAS, irt the August 22, 2006 state. election, the voters approved the initiative in Ballot 
Measure 2, enacting AS 43.52.200 - 43.52.295, which imposed a tax on travel 
·aboard certain cruise ships travelling in Alasl):a waters; and 

WHEREAS, the Alaska legislature has authorized the sharing of Commercial Passenger Vessel 
· (CPV) excise tax collections with eligible ports of call in the State; and 

WHEREAS, CPV excise tax collections are derived from taxes imposed on cruise ship 
passengers; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Seward· and City of Homer are eligible ports of call for receiving CPV 
funds; and 

WHEREAS, when the eligible ports of call are cities located in a ·borough then the cities and 
the borough each receive $2.50 for each passenger; and 

WHEREAS, the total amount received by the borough from the State of Alaska for the 2014 
·calendar CPV programs was $361,657.50;-and 

·WHEREAS, the City of Seward and City of Homer have requested that funds received by the 
b.orough that are derived from cruise ship passengers in each city be appropriated 
to each city for port improvement projects; and 

WHEREAS, the intended use of these funds by the cities of Seward and Homer will comply 
with As· 43.52.230(b), federal legislation and court rulings that permit the use of 
these funds for port facilities, harbor infrastructure, and other services provided to 
the co111tilercial passenger vessels and the passengers on board those vessels; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE· KENAI· 
PENINSULA BOROUGH: 

Kenai Peninsula Borough, Alaska New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] Ordinance 2014-19-50 
Page 1 of2 
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SECTION 1. That the mayor is authorized to execute grant agreements and any other 
docum~nts deemed necessary to expend the funds and to fulfill the intents and. 
purposes of this nrdi)1ance.' · 

SECTION 2. That $361,657.50 received from the State of Alaska in FY201~ for the 
commercial .passenger vessel excise tax collection program be appropriated from . 
the ·miscellaneous -grant fund balance to- account 271.94910.15CPV.43011 
contract services, for.payment to the City of Seward in the amount of$347,732.50 
and to the City of·Bomer in the amount of $13,925.00 to be used solely for port 
facilities, harbor infrastructure, and other ·services provided to the commercial 
passenger vessels and the. passengers on board those vessels in accbrdance with 
AS 41.52.230(b ). 

SECTION 3. This ordinance shall become effective i11111iediately upon enactment. 

ENACTED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH THIS ~ 
DAY OF* 2015. 

Dale Bagley, Assembly President 
ATTEST: 

Johni Blankenship, MMC, Borough Clerk 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

Ordimmce 2014-19:-50 N~w Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] kenai Peninsu,la Borough~ Alaska 
Page 2 of2 
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KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 
Grant Management 

MEMORANDUM 

TO_: Dale Bagley, Assembly President 
Members of the Kenai Pe~u1a Assembly 

THRU: Mike Navarre, Mayor f'/ 
Craig Chapman, Finance Director e ~ 

FROM: Brenda Ahlberg, Co~cal Projects Manager 

DATE: March 26,2015 

MIKE NAVARRE 
BOROUGH MAYOR 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2014-19- _§Q__, An Ordinance Appropriating Commercial Passenger 
Vessel Tax Proceeds Received from the State of Alaska in the Amount of 
$361,657.50 and allocating $347,732.50 to the City of Seward and $13,925.00 to 
the City of Homer 

In the August 22, 2006 election the Alaska voters approved the initiative in Ballot Measure No. 
2, which imposed a tax on passengers travelling for at least 72 hours aboard a vessel with 250 or 
more berths, that anchors or moors- in Alaska waters with the intent to allow passengers to 
disembark. The initiative enacted statutes AS 43.52.200- AS 43.52.295 that provide for the levy 
and collection of this tax and the disposition of the proceeds. The taxes are deposited into a state 
fund called the Commercial Passenger Vessel ( CPV) tax account. A portion of the proceeds are 
disbursed to the first seven ports of call each year. If ports of call are located in a city within a 
borough, $2.50 per passenger is distributed to the city and to the borough in which the city is 
located. Both the City of Seward and the City of Homer have qualified for these funds, and the 
borough has accordingly received proceeds from the CPV account. 

For the calendar years 2007 through 2013 the tax proceeds were awarded to the City of Seward 
and City of Homer by way of grant agreements. The use of funds must comply with State of 
Alaska Department of Commerce; Community & Economic Development, "Commercial Vessel 
Passenger Tax Program" as governed by AS 43.52.200 - 43.52.295; specifically, AS 43.52.230 
(b), "shall use the funds for port facilities, harbor infrastructure, and other services provided to 
the commercial passenger vessels and the passengers on board those vessels." 

This ordinance will approve the 2014 calendar year 
appropriations to be allocated to the City of Seward 
and the City of Homer, which will be executed by 
way of grant agreements. Brenda Ahlberg, the 
Community & Fiscal Projects Manager, shall 
oversee the program. 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
FUNDS/ACCOUNT VERIFIED 

Acct. No. ---=2:..:....7....:....:.1.=-94..:...:9;_:_1 0::...:.·...:...:15~C:..:....P...;:..V..:....:.4..:..;30:....:1'-'-1 ___ _ 

Amount _ ___,.$:.=36=-1.......,.6:...:5..:....:7.=50:......--_____ _ 

By: ------IIP1'==-tr----
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-15 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Purchasing Tax Foreclosure Property, 
Kenai Peninsula Borough (KPB) Tax Parcel Number 173-052-19, and Designating Its Use for 
Public Purpose and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Appropriate Documents. 
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting May 26, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. Letters to Kenai Peninsula Borough Re: Conveyance of Tax Foreclosure Parcel 
 b. Kenai Peninsula Borough Land Description and Value History 
 c. Map of KPB Parcel No. 173-052-19 
 
2. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 a. Letters to Kenai Peninsula Borough Re: Conveyance of Tax Foreclosure Parcel 
 b. Kenai Peninsula Borough Land Description and Value History 
 c. Map of KPB Parcel No. 173-052-19 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager 3 
ORDINANCE 15-15 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
PURCHASING TAX FORECLOSURE PROPERTY, KENAI PENINSULA 7 
BOROUGH (KPB) TAX PARCEL NUMBER 17305219, AND 8 
DESIGNATING ITS USE FOR PUBLIC PURPOSE AND AUTHORIZING 9 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE APPROPRIATE 10 
DOCUMENTS. 11 

 12 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Homer City Code 18.06.010 Real property acquisitions, 13 
authority. a. The City may acquire, own and hold real property within or outside the City 14 
boundaries by any lawful means or conveyance, and may exercise all rights and powers in the 15 
acquisition, ownership and holding of real property as if the City were a private person; and  16 
 17 
 WHEREAS, Kenai Peninsula Borough Land Management has prepared a preliminary 18 
list of foreclosed parcels to be sold in the Borough’s 2015 Tax Foreclosure Auction; and 19 
 20 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to AS 29.45.450 Deed to Borough or City, a city may request 21 
conveyance of tax foreclosed property when the city has an immediate need for that property 22 
and property may be deeded to the City subject to taxes owed through judgment date, 23 
interest, and any out of pocket cost incurred by the KPB through the date of the actual 24 
payment; and 25 

 26 
WHEREAS, There is a 40-acre parcel in the Bridge Creek Watershed, KPB tax parcel 27 

number 17305219, that would serve the public by protecting the integrity of Homer’s water 28 
source; and 29 
 30 

WHEREAS, The parcel may be deeded to the City of Homer upon payment of the taxes 31 
owed to the Borough with accrued interest, and out of pocket cost incurred by the Borough  32 
upon KPB tax parcel number 17305219 in the amount of $2,805.21; and  33 
 34 

WHEREAS, Upon receipt of $2,805.21 the Borough will record a quitclaim to convey 35 
title to the City; and  36 
    37 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Homer City Code 18.06.030, 18.06.042, and 38 
18.06.044 Real property acquisitions, designation for public use, and authorization for the 39 
appropriation, KPB tax parcel number 17305219 shall be retained for a public purpose and 40 
classified as “undesignated”.  41 
 42 
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ORDINANCE 15-15 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 43 
 44 
 Section 1. The City of Homer hereby appropriates funds as follows: 45 
 46 
Expenditure                                     Description                                  Amount 47 
150-0392-5904                          Purchase / KPB Parcel  $2,805.21 48 
     Number 17305219   49 
 50 
 Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the appropriate 51 
documents for the purchase of property described as follows: 52 
 53 
Record Owner  
 

KPB Tax Parcel 
Number Legal Description Borough Assessed 

Property Value Acreage 

Kenai Peninsula 
Borough 17305219 T 6S R 13W SEC 4 Seward 

Meridian HM SW1/4 NW1/4 $47,200.00 40 
acres 

 54 
 Section 3. This is a budget amendment ordinance, is temporary in nature, and shall 55 
not be codified. 56 
 57 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA this _______ day of 58 
______________, 2015. 59 
 60 
       CITY OF HOMER 61 
 62 
 63 
       _____________________  64 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 65 
 66 
ATTEST: 67 
 68 
 69 
______________________________  70 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 71 
 72 
 73 
 74 
 75 
YES: 76 
NO:  77 
ABSTAIN:  78 
ABSENT:  79 
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ORDINANCE 15-15 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

First Reading:  80 
Public Hearing:  81 
Second Reading:  82 
Effective Date:  83 
 84 
 85 
Reviewed and approved as to form: 86 
 87 
_____________________________   ____________________________ 88 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager   Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 89 
 90 
Date: ________________________  Date: _______________________ 91 
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MIKE NAVARRE 
BOROUGH MAYOR 

  
May 14, 2015 
 
Katie Koester, City Manager 
City of Homer, Alaska 
491 East Pioneer Ave.    
Homer AK 99603 
 
Ms. Koester, 
 
Subject: Conveyance of Tax Foreclosure Parcel ID No. 17305219 
 
The borough has received your letter of May 12, 2015 and your application (attached) 
requesting  the conveyance of subject parcel to the City of Homer pursuant to A.S. 
29.45.460.  This parcel may be deeded to the city upon payment of the taxes owed to 
the Borough with accrued interest but without penalty, and any out of pocket cost 
incurred by the Borough.  Upon receipt of this payment the Borough will have a 
quitclaim recorded to convey title to the city.  After receiving title, the city, by ordinance 
must meet the obligations of A.S. 29.45.460 with respect to retention for a public 
purpose, or sale of the tax foreclosed property, as applicable. 
 
Amount Due: 
 
$2,805.21 if received by June 15, 2015 
 
Please send the check to my attention and payable to the Kenai Peninsula 
Borough.  If you have any questions please contact me.  
 

Ph: (907) 714-2211  *  Fax: (907) 714-2378  *  E-mail: dconetta@kpb.us 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Daniel A. Conetta, SR/WA 
Land Management Agent 

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 
144 North Binkley St., Soldotna, Alaska  99669-7520 
1-800-478-4441 ● 907-714-2205 ● Fax 907-714-2378 

www.kpb.us/land ● lmweb@kpb.us 
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May 19 2015 5:33PM

Kenai Peninsula Borough
Assessing Department
144 N. Binkley Street
Soldotna AK 99669

General Information

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH

144 N BINKLEY ST

SOLDOTNA, AK 99669-7520

Property ID 17305219

Address  

Document / Book Page 20140012340

Acreage 40.0000

Owners
Property ID Display Name Address

17305219 KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 144 N BINKLEY ST

Legal Description
Description

T 6S R 13W SEC 4 Seward Meridian HM SW1/4 NW1/4

Value History

Year Reason
Assessed

Land Structures Total
2015 Main Roll Certification $47,200 $0 $47,200
2014 Main Roll Certification $47,200 $0 $47,200
2013 Main Roll Certification $47,200 $0 $47,200
2012 Main Roll Certification $47,200 $0 $47,200
2011 Main Roll Certification $67,700 $0 $67,700
2010 Main Roll Certification $67,700 $0 $67,700
2009 Main Roll Certification $67,700 $0 $67,700
2008 Main Roll Certification $64,200 $0 $64,200
2007 Main Roll Certification $49,400 $0 $49,400
2006 Main Roll Certification $49,400 $0 $49,400
2005 Main Roll Certification $49,400 $0 $49,400
2004 Main Roll Certification $50,600 $0 $50,600
2003 Main Roll Certification $50,600 $0 $50,600
2002 Main Roll Certification $50,600 $0 $50,600
2001 Main Roll Certification $50,600 $0 $50,600

Land Details
Primary Use Land Type Acres Eff Frontage Eff Depth Asd Value

  Rural F 20.0000 0.00 0.00 $42,200
  Rural G 20.0000 0.00 0.00 $5,000
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-16 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending Homer City Code 3.05.012, 
Complete Financial Plan, to Exclude State Revenue Sharing From Income in the City Budget. 
 
Sponsor: Mayor 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting May 26, 2015 Introduction 
 
2. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

Mayor 3 
ORDINANCE 15-16 4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
AMENDING HOMER CITY CODE 3.05.012, COMPLETE FINANCIAL 7 
PLAN, TO EXCLUDE STATE REVENUE SHARING FROM INCOME IN 8 
THE CITY BUDGET. 9 

 10 
THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 11 

 12 
Section 1.  Homer City Code 3.05.012, Complete financial plan, is amended to read as 13 

follows: 14 
 15 

3.05.012 Complete financial plan. 16 
a. The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all City funds and activities for 17 

the next fiscal year. In organizing the budget, the City Manager shall utilize the most feasible 18 
combination of expenditure classification by fund, organizational unit, program, purpose or 19 
activity and object. 20 

b. The budget shall begin with a clear general summary of its contents, which 21 
summary shall show principal sources of anticipated revenue, stating separately the amount 22 
to be raised by property taxes, and by department the kinds of expenditures in such a manner 23 
as to present to the public a clear and simple estimate of budget detail. 24 

c. The budget shall show in detail all estimated income, including the proposed 25 
property tax levy, but shall exclude state revenue sharing, which will be appropriated when 26 
received.  The budget also shall show in detail and all proposed expenditures, including debt 27 
service, for the ensuing fiscal year. 28 

d. The budget shall be prepared on a modified accrual basis and subsequent reporting 29 
an auditing shall reflect this basis of goods and services are received, and revenues are 30 
recorded when payment is received; except for material or available revenue which should be 31 
accrued to reflect properly the taxes levied and the revenues earned. 32 

e. The budget shall include in separate sections: 33 
1. Proposed expenditures for current operations during the ensuing fiscal year 34 

detailed by offices, departments and agencies in terms of their respective work 35 
programs, and the method of financing such expenditures; 36 

2. Anticipated net surplus or deficit (fund balance) for the ensuing fiscal year of 37 
each enterprise fund owned or operated by the City and the proposed method of its 38 
disposition; subsidiary budgets for each such enterprise fund, giving detailed income 39 
and expenditures information, shall be presented in the budget; 40 

3. Proposed capital budget will be presented under a separate document. 41 
Expenditures during the ensuing fiscal year, detailed by offices, departments and 42 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 
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Page 2 of 3 
ORDINANCE 15-16 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

agencies, when practicable, and the proposed method of financing each such capital 43 
expenditure. 44 
f. Comparative data for the previous and current fiscal years shall be provided in a 45 

format for ease of comparison with the proposed revenues and expenditures. 46 
g. Data for the current fiscal year shall include the total of the amounts actually 47 

received or encumbered to the time of preparing the budget, plus anticipated receipts and 48 
expenditures for the remainder of the current year 49 
 50 

Section 2.  This Ordinance is of a permanent and general character and shall be 51 
included in the City Code.  52 
 53 

ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOMER, ALASKA, this _____ day of 54 
_______________, 2015. 55 

 56 
CITY OF HOMER 57 

 58 
 59 
______________________ 60 
MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 61 

 62 
ATTEST: 63 
 64 
 65 
____________________________ 66 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 67 
 68 
 69 
 70 
 71 
AYES: 72 
NOES: 73 
ABSTAIN: 74 
ABSENT: 75 
 76 
First Reading: 77 
Public Reading: 78 
Second Reading: 79 
Effective Date: 80 
 81 
 82 
 83 
 84 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 
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ORDINANCE 15-16 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

Reviewed and approved as to form: 85 
 86 
 87 
              88 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager    Thomas F. Klinkner, City Attorney 89 
 90 
Date: _________________________    Date: _________________________ 91 
 92 

[Added language underlined.  Deleted language stricken through.] 
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ORDINANCE REFERENCE SHEET 
  2015 ORDINANCE 

ORDINANCE 15-17 
 

An Ordinance of the City Council of Homer, Alaska, Amending Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) to Permit 
the City to Prepay Principal of the Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond 
Authorized by Ordinance 13-02(S)(2), and Authorizing an Amendment to the Loan Agreement 
Between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough Regarding the Bond.  
 
Sponsor: City Manager 
 
1. City Council Regular Meeting May 26, 2015 Introduction 
 
 a. Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) 
 b. Resolution 15-017 
 
2. City Council Special Meeting June 15, 2015 Public Hearing and Second Reading 
 
 a. Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) 
 b. Resolution 15-017 
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 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager 3 
 ORDINANCE 15-17  4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-03(S)(2) TO PERMIT THE CITY TO 7 
PREPAY PRINCIPAL OF THE NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION 8 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BOND AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE 13-9 
02(S)(2), AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE LOAN 10 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE KENAI PENINSULA 11 
BOROUGH REGARDING THE BOND.  12 

 13 
WHEREAS, By Ordinance 13-03(S)(2), adopted February 25, 2013, the City authorized 14 

the issuance of a Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond (“Bond”) in the principal 15 
amount of not to exceed $12,700,000, and the execution and delivery of a Loan Agreement 16 
between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough regarding the Bond; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, By Resolution 15-017, adopted March 23, 2015 the City confirmed the 19 
assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment District 20 
(“District”); and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, On April 3, 2015, the Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case 23 
No. 3HO-13-00038CI, ruled that the City’s method of assessing condominium units in the 24 
District was unlawful, and this decision has been stayed pending review by the Alaska 25 
Supreme Court; and  26 
 27 

WHEREAS, The Council may consider whether to (i) waive the assessment of certain 28 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system, and (ii) 29 
recognize subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots under common ownership by 30 
assessing only the reduced number of lots; and 31 
 32 

WHEREAS, The City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough have agreed that the City should 33 
prepay the principal of the Bond in an amount equal to any reduction in the amount of 34 
assessments in the District that results from (i) any requirement that the City reassess 35 
condominium units in the District, or (ii) any decision by the Council to waive the assessment 36 
of properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system or to 37 
assess only a reduced number of contiguous lots in common ownership resulting from 38 
resubdivision.  39 

 40 
 41 

 42 
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ORDINANCE 15-17 
CITY OF HOMER 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 43 
 44 

Section 1.  Section 14 of Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) is amended to read as follows (added 45 
language is underlined): 46 
 47 

Section 14 – Reserve Fund.  48 
(a) A special fund of the City designated the "City of Homer Natural 49 

Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond Reserve Fund" is hereby created for 50 
the purpose of paying and securing the payment of the Bond, and is hereby 51 
pledged for that purpose.  The Reserve Fund shall be held separate and apart 52 
from all other funds and accounts of the City and shall be a trust fund for the 53 
Registered Owner of the Bond.  There shall be paid into the Reserve Fund: 54 

(1) That part of the proceeds of the Bond which is 55 
designated for deposit in the Reserve Fund by the Loan Agreement; and 56 

(2) All monies received from ENSTAR as refunds of main 57 
extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new 58 
customers connecting to the Improvement, which shall be held in a 59 
separate subaccount in the Reserve Fund; and 60 

(3) Any Sinking Fund and Guaranty Fund balances remaining 61 
after the discharge of the Bond. 62 
(b) Until the Bond has been discharged, the funds in the Reserve 63 

Fund may be used only to pay the difference between the amount of principal 64 
and interest due on the Bond and the amount in the Sinking Fund that is 65 
available to pay that principal and interest; provided, (i) monies in the Reserve 66 
fund that were received from ENSTAR as refunds of main extension advances 67 
or free main allowance arising out of new customers connecting to the 68 
Improvement may be used as provided in subsection (d) of this section, and 69 
(ii) if the Finance Director determines that the amount of funds available in the 70 
Reserve Fund exceeds the amount of the next annual installment of principal 71 
and interest due on the Bond, the Finance Director may apply such excess to a 72 
prepayment of the Bond. 73 

(c) At such time as the Finance Director determines that the sum of 74 
the amounts in the Reserve Fund, the Guaranty Fund and the Sinking Fund 75 
equals or exceeds the amount required to (i) discharge the Bond, (ii) pay all 76 
refunds of assessments required upon discharge of the Bond, and (iii) pay any 77 
other amounts that may be owing on the Bond, the Finance Director shall 78 
cause such payment to be made and the Bond to be discharged. 79 

(d) Monies in the Reserve fund that were received from ENSTAR as 80 
refunds of main extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new 81 
customers connecting to the Improvement may be used as follows: 82 

(1) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 83 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments against 84 
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condominium units in the District pursuant to the decision of the 85 
Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case No. 3HO-13-86 
00038CI, or a decision of the Alaska Supreme Court on review of the 87 
Superior Court’s decision, provided that immediately following such a 88 
prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not be less than the 89 
Reserve Requirement. 90 

(2) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 91 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments in the District 92 
due to action of the City either (i) waiving the assessment of certain 93 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas 94 
distribution system, or (ii) recognizing subdivisions reducing the 95 
number of contiguous lots under common ownership by assessing only 96 
the reduced number of lots, provided that immediately following such a 97 
prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not be less than the 98 
Reserve Requirement. 99 

 100 
Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the First Amendment to 101 

Loan Agreement, in substantially the form presented at this meeting, but with such changes, 102 
modifications, additions and deletions therein as she shall deem necessary, desirable or 103 
appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and 104 
all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said 105 
document now before this meeting. 106 
 107 

Section 3.  This Ordinance is not permanent in nature, and shall not be codified. 108 
 109 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 110 
______________, 2015. 111 
 112 
       CITY OF HOMER 113 
 114 
 115 

____________________ 116 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  117 
 118 
ATTEST:  119 
 120 
 121 
____________________________ 122 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  123 
 124 
 125 
 126 
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YES:  127 
NO:  128 
ABSTAIN:  129 
ABSENT:  130 
 131 
 132 
First Reading: 133 
Public Hearing: 134 
Second Reading: 135 
Effective Date:  136 
 137 
  138 
 139 
Reviewed and approved as to form. 140 
 141 
    142 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager  Thomas Klinkner, City Attorney 143 
 144 
Date:    Date:   145 
 146 
 147 
Fiscal Note: NA 148 
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 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager 3 
 ORDINANCE 15-17(S)  4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, 6 
AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-03(S)(2) TO PERMIT THE CITY TO 7 
PREPAY PRINCIPAL OF THE NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION 8 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BOND AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE 13-9 
02(S)(2), AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE LOAN 10 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE KENAI PENINSULA 11 
BOROUGH REGARDING THE BOND.  12 

 13 
WHEREAS, By Ordinance 13-03(S)(2), adopted February 25, 2013, the City authorized 14 

the issuance of a Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond (“Bond”) in the principal 15 
amount of not to exceed $12,700,000, and the execution and delivery of a Loan Agreement 16 
between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough regarding the Bond; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, By Resolution 15-017, adopted March 23, 2015 the City confirmed the 19 
assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment District 20 
(“District”); and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, On April 3, 2015, the Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case 23 
No. 3HO-13-00038CI, ruled that the City’s method of assessing condominium units in the 24 
District was unlawful, and this decision has been stayed pending review by the Alaska 25 
Supreme Court recently denied a Petition for Review of this ruling; and  26 
 27 

WHEREAS, The Council may consider whether to (i) waive the assessment of certain 28 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system, and (ii) 29 
recognize subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots under common ownership by 30 
assessing only the reduced number of lots; and 31 
 32 

WHEREAS, The City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough have agreed that the City should 33 
prepay the principal of the Bond in an amount equal to any reduction in the amount of 34 
assessments in the District that results from (i) any requirement that the City reassess 35 
condominium units in the District, or (ii) any decision by the Council to waive the assessment 36 
of properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system or to 37 
assess only a reduced number of contiguous lots in common ownership resulting from 38 
resubdivision.  39 

 40 
 41 

 42 
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NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 43 
 44 

Section 1.  Section 14 of Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) is amended to read as follows (added 45 
language is underlined): 46 
 47 

Section 14 – Reserve Fund.  48 
(a) A special fund of the City designated the "City of Homer Natural 49 

Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond Reserve Fund" is hereby created for 50 
the purpose of paying and securing the payment of the Bond, and is hereby 51 
pledged for that purpose.  The Reserve Fund shall be held separate and apart 52 
from all other funds and accounts of the City and shall be a trust fund for the 53 
Registered Owner of the Bond.  There shall be paid into the Reserve Fund: 54 

(1) That part of the proceeds of the Bond which is 55 
designated for deposit in the Reserve Fund by the Loan Agreement; and 56 

(2) All monies received from ENSTAR as refunds of main 57 
extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new 58 
customers connecting to the Improvement, which shall be held in a 59 
separate subaccount in the Reserve Fund; and 60 

(3) Any Sinking Fund and Guaranty Fund balances remaining 61 
after the discharge of the Bond. 62 
(b) Until the Bond has been discharged, the funds in the Reserve 63 

Fund may be used only to pay the difference between the amount of principal 64 
and interest due on the Bond and the amount in the Sinking Fund that is 65 
available to pay that principal and interest; provided, (i) monies in the Reserve 66 
fund that were received from ENSTAR as refunds of main extension advances 67 
or free main allowance arising out of new customers connecting to the 68 
Improvement may be used as provided in subsection (d) of this section, and 69 
(ii) if the Finance Director determines that the amount of funds available in the 70 
Reserve Fund exceeds the amount of the next annual installment of principal 71 
and interest due on the Bond, the Finance Director may apply such excess to a 72 
prepayment of the Bond. 73 

(c) At such time as the Finance Director determines that the sum of 74 
the amounts in the Reserve Fund, the Guaranty Fund and the Sinking Fund 75 
equals or exceeds the amount required to (i) discharge the Bond, (ii) pay all 76 
refunds of assessments required upon discharge of the Bond, and (iii) pay any 77 
other amounts that may be owing on the Bond, the Finance Director shall 78 
cause such payment to be made and the Bond to be discharged. 79 

(d) Monies in the Reserve fund that were received from ENSTAR as 80 
refunds of main extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new 81 
customers connecting to the Improvement may be used as follows: 82 

(1) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 83 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments against 84 
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condominium units in the District pursuant to the decision of the 85 
Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case No. 3HO-13-86 
00038CI, or a decision of the Alaska Supreme Court on review of the 87 
Superior Court’s decision, provided that immediately following such a 88 
prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not be less than the 89 
Reserve Requirement. 90 

(2) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 91 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments in the District 92 
due to action of the City either (i) waiving the assessment of certain 93 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas 94 
distribution system, or (ii) recognizing subdivisions reducing the 95 
number of contiguous lots under common ownership by assessing only 96 
the reduced number of lots, provided that immediately following such a 97 
prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not be less than the 98 
Reserve Requirement. 99 

 100 
Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the First Amendment to 101 

Loan Agreement, in substantially the form presented at this meeting, but with such changes, 102 
modifications, additions and deletions therein as she shall deem necessary, desirable or 103 
appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and 104 
all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said 105 
document now before this meeting. 106 
 107 

Section 3.  This Ordinance is not permanent in nature, and shall not be codified. 108 
 109 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 110 
______________, 2015. 111 
 112 
       CITY OF HOMER 113 
 114 
 115 

____________________ 116 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  117 
 118 
ATTEST:  119 
 120 
 121 
____________________________ 122 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  123 
 124 
 125 
 126 
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YES:  127 
NO:  128 
ABSTAIN:  129 
ABSENT:  130 
 131 
 132 
First Reading: 133 
Public Hearing: 134 
Second Reading: 135 
Effective Date:  136 
 137 
  138 
 139 
Reviewed and approved as to form. 140 
 141 
    142 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager  Thomas Klinkner, City Attorney 143 
 144 
Date:    Date:   145 
 146 
 147 
Fiscal Note: NA 148 
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 CITY OF HOMER  1 
 HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager 3 
 ORDINANCE 15-XX  4 

 5 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA 6 
AMENDING ORDINANCE 13-03(S)(2) TO PERMIT THE CITY TO 7 
PREPAY PRINCIPAL OF THE NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION 8 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BOND AUTHORIZED BY ORDINANCE 9 
13-02(S)(2), AND AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 10 
LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE KENAI 11 
PENINSULA BOROUGH REGARDING THE BOND.  12 

 13 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance 13-03(S)(2), adopted February 25, 2013, the City authorized 14 

the issuance of a Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond (“Bond”) in the principal 15 
amount of not to exceed $12,700,000, and the execution and delivery of a Loan Agreement 16 
between the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough regarding the Bond; and 17 
 18 

WHEREAS, by Resolution 15-017, adopted March 23, 2015 the City confirmed the 19 
assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment District (“District”); 20 
and 21 
 22 

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2015, the Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case 23 
No. 3HO-13-00038CI, ruled that the City’s method of assessing condominium units in the 24 
District was unlawful, and this decision has been stayed pending review by the Alaska Supreme 25 
Court recently denied a Petition for Review of this ruling; and  26 
 27 

WHEREAS, the Council may consider whether to (i) waive the assessment of certain 28 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system, and (ii) 29 
recognize subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots under common ownership by 30 
assessing only the reduced number of lots; and 31 
 32 

WHEREAS, the City and the Kenai Peninsula Borough have agreed that the City should 33 
prepay the principal of the Bond in an amount equal to any reduction in the amount of 34 
assessments in the District that results from (i) any requirement that the City reassess 35 
condominium units in the District, or (ii) any decision by the Council to waive the assessment of 36 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution system or to 37 
assess only a reduced number of contiguous lots in common ownership resulting from 38 
resubdivision.  39 
 40 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF HOMER ORDAINS: 41 
 42 

Section 1.  Section 14 of Ordinance 13-03(S)(2) is amended to read as follows (added 43 
language is underlined): 44 
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 45 
Section 14 – Reserve Fund.  46 
(a) A special fund of the City designated the "City of Homer Natural 47 

Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond Reserve Fund" is hereby created for 48 
the purpose of paying and securing the payment of the Bond, and is hereby 49 
pledged for that purpose.  The Reserve Fund shall be held separate and apart 50 
from all other funds and accounts of the City and shall be a trust fund for the 51 
Registered Owner of the Bond.  There shall be paid into the Reserve Fund: 52 

(1) That part of the proceeds of the Bond which is designated 53 
for deposit in the Reserve Fund by the Loan Agreement; and 54 

(2) All monies received from ENSTAR as refunds of main 55 
extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new customers 56 
connecting to the Improvement, which shall be held in a separate 57 
subaccount in the Reserve Fund; and 58 

(3) Any Sinking Fund and Guaranty Fund balances remaining 59 
after the discharge of the Bond. 60 
(b) Until the Bond has been discharged, the funds in the Reserve 61 

Fund may be used only to pay the difference between the amount of principal 62 
and interest due on the Bond and the amount in the Sinking Fund that is 63 
available to pay that principal and interest; provided, (i) monies in the Reserve 64 
fund that were received from ENSTAR as refunds of main extension advances or 65 
free main allowance arising out of new customers connecting to the 66 
Improvement may be used as provided in subsection (d) of this section, and (ii) if 67 
the Finance Director determines that the amount of funds available in the 68 
Reserve Fund exceeds the amount of the next annual installment of principal 69 
and interest due on the Bond, the Finance Director may apply such excess to a 70 
prepayment of the Bond. 71 

(c) At such time as the Finance Director determines that the sum of 72 
the amounts in the Reserve Fund, the Guaranty Fund and the Sinking Fund 73 
equals or exceeds the amount required to (i) discharge the Bond, (ii) pay all 74 
refunds of assessments required upon discharge of the Bond, and (iii) pay any 75 
other amounts that may be owing on the Bond, the Finance Director shall cause 76 
such payment to be made and the Bond to be discharged. 77 

(d) Monies in the Reserve fund that were received from ENSTAR as 78 
refunds of main extension advances or free main allowance arising out of new 79 
customers connecting to the Improvement may be used as follows: 80 

(1) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 81 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments against 82 
condominium units in the District pursuant to the decision of the 83 
Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case No. 3HO-13-84 
00038CI, or a decision of the Alaska Supreme Court on review of the 85 
Superior Court’s decision3HO-13-00038CI, provided that immediately 86 
following such a prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not 87 
be less than the Reserve Requirement. 88 
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(2) The City may prepay principal of the Bond in an amount 89 
equal to the reduction in the total amount of assessments in the District 90 
due to action of the City either (i) waiving the assessment of certain 91 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas 92 
distribution system, or (ii) recognizing subdivisions reducing the number 93 
of contiguous lots under common ownership by assessing only the 94 
reduced number of lots, provided that immediately following such a 95 
prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund shall not be less than the 96 
Reserve Requirement. 97 

 98 
Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the First Amendment to 99 

Loan Agreement, in substantially the form presented at this meeting, but with such changes, 100 
modifications, additions and deletions therein as she shall deem necessary, desirable or 101 
appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all 102 
changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said 103 
document now before this meeting. 104 
 105 

Section 3.  This Ordinance is not permanent in nature, and shall not be codified. 106 
 107 
 ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF HOMER, ALASKA, this ________ day of 108 
______________, 2015. 109 
 110 
       CITY OF HOMER 111 
 112 
 113 

_____________________________ 114 
       MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR  115 
 116 
ATTEST:  117 
 118 
 119 
____________________________ 120 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK  121 
 122 
YES:  123 
NO:  124 
ABSTAIN:  125 
ABSENT:  126 
 127 
 128 
First Reading: 129 
Public Hearing: 130 
Second Reading: 131 
Effective Date:   132 
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 133 
Reviewed and approved as to form. 134 
 135 
    136 
Mary K. Koester, City Manager  Thomas Klinkner, City Attorney 137 
 138 
Date:    Date:   139 
 140 
 141 
Fiscal Note: NA 142 
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT (“Amendment”), dated as of 
June ___, 2015, amends the LOAN AGREEMENT (“Loan Agreement”) dated as of March 25, 
2013, by and between the KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH (“Lender”), an Alaska municipal 
corporation, and the CITY OF HOMER (“Borrower”), an Alaska municipal corporation. 
 

R  E  C  I  T  A  L  S 
 
 WHEREAS, by Ordinance 13-03(S)(2), adopted February 25, 2013, Borrower authorized 
the issuance to Lender of a Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond (“Bond”) in the 
principal amount of not to exceed $12,700,000, and the execution and delivery of the Loan 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 15-017, adopted March 23, 2015, Borrower confirmed the 
assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment District (“District”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2015, the Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., 
Case No. 3HO-13-00038CI, ruled that Borrower’s method of assessing condominium units in the 
District was unlawful, and the Alaska Supreme Court recently denied a Petition for Review of 
this ruling; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Borrower may consider whether to (i) waive the 
assessment of certain properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas 
distribution system, and (ii) recognize subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots under 
common ownership by assessing only the reduced number of lots; and 
 

WHEREAS, Borrower and Lender agree that it is in their mutual best interest to permit 
Borrower to prepay the principal of the Bond in an amount equal to any reduction in the amount 
of assessments in the District that results from (i) any requirement that Borrower reassess 
condominium units in the District, or (ii) any decision by the City Council of Borrower to waive 
the assessment of properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution 
system or to assess only a reduced number of contiguous lots in common ownership resulting 
from resubdivision.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, the parties hereto 
covenant and agree as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Section 3.03 of the Loan Agreement is amended by adding the following 
paragraphs at the end of the section: 
 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Borrower and 
Lender agree that the total amount of assessments against condominium units in 
the District shall be reduced pursuant to the decision of the Superior Court in 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT  Page 1 of 3 
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Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case No. 3HO-13-00038CI, and Borrower shall 
prepay principal of the Loan in an amount equal to the amount of such reduction.  
Borrower may make this prepayment from Free Main Allowance and other 
reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas Company, 
provided that immediately following such a prepayment the amount in the 
Reserve Fund will not be less than the Reserve Requirement. 

 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the total 
amount of assessments against properties in the District is reduced due to action 
of the City Council of Borrower either (i) waiving the assessment of certain 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution 
system, or (ii) recognizing subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots 
under common ownership by assessing only the reduced number of lots, Borrower 
shall prepay principal of the Loan in an amount equal to the amount of such 
reduction.  Borrower may make this prepayment from Free Main Allowance and 
other reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas 
Company, and from any other legally available funding sources, provided that 
immediately following such a prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund will 
not be less than the Reserve Requirement. 

 
 Lender consents to Borrower’s amendment of Borrower’s Ordinance 13-
03(S)(2) to permit Borrower to apply Free Main Allowance and other 
reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas Company in 
the manner described in the preceding two paragraphs. 

 
 Section 2. Except as expressly amended herein, all terms and conditions of the Loan 
Agreement as originally executed shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lender and the Borrower have caused his Amendment to 
be executed in their respective names all by their duly authorized officers, as of the date first set 
forth above. 
 
LENDER:  KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Mike Navarre, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Johni Blankenship, Borough Clerk 
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BORROWER:  CITY OF HOMER 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Mary K. Koester, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Jo Johnson, City Clerk 
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
 
 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT (“Amendment”), dated as of 
June ___, 2015, amends the LOAN AGREEMENT (“Loan Agreement”) dated as of March 25, 
2013, by and between the KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH (“Lender”), an Alaska municipal 
corporation, and the CITY OF HOMER (“Borrower”), an Alaska municipal corporation. 
 

R  E  C  I  T  A  L  S 
 
 WHEREAS, by Ordinance 13-03(S)(2), adopted February 25, 2013, Borrower authorized 
the issuance to Lender of a Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment Bond (“Bond”) in the 
principal amount of not to exceed $12,700,000, and the execution and delivery of the Loan 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 15-017, adopted March 23, 2015, Borrower confirmed the 
assessment roll for the Homer Natural Gas Distribution Special Assessment District (“District”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2015, the Superior Court in Castner v. City of Homer, et al., 
Case No. 3HO-13-00038CI, ruled that Borrower’s method of assessing condominium units in the 
District was unlawful, and this decision has been stayed pending review by the Alaska Supreme 
Court recently denied a Petition for Review of this ruling; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Borrower may consider whether to (i) waive the 
assessment of certain properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas 
distribution system, and (ii) recognize subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots under 
common ownership by assessing only the reduced number of lots; and 
 

WHEREAS, Borrower and Lender agree that it is in their mutual best interest to permit 
Borrower to prepay the principal of the Bond in an amount equal to any reduction in the amount 
of assessments in the District that results from (i) any requirement that Borrower reassess 
condominium units in the District, or (ii) any decision by the City Council of Borrower to waive 
the assessment of properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution 
system or to assess only a reduced number of contiguous lots in common ownership resulting 
from resubdivision.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein, the parties hereto 
covenant and agree as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Section 3.03 of the Loan Agreement is amended by adding the following 
paragraphs at the end of the section: 
 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, ifBorrower and 
Lender agree that the total amount of assessments against condominium units in 
the District isshall be reduced pursuant to the decision of the Superior Court in 
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Castner v. City of Homer, et al., Case No. 3HO-13-00038CI, or a decision of the 
Alaska Supreme Court on review of the Superior Court’s decision,and Borrower 
shall prepay principal of the Loan in an amount equal to the amount of such 
reduction.  Borrower may make this prepayment from Free Main Allowance and, 
other reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas 
Company, provided that immediately following such a prepayment the amount in 
the Reserve Fund will not be less than the Reserve Requirement. 

 
 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the total 
amount of assessments against properties in the District is reduced due to action 
of the City Council of Borrower either (i) waiving the assessment of certain 
properties in the District that cannot be served by the natural gas distribution 
system, or (ii) recognizing subdivisions reducing the number of contiguous lots 
under common ownership by assessing only the reduced number of lots, Borrower 
shall prepay principal of the Loan in an amount equal to the amount of such 
reduction.  Borrower may make this prepayment from Free Main Allowance and 
other reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas 
Company, and from any other legally available funding sources, provided that 
immediately following such a prepayment the amount in the Reserve Fund will 
not be less than the Reserve Requirement. 

 
 Lender consents to Borrower’s amendment of Borrower’s Ordinance 13-
03(S)(2) to permit Borrower to apply Free Main Allowance and other 
reimbursements that Borrower receives from ENSTAR Natural Gas Company in 
the manner described in the preceding two paragraphs. 

 
 Section 2. Except as expressly amended herein, all terms and conditions of the Loan 
Agreement as originally executed shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lender and the Borrower have caused his Amendment to 
be executed in their respective names all by their duly authorized officers, as of the date first set 
forth above. 
 
LENDER:  KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Mike Navarre, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Johni Blankenship, Borough Clerk 
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BORROWER:  CITY OF HOMER 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Mary K. Koester, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Jo Johnson, City Clerk 
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City Manager’s Report 
TO:  Mayor Wythe and Homer City Council 

FROM:  Katie Koester, City Manager 

DATE:  June 15, 2015 

SUBJECT: City Manager’s Report 

Questions from Previous Meetings: 
 
Bridge Creek Watershed Parcels for Sale 
The May 26th Manager’s report discussed three parcels in the Bridge Creek Watershed that the lot 
owner has approached the City about selling. City Planner Abboud determined that the two eastern 
lots would be the most value to the watershed. The combined assessed value of the two lots is 
$36,500. The seller is asking $55,000 but understands that an appraisal would be necessary before 
the City can move forward with any serious intention of purchasing the land. Councilmember Lewis 
asked for more information on the low interest loan program through DEC that could be used to 
purchase these lots. More specifically, given the long lead time required to obtain a DEC loan and 
extensive amount of paperwork involved, he wanted to know if we could purchase the lots and then 
retroactively apply for the loan. The answer is no, we would have to purchase the land after applying 
for the loan. However, we could use the Utility Depreciation Reserve Fund for the purchase. That 
fund is at $3.8 million, has been declining since 2011 and is significantly below the amount Council 
set for reserve accounts of 40% of depreciable capital assets in Resolution 06-100. From a financial 
management perspective, you could not consider the cost of that land as an expense – but rather as 
converting a liquid asset into a non-liquid asset. However, tying up funds in real estate makes the 
funds inaccessible for repairs and maintenance and takes those parcels off the tax roll. See the 
attached map for parcel numbers and location. 
 
How Long Would a 35% Design of the Public Safety Building be Good for? 
At the May 26th Council meeting, the question was asked how long a 35% design in a case like the 
Public Safety Building  would be good for. According to Public Works Director Meyer, one way of 
establishing milestones during a design process is to create 10%, 35%, 65%, 95%, and 100% stages. 
At 35%, most all significant design issues are known and the costs associated with dealing with the 
issues are understood. No bid documents will be prepared, but all work required to begin effective 
and efficient bid document preparation is complete at 35% design.   
 
In Mr. Meyer’s opinion, the 35% design has the longest shelf life of the percentage completion 
milestones discussed above. The further into the bid document preparation effort, (65% - 100%), the 
shorter the shelf life. Normally, the budget for a project cannot be clearly established until 35% 
design is complete. We should be able to make confident decisions about bond proposition dollar 
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amounts after the 35% design is complete and make effective grant applications showing significant 
progress and “skin in the game.” 

Water Levels at Reservoir 
Mayor Pro Tempore Roberts asked about water levels in the reservoir. Concern was expressed over 
how the low snowpack may affect the City’s ability to produce water during peak demand (August). 
Public Works Director Meyer checked the reservoir and it is currently full. When it comes to reservoir 
levels, snow melt has the most value to replenish groundwater and springs that discharge into the 
reservoir throughout the summer. Most snow melt goes over the dam in May/June. Over the past 20 
years we have had to ask users to conserve water once for a few weeks in the month of August. Water 
levels will depend largely on how wet and warm our summer is. If there is reduced rainfall, lots of 
sunny days, and lots of lawns to water, we could see low levels at the reservoir come August. Mr. 
Meyer will keep an eye on the water levels this summer and hold back water in the reservoir in July 
as opportunities arise. In the past our water quality used to diminish when the water level in the 
reservoir was low. However, that is no longer the case with the new water treatment plant.  

 
Update on Waddell Way  
Public Works is currently focused on the public involvement portion of the project. Through public 
hearings at the Planning Commission, we are hoping for a consensus of opinion regarding horizontal 
alignment and pedestrian/bike friendly amenities. Public Works made a presentation to the Planning 
Commission at their last meeting on June 3rd. The design engineer is under contract (using our 
professional engineering term contract), the field survey and soils investigation is complete, and the 
value of potential land purchases have been appraised. 
 
The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Waddell Way June 17th. Once the preferred 
alignment is selected and the amenities have been agreed upon, we will start the bid document 
preparation effort. Public Works Director Meyer expects to bid the project later this summer, with 
construction beginning in the fall. Project completion is slated for Spring of 2016. It is important that 
funds are encumbered on this project before the legislative session begins in January. See packet on 
Waddell Way from Planning Commission June 3rd meeting for more info. 

For Your Information: 
 
HERC Parking Lot  
The Homer Middle School and Paul Banks Elementary are getting their roof replaced this 
summer. For safety reasons, patrons of the Middle School fields will not be able to access the 
field through the Middle School parking lot until the project is over, in August. In the 
meantime field users will park at the lower HERC parking lot (the former entrance to the Boys 
and Girls Club). This will not affect RV parking that occurs in the upper lot. Use of the lot 
should be minimal as most field users are dropped off in the summer months. 
 
Assistant City Manager Position Filled 
I am happy to announce that we have filled the Assistant City Manager position. Patrick Lawrence’s 
first day will be June 15th. He will be attending the council meeting on the 15th, so you will have an 
opportunity to meet him then if you have not already. Patrick comes to the City from Enstar Natural 
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Gas. Most recently he was the Southern Division Supervisor for Enstar, before that he worked out of 
the Homer office. Patrick has been in Homer since 2011 and brings a strong background in 
marketing, economic research, public relations, and management. He is a good match for the office 
and the City. I will be asking him to take on a number of projects including Economic Development, 
the Capital Improvement Plan, and drafting and implementing a Communications Plan for the City. 
Thank you for welcoming Patrick to our team.  
 
Farming on City Lot off of Shellfish 
During discussion of the Land Allocation Plan, Beau Burgess and Aryn Young, City residents 
that live off of Shellfish Avenue, expressed a desire to enter into an agreement with the City 
for low profile farming on recently acquired City land off of Shellfish Avenue. The lot was 
acquired from the Quiet Creek Condominium Association for the eventual placement of a 
water tank. The lot has a deed restriction on it to protect the neighbor’s viewshed. When the 
City installs a water tank we will have to include landscaping that hides development on the 
lot. After conversations with the Quiet Creek Condominium Association and Ms. Young, City 
staff came up with the attached agreement to allow low profile gardening to occur on the lot. 
The City has allowed use of public land in the past for gardening, most recently a people’s 
garden. The letter clearly specifies that any use beyond soil preparing, planting, weeding and 
harvesting vegetables and a low profile fence would have to be approved by Council and 
involve a formal lease process. I have attached a draft copy of the agreement between the 
owner of the adjacent lot, Tony Burgess, and the City (which has not been signed yet by either 
party). 
 
National Disaster Preparedness Trainings 
Chief Painter has invited, at no local expense, the folks from the National Disaster Preparedness 
Training Center at the University of Hawaii to come to Homer do three classes of local interest. The 
first class will be July 27th (Monday) and will be held twice that day (only a 4-hour class). It is called 
Natural Disaster Awareness for Caregivers of Senior Citizens. The second and third classes (both full 
day courses) will be held on Tuesday, July 28th, Tsunami Awareness; and Wednesday, July 29th, 
Coastal Community Resilience. All classes will be held at the college. Chief hopes to be able to fill 
these classes with folks from around the state (who doesn’t like to come to Homer in July?). See the 
attached flyers for additional information. 
 
Chief Painter Earns Certified Emergency Manager Distinction  
I am proud to report that the City was notified that Chief Painter has recently earned the designation 
of Certified Emergency Manager from the International Association of Emergency Managers. This is 
the highest professional achievement in the association. Chief Painter was awarded this designation 
based on his personal and professional achievements, a Management Essay and written exam. The 
City of Homer is proud of Chief Painter’s accomplishments and the expertise he brings to our work 
force. Please take a moment to congratulate him when you see him. 
 
Enc: 
Map of Lots for Sale in Bridge Creek Watershed 
Waddell Way packet information from June 3rd Planning Commission Meeting 
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Agreement between City and Tony Burgess on Use of Adjacent City Lot 
Natural Disaster Preparedness Flyers (3) 
Letter from IAEM RE: Chief Painter 
Letter of Non-objection to ADOT/PF RE: Painting Woodard Creek across Pioneer Avenue  
Notice of Load and Launch Ramp Closure 
Thank You Letter from Hospice of Homer 
Temporary Parking at the HERC 
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This 4-hour course is designed to enhance 
the caregiver’s awareness of vulnerability 
factors associated with senior citizens. Senior 
citizens are particularly vulnerable to natural hazards. Factors 
such as physical limitations, mental ailments, and medication 
requirements are issues of concern for caregivers of senior 
citizens. These specific needs, amongst other considerations 
for natural hazards, must be addressed in preparedness plans 
for these at-risk citizens. Participants will learn how to 
identify, prepare, and perform a number of support activities 
that will ensure the safety and security of senior citizens when 
a natural hazard event occurs. Particular attention is directed 
toward developing an awareness of the preparedness and 
response needs of all senior citizens, inclusive of economic, 
medical, cognitive and mobility determinants.

Natural Disaster Awareness for 
Senior caregivers

at the

NATIONAL DISASTER
PREPAREDNESS
TRAINING CENTER

MODULES
✓ ✓ �Resilience Concepts
✓ ✓ Understanding Risks from Natural Hazards
✓ ✓ �Building Resilience
✓ ✓ �Going Forward

As a member of the National Domestic Preparedness Consortium, the NDPTC is a DHS/
FEMA training partner dedicated to providing critical all-hazards training throughout 

the United States and its territories with an emphasis on natural hazards and island and 
coastal communities

828 Fort Street Mall • Suite 320 •Honolulu, Hawaii  96813
Phone:	 808.956.0600 • Fax:  808.536.9110
website: 	 ndptc.hawaii.edu

COURSE DELIVERY:
July 27, 2015  *2 Training Opportunities*
 1st  -  8:00 am - 12:00 pm 
2nd - 1:00 pm - 5:00 pm 
Homer, AK

LOCATION AND DETAILS: 
Kenai Peninsula College 
533 E. Pioneer Avenue 
Homer, AK 99603

REGISTER AT: 
https://ndptc.hawaii.edu/training 

FOr rEgISTrATION ASSISTANCE CONTACT: 
Robert L. Painter • rpainter@ci.homer.ak.us
907-235-3155
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This awareness-level course provides a basic understanding of 
tsunamis, hazard assessment, warning and dissemination, and 
community response strategies to effectively reduce tsunami risk. 
No advanced knowledge and experience of tsunamis is required.  
The goal of this course is to enhance participants’ abilities to 
support their organizational preparedness and response efforts.

Course modules cover science and assessment tools used to 
build tsunami resilient communities, the tsunami detection and 
warning process, and the products and methods used to warn 
all levels of government and coastal communities.  Effective 
response requires pre-event planning and preparation to ensure 
that the public knows what to do and where to evacuate to before 
destructive waves arrive, and that afterward, knows when it is all-
clear and safe to return.

Tsunami Awareness 
AWR-217

WHO SHOULD TAKE THIS COURSE 
This course is targeted for a broad cross section of 

professionals involved in emergency management, 

fire services, coastal zone managers, planners, 

developers, and municipal services.

MODULES
✓ ✓ �Hazard Assessment
✓ ✓ �Warning
✓ ✓ �Preparedness, Mitigation, and  Response
✓ ✓ �Exercise Scenario
✓ ✓ End to End Tsunami Warning

As a member of the National Domestic Preparedness Consortium, the NDPTC is a DHS/
FEMA training partner dedicated to providing critical all-hazards training throughout 

the United States and its territories with an emphasis on natural hazards and island and 
coastal communities

LOCATION AND DETAILS: 
Kenai Peninsula College 
533 E. Pioneer Avenue 
Homer, AK 99603

REGISTER AT: 
https://ndptc.hawaii.edu/training

FOR REGISTRATION ASSISTANCE CONTACT: 

Robert L. Painter • rpainter@ci.homer.ak.us
907-235-3155

COURSE DELIVERY:
July 28, 2015
8:00 am - 5:00 pm 
Homer, AK

NATIONAL DISASTER 
PREPAREDNESS

TRAINING CENTER

828 Fort Street Mall • Suite 320 • Honolulu, HI  96813
Phone: 808.956-0600   Fax:  808.536-9110

website: ndptc.hawaii.edu
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This one-day awareness level course will provide participants with 
an understanding of the concept of resilience as it applies to coastal 
communities with a focus on resilience as a unifying framework 
for community-based planning, preparedness, response and 
recovery.  The course will emphasize target capabilities to enhance 
preparedness and response to natural disasters, including chronic, 
as well as extreme events affecting coastal communities.  It will 
demonstrate how to integrate risk-based, community-based, and 
collaborative strategies into plans and programs.  

The goal of the course is to enhance the participant’s ability to 
support preparedness  and response efforts by developing and 
sustaining resilient coastal communities.

COASTAL COMMUNITY RESILIENCE 
AWR-228

WHO SHOULD TAKE THIS COURSE 
This course is targeted for a broad cross section of 

professionals involved in emergency management, 

fire services, coastal zone managers, planners, 

developers, and municipal services.

MODULES
✓ ✓ �Resilience Concepts
✓ ✓ Understanding Risks from Natural Hazards
✓ ✓ �Building Resilience
✓ ✓ �Going Forward

Pre-Requiste
✓ ✓ Disaster Related Training or Experience

As a member of the National Domestic Preparedness Consortium, the NDPTC is a DHS/
FEMA training partner dedicated to providing critical all-hazards training throughout 

the United States and its territories with an emphasis on natural hazards and island and 
coastal communities

at the

NATIONAL DISASTER
PREPAREDNESS
TRAINING CENTER

LOCATION AND DETAILS:
Kenai Peninsula College 
533 E. Pioneer Avenue 
Homer, AK 99603

REGISTER AT: 
https://ndptc.hawaii.edu/training

828 Fort Street Mall • Suite 320
Honolulu, Hawaii  96813
Phone:	 808.956.0600   •  Fax: 808.536.9110
website: 	 ndptc.hawaii.edu

COURSE DELIVERY:
July 29, 2015
8:00 am - 5:00 pm 
Homer, AK

FOR REGISTRATION ASSISTANCE CONTACT: 
Robert L. Painter • rpainter@ci.homer.ak.us
907-235-3155
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May 28, 2015 
 
 
 
Katie Koester 
City Manager 
City of Homer 
491 E. Pioneer Ave 
Homer, AK 99603 
 
  
Ms Koester: 
 
Congratulations! Robert Painter, CEM®, has this year earned recognition from the International 
Association of Emergency Managers by being among the group of professionals designated Certified 
Emergency Manager (CEM®).  This is the highest honor of professional achievement available from 
the Association which has in its membership more than 9,000 emergency managers representing 
professionals whose goals are saving lives and protecting property and the environment during 
emergencies and disasters.    
   
Robert qualified as a CEM® by submitting an extensive credentials package giving personal and 
professional background achievements and successfully completing a Management Essay and a written 
examination.  In order to maintain certification, he must continue a program of professional 
development over successive five-year periods in the future.  Thus, this is an honor neither easily 
earned nor maintained. 
 
The CEM® designation presently is held by 2,346 men and women in the emergency management 
profession.  As a CEM®, Robert Painter demonstrated a high level of competence and ethical fitness 
for emergency management.  Your organization is to be commended for having a professional of this 
caliber on staff. 
 
I hope that you will find an opportunity to share with your officials this singularly high achievement 
that Robert Painter, CEM® has attained for it reflects credit upon both your organization and Robert. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Kevin Sligh, CEM® 
CEM® Commission Chair 
 
 
cc: Robert Painter, CEM® 
 
 
Shared Drive/IAEM/CEM/Notification Letters/Employer Notification Letter – CEM Earned.doc 
 
 

IAEM Headquarters • 201 Park Washington Court • Falls Church, VA 22046 • 703-538-1795 • Email: info@iaem.com 
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NOTICE

NOTICE

City of Homer
Boat Launch Ramp
WILL BE CLOSED

for renovations
from Sept 15, 2015 through Dec 15, 2015
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Memorandum 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  MELISSA JACOBSEN, CMC, DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

DATE:  JUNE 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: BID REPORT  

 
RFP to Refurbish Homer Fire Department Apparatus Tanker 2 - Proposals to refurbish Tanker 2 will be received at 
the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, City of Homer, 491 East Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska, until 4:30 p.m., Friday 
June 19, 2015. The intent of this proposal effort is to provide an opportunity for fire apparatus manufacturers and 
service centers to bid on the project to refurbish an existing fire engine to NFPA Level 2 requirements. This is the first 
of two projects to be considered (the second to follow the initial project). The time of receipt will be determined by 
the City Clerk’s time stamp. Proposals received after the time fixed for the receipt of the bids shall not be considered. 
All firms submitting proposals must be listed on the “Plan Holder’s List” maintained by the City Clerk. All bidders must 
submit a City of Homer Plan Holders Registration form to be on the Plan Holder’s List and to be considered 
responsive. 
 
RFP for Benefit Broker and Consulting Services - The City of Homer, Alaska is requesting proposals for an 
experienced and qualified Insurance Broker of Record to provide health benefits insurance and ancillary products 
consulting, marketing and placement services from reputable insurance carriers, finding the desired products at the 
most competitive price for three (3) years. Sealed proposals will be received at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 
City of Homer, 491 East Pioneer Avenue, Homer, Alaska until 4:00 P.M., Friday, June 19, 2015.  The time of receipt will 
be determined by the City Clerk’s time stamp. Proposers are required to be on the Plan Holder's List to have their 
proposals evaluated by the committee.  
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CITY OF HOMER 1 
HOMER, ALASKA 2 

City Manager/ 3 
Finance Director 4 

RESOLUTION 15-046 5 
 6 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOMER CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING THE 7 
2014 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDIT 8 
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ACKNOWLEDGING THE 9 
MANAGEMENT LETTER SUBMITTED BY THE CITY'S INDEPENDENT 10 
AUDITOR, BDO USA, LLP AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 11 
TO EXECUTE THE FINANCIAL REPORT. 12 
 13 

WHEREAS, BDO USA, LLP conducted the annual audit, submitted the 2014 14 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with the audit and financial statements, and the 15 
management letter was delivered for review and distributed to the Mayor and City Council 16 
June 2015; and 17 

 18 
WHEREAS, BDO USA, LLP made a public presentation during the Committee of the 19 

Whole and the Special Meeting of June 15, 2015. 20 
 21 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Homer, Alaska, that the 22 

2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with audit and financial statements is accepted 23 
and that the management letter is acknowledged as submitted by BDO USA, LLP, the City's 24 
independent auditor. 25 

 26 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Homer City Council this 15th day of June, 2015. 27 
 28 

      CITY OF HOMER 29 
 30 

 31 
              32 
      MARY E. WYTHE, MAYOR 33 

 34 
ATTEST: 35 
 36 
 37 
______________________________ 38 
JO JOHNSON, MMC, CITY CLERK 39 
 40 
 41 
Fiscal Note: N/A 42 
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COMMENTS OF THE AUDIENCE 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 

COMMENTS OF THE CITY CLERK 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY MANAGER 

COMMENTS OF THE MAYOR 
COMMENTS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

ADJOURNMENT
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